
BAREFOOT BAY
RECREATION DISTRICT

Barefoot Bay Recreation District Regular Meeting
April 21, 2020 at 7:00 PM

Building D&E

Agenda
Please turn off all cell phones

1. Thought of the Day

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

3. Roll Call

4. Presentations and Proclamations

5. Approval of Minutes

  A. March 13, 2020 BOT Meeting and March 24, 2020 Special Meeting minutes

6. Treasurer’s Report

  A. Treasurer's Report

7. Audience Participation

8. Unfinished Business

  A.
Optional One‐Time Retroactive Severance Payment to District Employees Laid off due to COVID‐
19

  B. Shopping Center Lease for Building 2 Suite 3. Holy Canolli, L.L.C. (Lessee)

  C. Name the Facilities Contest

9. New Business

  A. Resolution Adopting Rules and Procedures for Meetings Via Communications Media Technology

  B. Temporary Suspension of ARCC Meeting and Permit Approval Procedures

  C. DOR Violations

  i. DOR Violation 20‐000885 922 Fir Street 

  ii. DOR Violation 20‐000931 1012 Royal Palm Drive 

  iii. DOR Violation 20‐000963 1374 Barefoot Circle 

  iv. DOR Violation 20‐000959 1376 Barefoot Circle

  v. DOR Violation 19‐004867 833 Vireo Drive 

  D. Building A Renovations RFP Evaluation Committee Recommendation

Page 1 of 134



  E. Lounge Roof Replacement Award of Contract

  F. Pool #1 Walkway Roof Replacement, Phase 2 Award of Contract

  G. Pool #2 Restroom Roof Replacement Award of Contract

  H. Pool #3 Restroom Roof Replacement Award of Contract

  I. Transition Announcement Letter

10. Manager’s Report

  A. Community Manager's Report

11. Attorney’s Report

12. Incidental Trustee Remarks

13. Adjournment

If an individual decides to appeal any decision made by the Recreation District with respect to any matter considered at 
this meeting, a record of the proceedings will be required and the individual will need to ensure that a verbatim 
transcript of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based 
(FS 286.0105). Such person must provide a method for recording the proceedings verbatim.
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Regular Meeting

Page 2 of 134



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

1 | P a g e  
 

 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting 

March 13, 2020 

         1PM –Building D&E 

 

Meeting Called to Order                                                                       

The Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees held a Meeting on March 13, 2020 Building D&E 

1225 Barefoot Boulevard, Barefoot Bay, Florida. Mr. Klosky called the meeting to order at 1PM. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag  

Led by Mr. Maino. 

 

Roll Call  

Present: Mr. Klosky, Ms. Henderson, Mr. Maino and Mr. Compton.  Also, present, John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, 

Community Manager, Cliff Repperger, General Counsel, and Stephanie Brown, District Clerk, Matt Goetz, 

Property Services Manager, Rich Armington, Resident Relations Manager, Kathy Mendez, Food & Beverage 

Manager, Charles Henley, Finance Manager and Ernie Cruz, Golf Operations Manager. Mr. Loveland was excused. 

 

Presentations and Proclamations  

Mr. Klosky presented employees Eric Bershot and Christopher Burke with 5-year Appreciation Award. 

The BOT presented the St. Patrick’s Day Proclamation accepted by Jack Reddy. Ms. Henderson made motion 
to approve resolution. Second by Mr. Compton. Motion passes unanimously. 

 
Approval of Minutes  
Mr. Compton made a motion to approve the minutes dated February 25th, 2020. Second by Ms. Henderson. 
Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Treasurer’s Report  

Mr. Compton made a motion to approve the Treasurer’s Report for March 13th, 2020 as read. Second by Mr. 

Maino. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Audience Participation  
Elaine Bershot-Remind CVO Comedy Show has been postponed. 

Rich Shetlow-636 Marlin Circle-Doesn’t consider name the facilities to be an authentic contest. Disapproved 
of changing the names and approved of having a box on the ballot that says no change (option no). No 
provisions for homebound or handicapped/no longer have a mailout vote.  No one asked to see id when he 
voted. No secure station for voting exists. Boards actually picks the winner/thinks voting should be stopped 

Mary Mcgrath-813 Silvercorn Ct-supporting Leesburg concrete proposal 

Jack Reddy-806 Tamarind Circle-Stated voting can be accomplished at the CVO and Admin building (Spoke 
on behalf of George Baldwin). Thanked recognition of the Irish Club. Parade is Cancelled due to Corona 

Page 3 of 134



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

2 | P a g e  
 

Virus. Dinner dance decision will be decided by Monday 

Judy Alan-600 Segull Drive- the way the sand has been pushed back on the beach, the fishing carts cannot be 
accommodated 

Jan Hanopy-wants hand sanitizer dispensers for all common areas. 

 

Unfinished Business  

Replacement of Two (Golf Course) Greens Award of Contract  

Mr. Coffey wanted direction/Staff recommends from the board to approve the proposal from ABM  

Ms. Henderson spoke on holding off on replacing the greens and repairing the irrigation system. Mr. 
Compton asked if the greens are repaired, will the come back in a better condition. Mr. Cruz responded that 
he cannot predict if the condition of the greens will improve or stay the same. Mr. Cruz also recommends 
following the recommendation of ABM. Mr. Compton voiced concern over ABM cost proposal and not taking 
accountability for damage that may be created from repairing the greens. Ms. Henderson is in favor of 

postponing preparing the greens and putting the irrigation system in FY21.   

Jean Osbourne-Spoke in favor of replacing the greens. 

Bernie Silveria-Cashew Circle-Spoke in favor of an irrigation system over the greens 

Mr. Maino made a motion to approve the contract. Second by Mr. Compton.  Motion fails 3-1.  Ms. 
Henderson, Mr. Compton and Mr. Klosky dissent. 

Ms. Henderson made a motion to move irrigation system repairs to FY 21. Second by Mr. Compton. Motion 
passes 3-1. Mr. Maino dissents. 

 

Lounge/Lakeside Expansion Design Proposal  

Mr. Coffey spoke about the meeting held with the design team, went over various options within the budget 
and what was recommended. Explains that it would be done to two phases. 

Rich Schatlow-voiced his concern over the cost of the proposal. Spoke in favor of building a new building in 
the shopping plaza and repurpose building A and the Lounge. Would like the name the facilities contest 

being discussed during this meeting. 

Ms. Mendez spoke about the slider being included in the design plan on the southside of the Lounge 

 

Staff recommends approval of the design 

Ms. Henderson made a motion to accept the Lounge/Lakeside Expansion Design Proposal. Second by Mr. 

Compton. Ms. Henderson withdrew the motion.  

Ms. Henderson made a motion to approve design work for phase I. Motion died for lack of a second. 

Mr. Compton made a motion to accept the Lounge/Lakeside Expansion Design Proposal. Second by Ms. 

Henderson. Motion passes unanimously. 

 

Bernie Silveria-964 Cashew Circle-Spoke in favor of moving forward with Phase I 
Cindy Johnson-1143 Tequesta Drive-Spoke in favor of the proposal but also adding drop down shades into 
the proposal. 
 

Page 4 of 134



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

3 | P a g e  
 

New Business  
 

DOR violation 19‐004998 602 Sea‐Gull Drive  

Mr. Compton made a motion to refer case #19-004998 Sea-Gull Drive to General Counsel Repperger for legal 

action, equitable or other appropriate action with failure to comply.  If the BOT brings any such action to enforce 

DOR, the charge for such action shall be charged to the Respondents account and shall constitute as a lien.  

Second by Mr. Henderson.  Motion passed unanimously. 

DOR Violation 19‐005046 947 Jacaranda Drive  

Mr. Maino made a motion to refer case #19-005046 947 Jacaranda Drive to General Counsel Repperger for legal 

action, equitable or other appropriate action with failure to comply.  If the BOT brings any such action to enforce 

DOR, the charge for such action shall be charged to the Respondents account and shall constitute as a lien.  

Second by Mr. Compton.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
Discussion of Combining Lots (as permitted under the DOR)  

Mr. Compton spoke about the tradition of combining lots to save money on assessment fees. Mr. 
Compton voiced his concern a that combining lots does not make the budget go down but keeps it the 
same when combining lots. Asking recommendation from the trustees on if the policy should be 
changed. In favor of grandfathering in those who already have double lots. He is speaking on future lots. 
 

Tom Nelson-Spoke about Mr. Compton’s survey on fb. It was not the county that made the decision but 
Barefoot Bay that made that decision to only charge 1 fee. Spoke in favor of paying 2 assessment fees 
moving forward if they have two lots. Define what constitutes as combining two lots. 

Louis Crouse-808 Sapadilla Dr.-Spoke in favor of it being a referendum. Would not be appropriate to give it 
to the ARCC for a determination. 

 
Mr. Compton made a motion to amend the DOR to remove the dual lot provision requiring an 
assessment fee to be paid for each individual lot and to grandfather and double lots. on any lot a 
resident owns. Second by Ms. Henderson. Motion passes 3-1. Mr. Maino dissents. 
 
 
Beach Prefabricated Restrooms RFP Evaluation Committee Recommendation  

Staff recommends awarding of the contract to Leesburg Concrete in the amount of  
 
Rich Schatlow-Spoke that the proposal will not cover the entire cost of the project and asked why there 
is no referendum for this project. Mr. Repperger responded that the project has an operation 
exemption. Operational replacement of an existing facility is outside of the cap requirement. Mr. 
Repperger considered an upgrade on an existing facility and improving ADA compliance. 
 
 

Page 5 of 134



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
Mr. Maino made motion to award the contract to Leesburg Concrete in the amount of. Second by Ms. 
Henderson. Motion passes unanimously. 
 
Manager’s Report 
 
Coronavirus Planning Summary 

BBRD senior staff have been monitoring and planning for worst case coronavirus scenario as we do with 

any other threat to BBRD operations.  BBRD does not provide any essential services as compared to 

other forms of government (i.e law enforcement, fire/rescue, water/wastewater services, etc.). Hence, 

it is possible for the 90% of workforce to  

Operations will remain as planned as long as BBRD has adequate staffing and demand for services by 

residents/guests.   

• If BBRD starts to have numerous employees calling in sick and unable to come back to work 
for a while, staff will either limit specific operations or close specific amenities (i.e. 
Lounge, 19th Hole, Golf Course, Music Bingo, etc.) on a case by case basis.  

• A significant amount of administrative procedures (i.e. Finance, H.R. District Clerk 
functions, overall management, etc.) can be performed remot ely with limited on-site office 
time.  If and when people start working from home the approval for said action will be 
handled on a case-by-case and only upon my authorization.  

• All Department managers were instructed to discreetly inform their staff that n o one will 
lose their jobs for a lengthy absence related to this virus (i.e. recuperating themselves or 
caring for an immediate family member).  I asked them not to post a notice as the media is 
doing a good enough job in scaring people.   

• The public will be advised of any reduction in hours of operations or closures via 
MailChimp mass e-mails and via the two marquee signs. 

 

Staff asked direction for large events. Mr. Maino spoke in favor of putting out statement to Barefoot 

Bay Residents. Consider cancel large inside events with over $200 people. Don’t want to financial well-

being of our staff.  Mr. Compton spoke in favor of err on the side of caution and leave it up to the 

Community Manager for direction. Ms. Henderson spoke in favor of examining those with large 

gatherings. Mr. Klosky spoke in favor of staff making a decision.  

Finance 

• $3,863,365.00 (gross) or 85.8% of the annual assessment receipts were received  as of 
March 6th, 2020. Details are attached.  

 

Resident Relations 

Page 6 of 134



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

5 | P a g e  
 

ARCC Meeting 03/03/20  

• 3 Old Business – 2 approved and 1 denied 
• 17 Consent Items – all approved 
• 17 Other Items -all approved 
 

ARCC Meeting 03/17/20 

• Next meeting 
 

VC Meeting 02/28/20 was canceled 

 
VC Meeting 03/13/20 

• 18 Cases on the agenda 
 

VC Meeting 03/27/20 

• Next meeting  
 

February Interesting Statistics 

• 40 home sales 

• 52 new badges issued 
 

To accommodate our residents during the new badge process, the Administration building, will be open 

on the following Saturdays to take pictures from 9am to Noon: 

• March 21, 2020 

• March 28, 2020 

• April 04, 2020 

• April 18, 2020 
 

 

Food & Beverage 

This year’s Saint Patrick’s Day celebration will be held on Monday, March 16, 2020 due to Presidential 

preference election on March 17, 2020. A full day of events is planned. Tickets are now on sale for 

Page 7 of 134



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

6 | P a g e  
 

Corned Beef Sandwiches or dinners on February 21st at the Lounge, the 19th Hole and the 

Administration Building.  

 

Anyone who has purchased a ticket and does not use it can trade it in for a similarly valued Food & 

Beverage gift certificate at the Administration Building starting on March 17th. 

 

The Dueling Pianos are coming to Barefoot Bay for two shows on March 28th and March 29th. A few 

tickets are $15 are still available at the Administration Building. 

 

An Easter Sunday Brunch will be offered at the 19th Hole on April 12th from 8-11am. No tickets 

required. 

 

Tickets for the Mother’s Day lunch will go on sale Monday, April 13th at the Lounge, the 19th Hole and 

Administration Building.   

 

Flyers with all the details are posted.   

 

 

Golf-Pro Shop 

• Tournaments at BBRD Golf Course:   
o BBRD Club Championship 

▪ March 19th – 21st 

▪ Pairing Dinner Thursday Night at 6pm (Bldg. A) 

▪ Tournament Tee Times Friday and Saturday  

▪ $34/9 Holes 

▪ $43 18 Holes 

▪ Sign up at pro shop on-going 

o Martini League End of Season Tournament  

▪ March 31st, 3pm Shotgun 

▪ Based on golf membership status 

▪ Sign up at pro shop on-going 

• Netting on Number 1 tee damaged by wind:  Repaired  

Page 8 of 134



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

7 | P a g e  
 

 

Property Services 

• Completed Storm water repair work at east lake and installed sod  

• Repaired broken posts around the Pool 1 area 

• Placed new memorial bench at Veterans Way 

• Replaced 2 broken hydraulic lines on the backhoe  

• Continued work on the miniature golf course 

• Replaced lock on the beach and looked for new vendor for the locks  

• Rebuilt doors on the Shopping Center shed  

• Replaced AC unit on the east side of D/E Building  

• Began replacement of the Building A kitchen panel  

• Repaired handicap access door at the lounge  

• Continued soliciting bids and quotes for various projects  
 
General Information 

• FY21 Working Draft Budget (WDPB):  
o The Trustees will receive their copy between on March 31st (Policy Manual deadline is 

April 1st) 
o FY21 WDPB Resident’s Budgets (condensed version containing the transmittal letter 

and line-item budgets) will be available free to residents starting Thursday, April 2 nd at 
the Administration Building. 

o Electronic copies of the FY21 WDPB and FY21 WDPB Resident’s Budget will be available 
on www.bbrd.org starting Friday, April 3rd. 

o The first BOT Budget Workshop is Tuesday, April 21 st in Building D/E at 7pm 
 

• Reminder the 1st BOT meeting in April is Friday the 3rd at 1pm due to the 2nd Friday being 
Good Friday and during Passover.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 9 of 134

http://www.bbrd.org/


        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

8 | P a g e  
 

 

 

Attorney’s Report  

Mr. Repperger about the language changes to the DOR and adding the amendment for lot language. Gave 
an update on various cases, one of the worse (715 Barefoot Bay Blvd) came into compliance. A hearing date 
should be coming soon on the Blissful Things Case. 

 

Incidental Trustee Remarks  

Mr. Klosky spoke in favor of cancelling BOT meeting on March 24, 2020. Maino in favor 

Mr. Compton suggested making it a DOR workshop instead. BOT are all in agreement to cancel the BOT 
meeting and hold a workshop on March 24, 2020 

Mr. Compton made a motion to cancel the meeting and hold a workshop. Second by Ms. Henderson. Motion 
passes unanimously 
 
Adjournment 
 

The next meeting will be on April 3, 2020 at 1pm in Building D/E 

Mr. Compton made a motion to adjourn. Mr. Klosky adjourned. 

Meeting adjourned at 3:47 pm 

  
 
 
 

 

_____________________________    _____________________________ 

Roger Compton, Secretary     Stephanie Brown, District Clerk 

 

Page 10 of 134



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

1 | P a g e  
 

 Board of Trustees Special Meeting 

Tuesday, March 24, 2020 

         7PM –Building D&E 

 

Meeting Called to Order                                                                       

The Barefoot Bay Recreation District Board of Trustees held a Meeting on March 24, 2020 Building D&E 

1225 Barefoot Boulevard, Barefoot Bay, Florida. Mr. Klosky called the meeting to order at 7PM. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag  

Led by Mr. Armington. 

 

Roll Call  

Present: Mr. Klosky, Ms. Henderson, Mr. Maino and Mr. Compton.  Also, present, John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, 

Community Manager, and Rich Armington, Resident Relations Manager. Mr. Loveland was excused. 

 
Audience Participation  
Susan Kinscherf 379 Egret Cir-spoke in favor of opening the pools.  She also voiced her concern about BBRD staff 

being laid off. 

Tori Berndsen 707 Silverthorn-spoke in favor of opening the pools. 

 
COVID-19 Virus Impacts 

Closures 
Mr. Coffey gave a briefing on closed amenities and canceled events. He stated that the assessment fee only 
covers 60% of BBRD operations and that is why some staff members have been laid off. 
Mr. Klosky spoke in favor of pools being closed for resident safety. Mr. Maino spoke in favor of keeping 
everything closed until the CDC says that it is safe and fully supports Mr. Coffey and his administration staff.  Ms. 
Henderson agreed that all amenities should remain closed.  Mr. Compton also agreed that buildings should 
remain closed and reassessing the situation in another two weeks.   
 
Virtual Meetings/Streaming 
Mr. Maino asked about progress on establishing virtual meetings.  Mr. Coffey responded by giving an overview of 
the technical issues as well as the criteria needed to be compliant with FL Sunshine Laws.  He also stated that a 
rule would have to be adopted to enable Trustees to attend remotely.  April 3, 2020 is tentatively set as the first 
live streamed meeting.  
Mr. Compton asked if live streaming could be made the only option.  Mr. Coffey responded that the public must 
be able to participate.  Mr. Compton spoke in favor of Trustees physically attending BOT meetings while the 
audience was virtual. Mr. Compton asked Mr. Maino if he would be comfortable coming in without an audience. 
Mr. Maino responded yes. 
Rick Berndsen-Agreed with Mr. Compton about having things separated. 
 
 

Page 11 of 134



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

2 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
Employee Lay-Offs 
 
Mr.  Maino spoke in favor of a financial package to assist employees that are laid off and those that may be laid 
off.  Mr. Compton asked Mr. Armington how an employee’s unemployment would be affected if BBRD were to 
issue a check after unemployment had already been filed.  Mr. Armington responded that the employee would 
lose some benefits.  Ms. Henderson and Mr. Klosky wanted clarification on how long he would like to pay 
employees.  Mr. Compton responded that he would like to pay them $58.00 a week, based on longevity.  Mr. 
Maino asked how many BBRD employees have applied for unemployment.  Mr. Armington responded 8 so far, 
but that he foresees that over 80 percent of those laid off will apply.  Mr. Coffey stated paying laid off employees 
would need to be adopted by resolution per General Counsel Mr. Repperger.  Mr. Maino proposes that if we are 
still in quarantine after the next two weeks, that we pay part-time workers for another two weeks and asked for 
Mr. Coffey’s recommendation.  Mr. Coffey responded that the decision is ultimately up to the Board but suggests 
thinking about how to balance out the budget.  Mr. Compton would also like to know how much the total cost 
would be to pay BBRD employees for two weeks.   All Trustees agreed to table the decision until the April 3, 2020 
Board Meeting.   
 
Eric Van Berschot 379 Dolphin Cir-asked if a side charity be formed to pool money for those who need it.  Mr. 

Compton and Mr. Maino agreed that it was a good idea.  

 
 
Adjournment 
 

The next meeting will be on April 3, 2020 at 1pm in Building D/E 

Ms. Henderson made a motion to adjourn. Second by Mr. Compton.  Mr. Klosky adjourned. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:10 pm 

  
 
 
 

 

_____________________________    _____________________________ 

Roger Compton, Secretary     Stephanie Brown, District Clerk 

 

Page 12 of 134



        BAREFOOT BAY  
          RECREATION DISTRICT 

1 | P a g e  
 

RFP Evaluation Committee 

Building ‘A’ RFP 

Thursday, April 2, 2020 

10 AM-Administration Conference Room 

 
 
Meeting Called to Order                                                                       

The Barefoot Bay Recreation District RFP Evaluation Committee held a Meeting on April 2, 2020 in the 

Administration Building Conference Room, 625 Barefoot Boulevard, Barefoot Bay, Florida. Committee Chairman 

Trustee Compton called the meeting to order at 10AM. 

 
Pledge of Allegiance  
Led by Committee member Chairman Klosky. 
 
Roll call 
Present: Committee Chairman Trustee Compton, Committee member Mendes, Committee member Chairman 
Klosky, Committee member Coffey and Trustee Henderson 
Excused: Committee member Ann Manzo 
 
Approval of minutes 
Committee member Mendes made a motion to approve the minutes.  Second by Committee Chairman Trustee 
Compton. Motion passes unanimously.  
 
RFP review 
Committee member Mendes made a motion to recommend approval of the Parkit proposal to the BOT. Second 
by Committee Chairman Trustee Compton. Motion passes unanimously. 
 
 
Adjournment 
A motion was made by Committee Chairman Trustee Compton to adjourn.  Second by Committee member 
Mendes. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:06am. 
  
 
 
 

 

_____________________________    _____________________________ 

Roger Compton, Secretary     Stephanie Brown, District Clerk 

 

Page 13 of 134



Total Petty Cash: 2,500.00$                    

2,989,433.86              

2,989,433.86              

696,769.58                  

696,769.58                 

3,688,703.44$      

 $               166,735.88 

                                    -   

166,735.88$         

Check 

Number Vendor Description Check Amount

54996 Imperial Imprinting LLC Festival Merchandise 5,466.90                      

55000 Next Generation Air & Heat Inc. Replacement A/C unit - Bldg D&E 5,669.00                      

55031 ABM Landscape & Turf Services Lawn Maintenance: 3/2020 38,691.16                    

55053 Florida Municipal Insurance Trust Third installment billing: FY19/20 36,668.26                    

55090 Zambelli Fireworks 50% Deposit on 7/5/20 Fireworks Display 5,000.00                      

55265 Florida Power & Light Co Electricty - 2/2020 5,826.85                      

55266 Health First Health Plans Inc Employee Health Ins: 4/2020 23,920.70                    

55275 Special District Services, Inc Management Fee: 3/2020 13,264.59                    

55333 Rossway Swan et. al. P.L. Legal: 3/2020 11,903.63                    

55370 Leesburg Concrete Co Inc Beach Restroom Deposit 6,446.00                      

Paychex Net Payroll: PPE 3/15/2020 63,665.96                    

US Treasury Payroll Tax: PPE 3/15/2020 19,244.57                    

FL DOR Sales Tax February 2020 17,242.45                    

Paychex Net Payroll: PPE 3/29/2020 57,782.17                    

US Treasury Payroll Tax: PPE 3/29/2020 16,675.94                    

FL DOR Sales Tax March 2020 11,927.67                    

339,395.85$         

Total Deposits Received

Expenditures over $5,000 for 3/6 - 4/13/20

Total Expenditures over $5,000 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District
Treasurer's Report

April 21, 2020

Total Cash Balances in General Fund:

Assessments received:

Daily deposits:

Petty Cash

Cash Balances in General Fund as of 4/13/20

Operating Cash in Banks
MB&T Operating Account

Total Operating Accounts:

Interest Bearing Accounts
SBA Reserve Account

Total Interest Bearing Accounts

Total Daily Deposits and Assessments Received for 3/6 - 4/13/20

Page 1

Page 14 of 134



Board of 
Trustees 

Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020
Title: Optional One-Time Retroactive Severance Payment to District 

Employees Laid off due to COVID-19
Section & Item: 8.A
Department: Administration, Finance
Fiscal Impact: $25,863.11
Contact: Cliff Repperger, General Counsel, General Counsel, John W. Coffey 

ICMA-CM, Community Manager, Charles Henley, Finance Manager
Attachments: Resolution Authorizing Retroactive Severance Pay Amount to BBRD 

Employees Laid Off Due to COVID19, Exhibit A 2020 06 Laid off 
Employees Severance Pay Totals

Reviewed by 
General 
Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Consider draft Resolution 2020-06 offering an optional one-time severance pay amount for District employees laid off 
due to COVID-19.
 

Background and Summary Information
Given the COVID-19 situation, Barefoot Bay Recreation District has been forced to lay off fifty-one (51) full and part-
time employees working at District facilities to date.  At the BOT Special Meeting held on March 24, 2020, the Board 
directed staff to evaluate the structure and fiscal impact of a two-week severance payment to laid off employees. 
 
District Staff and General Counsel Repperger have evaluated the issue and have concluded that the severance pay 
offering, if approved by the BOT, should be structured as an optional one-time retroactive severance pay offering as 
outlined in the attached resolution.  Approval of Resolution 2020-06 would have a maximum fiscal impact of 
$25,863.11.      

Page 15 of 134



1 

 

RESOLUTION 2020 - 06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT; 
AUTHORIZING AN OPTIONAL ONE-TIME 
RETROACTIVE TWO-WEEK SERVERANCE PAY 
AMOUNT TO DISTRICT EMPLOYEES LAID OFF DUE TO 
COVID-19; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 is a severe acute respiratory illness that can spread among 

humans through respiratory transmission and presents with symptoms similar to those of 

influenza; and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 1, 2020, Executive Order 20-51 was rendered by Governor Ron 

DeSantis, directing the Florida Department of Health to issue a Public Health Emergency; and; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 1, 2020, the State Surgeon General and State Health Officer 

declared a Public Health Emergency exists in the State of Florida as a result of COVID-19; and; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 9, 2020 Governor DeSantis declared a State of Emergency in the 

State of Florida due to the effects of COVID-19 via Executive Order 20-52 which expires May 8, 

2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 4.D.1. of Executive Order 20-52 authorizes each political 

subdivision within the State of Florida to waive any procedures and formalities required of the 

political subdivision by law pertaining to the performance of public work and taking whatever 

prudent action is necessary to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of the community;  

 

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2020, President Donald J. Trump and the Centers for Disease 

Control and Prevention ("CDC") issued the "15 Days to Slow the Spread" guidance advising 

individuals to adopt far-reaching social distancing measures, such as avoiding gatherings of more 

than 10 people, and in states with evidence of community spread, recommending restrictions to 

certain establishments conducive to mass gatherings and congregations; and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 29, 2020, the President extended such guidance to be in effect 

until April 30, 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 31, 2020, the President updated the guidance, renaming it "30 

Days to Slow the Spread", and along with the White House Coronavirus Task Force urged 

Americans to continue to adhere to the guidelines and expand community mitigation efforts; and 

 

Page 16 of 134



2 

 

WHEREAS, on April 1, 2020, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order 20-91 

providing that all persons in Florida shall limit their movements and personal interactions outside 

of their home to only those necessary to obtain or provide essential services or conduct essential 

activities until April 30, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, due to the situation associated with COVID-19, Barefoot Bay Recreation 

District has been forced to lay off fifty-one (51) full and part-time employees working at District 

facilities to date; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to lessen the financial hardship suffered by 

District employees laid off as a result of the COVID-19 situation by authorizing the offer of an 

optional one-time retroactive two-week severance pay amount to said employees;    

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 

SECTION 1.  OPTIONAL ONE-TIME RETROACTIVE SEVERANCE PAY 
OFFERING TO EMPLOYEES LAID OFF DUE TO COVID-19. 
 

1. The Board of Trustees acknowledges the financial hardship suffered by District 

employees who have been laid off due to the local, state, and federal level responses 

to COVID-19 and various Executive Orders issued by Governor DeSantis which have 

necessitated the closure of certain District facilities. 

 

2. The Board of Trustees hereby authorizes the payment of an optional one-time 

severance pay offering to District employees laid off by the District in response to 

COVID-19. 

 

3. District employees who have been laid off in response to COVID-19 may elect to 

receive a severance pay amount retroactive to the pay period ending March 29, 2020 

(the pay period in which layoffs occurred).  The amount of severance pay offered to 

qualified employees shall be calculated based upon the amount of pay earned by the 

laid off employee during the preceding two-week pay period ending March 15, 2020 

(the last full pay period ending prior to the layoffs taking effect).   

 

4. The total amount of severance pay offered (broken out by each laid off employee) is 

attached and incorporated to this Resolution as Exhibit “A.”  The total amount of 

severance pay offered is reflected on Exhibit “A” to be $25,863.11, which is the 

maximum amount of retroactive severance pay authorized to be paid to qualified laid 

off employees by the Board of Trustees.    

 

5. Any laid off employee who qualifies for a severance pay amount pursuant to this 

Resolution, but who had not exhausted any remaining available leave time as of 

March 29, 2020, shall receive their severance pay amount (if elected by the 

employee) at the same time that the pay check is issued for their final pay period in 

which any remaining leave time is exhausted.   

Page 17 of 134



3 

 

 

6. Acceptance of the optional one-time retroactive severance pay offering is not 

mandatory and is not an automatic entitlement.  Employees electing to receive the 

optional one-time retroactive severance pay shall be required to execute an 

acceptance and waiver of claims in a form acceptable to the District prior to receiving 

the severance amount.   

 

7. Payment of the optional one-time retroactive severance payment to employees shall 

be processed through normal payroll for District employees and shall be subject to all 

applicable payroll taxes and deductions.  

 

8. Acceptance of the one-time retroactive severance payment by an employee shall not 

entitle the employee to any additional employment benefits of any kind whatsoever 

beyond those held by the employee on the date of their separation from employment 

with the District.  The District shall have no other obligation to any qualified laid off 

employee accepting the one-time retroactive severance payment beyond the payment 

of the severance amount.    

 

9. Payment of the one-time retroactive severance payment is solely limited to the 

employees identified on Exhibit “A” and shall not entitle any other current District 

employee (not currently laid off in response to COVID-19) to any additional pay or 

other benefit.    

 

SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY: Should any section or provision of this Resolution be 

declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, that decision shall not affect the 

validity of the Resolution as a whole or any part thereof, other than the part so declared to be 

invalid. 

 

SECTION 3. REPEALING CLAUSE: All other Resolutions or part of Resolutions in 

conflict herewith, are to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE: This Resolution shall be in full force and effective 

immediately upon adoption and publication as provided by law.    

 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Trustee ___________________. 

The motion was seconded by Trustee ________________and, upon being put to a vote, that vote 

was as follows: 

 

Chairman Joseph Klosky   ______ 

Trustee Michael R. Maino   ______ 

Trustee Roger Compton   ______ 

Trustee Randy Loveland    ______  

Trustee Luann Henderson    ______ 

 

The Chairman thereupon declared this Resolution Passed and Adopted this 21st day of 

April 2020. 

Page 18 of 134



4 

 

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

By:  __________________________________ 

 JOSEPH KLOSKY, 

 CHAIRMAN  

 

 

Attest: __________________________________ 

       ROGER COMPTON, 

 SECRETARY 

Page 19 of 134



EXHIBIT "A"

Page 20 of 134



Board of 
Trustees 

Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020
Title: Shopping Center Lease for Building 2 Suite 3. Holy Canolli, L.L.C. 

(Lessee)
Section & Item: 8.B
Department: Shopping Center
Fiscal Impact: $14,876.64 Annual Rent, Property Taxes, and CAM, minus sales tax
Contact: Cliff Repperger, General Counsel, General Counsel, John W. Coffey 

ICMA-CM, Community Manager, Charles Henley, Finance Manager
Attachments: Draft Lease Agreement McCarthy (Holy Canolli) (Revised 041420), 

Draft Guaranty John McCarthy
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Consideration of Draft Lease Agreement as tentatively approved February 25, 2020.
 

Background and Summary Information

On February 25, 2020, the BOT approved a written term sheet and directed General Counsel Repperger to prepare a 
Draft Lease Agreement (and Draft Guaranty) incorporating its terms.  The intended Lessee, General Counsel Repperger, 
and BBRD Administrative Staff have negotiated the attached Draft Lease Agreement. The initial proposal listed “John W. 
McCarthy” as Lessee.  The Lessee has requested that the Lessee be designated as “Holy Canolli, L.L.C.” a Florida Limited 
Liability Company, of which, Mr. McCarthy is a Manager. 
 
The Community Manager recommends the BOT approve of the Draft Lease Agreement and Draft Guaranty. 

Page 21 of 134



___________ 1 of 16 ___________ 
Lessor’s initial  Lessee’s Initial 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ____ day of ___________, 

2020 by and between BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT, a mobile home park 

recreation district organized and existing under the provisions of Section 418.30, et seq., Florida 

Statutes and Brevard County Ordinance No. 84-05, 625 Barefoot Blvd., Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 

(hereinafter referred to as “Lessor”) and HOLY CANOLLI, L.L.C., 635 Amaryllis Drive, 

Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 (hereinafter referred to as “Lessee”). 

 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 That Lessor, for and in consideration of the rents hereinafter to be paid by Lessee and the 

covenants herein to be made and kept by Lessee, hereby demises and leases unto Lessee that 

certain premises located in Brevard County, Florida, to wit: 

 

Bldg. 2, Suite 3 located at:  

937 Barefoot Blvd.  

Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 

 

1. Term. 
 

 (a)  The initial term of this Lease shall be for a period of five (5) years commencing on 

May 1, 2020 which shall be deemed to be “Commencement Date” of this lease, regardless of the 

date on which rental payments first become due pursuant to Paragraph 2 of this Lease Agreement  

and ending on April 30, 2025. The parties agree that the Lessee may take occupancy of the 

leased premises prior to the Commencement Date (upon joint execution of this Lease 

Agreement).   

 

 (b)  Provided that the Lessee is not in default of any provisions of this Lease Agreement, 

within sixty (60) days of the expiration of the initial term (or any renewal term), unless such time 

period is waived by Lessor, Lessee and Lessor may agree to renew or extend said lease for two 

(2), five (5) year renewal term periods upon the same terms, covenants and conditions as set 

forth herein, except as to the payment of rent as provided in Paragraph 2.  

 

2. Rent. 
 

(a) Lessee shall not be required to pay rent from May 1, 2020 through June 30, 2020 

or for sixty (60) days from the issuance of Brevard County Building Permits to a General 

Contractor retained by Lessee (if a permit application is submitted to the Brevard County 

Building Department on or before May 8, 2020), whichever is later. For purposes of this 

Paragraph, an attempt by a General Contractor retained by Lessee to submit a substantially 

complete permit application by May 8, 2020 shall constitute submission.  If said sixty (60) day 

period ends after June 30, 2020, Lessee shall pay a pro-rated amount of rent for the remaining 

period of the month in which the sixty (60) day period expires.  The base rent payable by Lessee 

to Lessor during the initial term of this Lease is $955.83 per month.  At the time monthly rental 

payments are made, Lessee agrees to pay to Lessor all applicable Florida and local sales and use 

Page 22 of 134



___________ 2 of 16 ___________ 
Lessor’s initial  Lessee’s Initial 

taxes that arise because of payment of rent, Common Area Maintenance (CAM) charges, and 

property tax to Lessor.  Furthermore, Lessee also agrees to pay, at the time rental payments are 

made their proportionate share of ad-valorem and non-ad valorem property taxes for the 

shopping center, which will be adjusted to actual at each year end.  The estimated proportionate 

share of property taxes at the start of the lease is $129.04 per month.   The Lessee also agrees to 

pay, at the time rental payments are made their proportionate share of CAM charges in the 

amount of $154.85 per month.  Said CAM charges may be increased from time to time pursuant 

to Paragraph 9(b) of this Agreement. Commencing from the Rental Payment Start date of this 

Agreement, Lessee agrees to pay to the Lessor throughout the term of this Lease its proportionate 

share of all property taxes which may be levied against the property by any taxing authority 

including all applicable assessments, without any allowance for any discount.  Sales tax on the 

amounts stated herein at the commencement of this Lease Agreement is anticipated to be: 

$86.78.  Total monthly payment due from Lessee to Lessor at the commencement of this Lease 

Agreement is estimated to be:  $1,326.50. 
 

Each monthly installment of rent, real estate taxes, CAM charges, and sales taxes shall be 

due and payable in advance or on the first day of each and every month during the term of the 

Lease without deduction, offset, prior notice or demand.  If any of said payments are not 

received within five (5) days of the date due, Lessee shall pay Lessor a Twenty Five and 00/100 

Dollars, ($25.00), late fee.  If the lease term commences on a date that is not the first day of the 

month, or if the lease termination date is not the last day of the month, a prorated monthly 

installment shall be paid at the then current rate for the fractional month during which the Lease 

commences and/or terminates. 

 

(b) All rental installments, together with any other payments required to be made by 

Lessee to Lessor hereunder, shall be payable with United States currency at the office of Lessor 

located at 625 Barefoot Boulevard, Barefoot Bay, Florida, 32976 or at such other location as may 

be hereafter specified by Lessor to Lessee. 

 

(c) The base rent provided for in Paragraph 2(a) shall remain fixed during the first 

two (2) years of this Lease Agreement.  Thereafter, beginning on May 1, 2022, and occurring 

annually on May 1 of each successive year of the initial term and each successive year of any 

renewal period, the total amount of annual base rent provided for in Paragraph 2(a) shall be 

increased each and every year by 1.75%.     

 

(d) As part of this Lease Agreement, Lessee shall have a right of first/last refusal on 

any offer of rental of the vault area adjacent to the leased premises made by any third party to 

Lessor.  Lessee may initially make and/or may match any offer or counter-offer made by any 

third party to the Lessor to lease the vault area adjacent to the leased premises.  Lessor is under 

no obligation to lease the vault area to any party, including Lessee, and shall have the sole 

discretion whether to lease the vault area to any party at any time.  In the event that Lessor 

subsequently agrees to lease the vault area to Lessee, this Lease Agreement may be amended to 

include the vault area and may increase the rental amounts to be paid under Paragraph 2(a) 

accordingly.  This Paragraph shall not be deemed or interpreted to be an option of the Lessee that 

Lessee may unilaterally enforce.    

 

Page 23 of 134



___________ 3 of 16 ___________ 
Lessor’s initial  Lessee’s Initial 

3. Past Due Rent.  All past due rent, including any other payment required to be 

made by Lessee to Lessor, and any other amount which Lessor has advanced in order to cure 

Lessee’s default hereunder, shall bear interest at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum 

from the date due, or that date of payment, as the case may be, until repaid.  Any amounts 

advanced by Lessor pursuant to the terms and provisions of this Lease, shall be repaid to Lessor 

by Lessee within ten (10) days after written demand therefore. 

 

4. Security for Payment of Rents.  Lessee hereby pledges with and assigns unto 

Lessor all of the furniture, fixtures, goods and chattels of said Lessee which may be brought or 

put on the leased premises, and which are presently on said premises, as security for the payment 

of the rents herein reserved, and agrees that Lessor’s lien for the payment of said rent may be 

enforced by distress, foreclosure or otherwise at the option of Lessor. 

 

5. Security Deposit; Key Deposit: 
 

 (a) Concurrently with Lessee’s execution of this Lease, Lessee shall deposit with 

Lessor the sum of $2,653.00.  Said sum shall be held by Lessor as a security deposit for the 

faithful performance by Lessee of all of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease to be 

kept and performed by Lessee during the term hereof.  If Lessee defaults with respect to any 

provision of this Lease, including but not limited to, the provision relating to the payment of rent 

and any of the monetary sums due herewith, Lessor may (but shall not be required to) use, apply 

or retain all or any part of this security deposit for the payment of any amount which Lessor may 

spend by reason of Lessee’s default or to compensate Lessor for any other loss or damage which 

Lessor may suffer by reason of Lessee’s default.  If any portion of said deposit is so used or 

applied, Lessee shall, within ten (10) days after written demand therefore, deposit cash with 

Lessor in an amount sufficient to restore the security deposit to its original amount; Lessee’s 

failure to do so shall be a material breach of this Lease.  Lessor shall not be required to keep the 

security deposit separate from Lessor’s general funds, and Lessee shall not be entitled to interest 

on such deposit. 

 

 (b) If Lessee shall fully and faithfully perform every provision of this Lease to be 

performed by Lessee, the security deposit or any balance thereof shall be returned to Lessee (or, 

at Lessor’s option, to the last assignee of Lessee’s interest hereunder) at the expiration of the 

lease term and after Lessee has vacated the leased premises.  In the event of termination of 

Lessor’s interest in this Lease, Lessor shall transfer said deposit to Lessor’s successor-in-interest 

whereupon Lessee agrees to release Lessor from liability from the return of such deposit or the 

account therefore. 

 

(c) In addition to the security deposit required as provided herein above, Lessee shall 

deposit with Lessor the sum of Twenty-Five and 00/100 Dollars ($25.00) for each key to the 

leased premises provided to Lessee by Lessor.  If Lessee at any time requires a replacement key 

or fails to return all keys to the leased premises to Lessor upon termination of this Lease, Lessor 

may retain the applicable key deposit to compensate Lessor for all costs incurred in replacing the 

lost or unreturned key(s).  Upon termination of this Lease and Lessee’s return of the key(s) to the 

leased premises to Lessor, Lessee shall be entitled to the return of the applicable key deposit. 

 

Page 24 of 134



___________ 4 of 16 ___________ 
Lessor’s initial  Lessee’s Initial 

6. Taxes. 
 

(a) During the term hereof, Lessee shall, pay prior to delinquency, all taxes assessed 

against and levied upon fixtures, furnishings, equipment and all other personal property of 

Lessee contained in the leased premises, and when possible, Lessee shall cause said fixtures, 

furnishings, equipment and other personal property to be assessed and billed separately from the 

real property of Lessor of Lessor.  In the event any or all of Lessee’s fixtures, furnishings, 

equipment and other personal property shall be assessed and taxed with Lessor’s real property, 

Lessee shall pay to Lessor in share of such taxes within ten (10) days after delivery to Lessee by 

Lessor of a statement in writing setting forth the amount of such taxes applicable to Lessee’s 

property.  For the purpose of determining said amount, figures supplied by the Brevard County 

Property Appraiser as to the amount so assessed shall be conclusive.  Lessee shall comply with 

the provisions of any law, ordinance or rule of taxing authorities which requires Lessee to file a 

report of Lessee’s property located in the leased premises. 

 

(b) Lessor shall also pay or cause to be paid, prior to delinquency, all real estate taxes 

and assessments levied or charged against the leased premises. 

 

 7.  Alterations and Additions.  Lessee shall not make or allow to be made any 

alterations or physical additions or improvements in or to the leased premises without first 

obtaining an Acknowledgement of Work to be Performed in writing from Lessor.   Unless 

otherwise agreed to in writing, any alterations, physical additions or improvements to the leased 

premises made by Lessee shall at once become the property of Lessor and shall be surrendered to 

Lessor upon the termination of this Lease; provided, however, this clause shall not apply to 

movable equipment or furniture owned by Lessee which may be removed by Lessee at the end of 

the term of this lease if Lessee is not then in default and if such equipment and furniture is not 

then subject to any other rights, liens and interests of Lessor.  If required by Lessor, such 

alterations, additions or improvements shall be removed by Lessee upon the expiration or sooner 

termination of the term of this Lease and Lessee shall repair damage to the premises caused by 

such removal, all at Lessee’s cost and expense.  Lessee shall submit to Lessor plans and 

specifications for all alterations, demolitions, and additions at the time Lessor’s consent is 

sought.  Specifically, Lessee shall provide Lessor plans for all work planned to modify electrical, 

HVAC, plumbing and/or structural changes (excluding non-load bearing walls), a minimum of 

ten (10) business days prior to commencement of work so Lessor’s engineers can review such 

plans for compliance with any applicable building and life safety codes. Lessee agrees not to 

proceed with any planned work until an Acknowledgment of Work to be Performed is issued by 

Lessor in writing.  Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to inspect any work after 

completion.  Lessee is solely responsible for applying for, paying for, and obtaining any and all 

applicable permits required for any planned alteration, demolition, or addition to the leased 

premises.  Lessee shall be responsible for any enforcement action brought by any applicable 

permitting agency for failure to obtain required permitting prior to performing any alteration, 

demolition, or addition.   

 

8. Maintenance and Repair.  Lessor agrees to repair and maintain in good 

condition the roof, roof drains, sewers, outside walls, foundations and structural portions of the 

leased premises. Lessor specifically agrees to install a new electrical panel to handle the 

Page 25 of 134



___________ 5 of 16 ___________ 
Lessor’s initial  Lessee’s Initial 

equipment needs of Lessee; however, Lessee shall provide electrical specifications within ten 

(10) days of the Commencement Date of this Agreement.  Lessee shall be responsible for all 

other repairs and maintenance necessary including, but not limited to, work on the storefront, 

show windows, windows, door locks and hardware, window glass, interior decoration and 

painting, plumbing, heating, air conditioning and electrical facilities.  Lessee shall enter into a bi-

annual maintenance contract of the HVAC unit, and shall provide a copy of the contract and 

proof of annual service to the Lessor. Failure to do so will result in the Lessee responsibility for 

replacement of the air-conditioning unit. Lessee shall do all things necessary to keep the leased 

premises (except the roof, roof drains, sewers, outside walls, foundations and structural portions 

of the leased premises, which shall be maintained by Lessor), including the sidewalks and area 

adjacent to the leased premises, in a clean, neat and sanitary manner and in compliance with all 

laws, ordinances, rules and regulations of any public authority and in compliance with such rules 

and regulations that may be adopted from time to time by the Lessor that are applicable to all 

tenants in the Shopping Center of which the leased premises is apart.  Lessee shall also be solely 

responsible for all repairs required as a result of the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of 

Lessee or Lessee’s guests or invitees. 

 

9. Services. 
 

(a) Lessee shall during the term hereof pay prior to delinquency all charges for all 

electrical, water, sewer, and telephone service to the leased premises and shall hold Lessor 

harmless from any liability there from. 

 

(b) Lessor shall provide for maintenance and repair of parking and common areas of 

the Shopping Center.  Except as specifically provided for herein, Lessor shall not be obligated to 

provide any services to Lessee.  In addition, Landlord does not warrant that any such services 

provided to Lessee will be free from interruption due to causes beyond Lessor’s control.  In the 

event of an interruption of such services or delay in the restoration of such services, the same 

shall not be deemed an eviction or disturbance of Lessee’s use and possession of the leased 

premises or rendered Lessor liable to Lessee for damages by abatement of rent or otherwise, nor 

shall the same relieve Lessee from performance of Lessee’s obligations under this Lease. 

 

  Lessee shall pay Lessor its proportionate share of the cost of repair and 

maintenance expenses of the parking and common areas of the Shopping Center, including, but 

not limited to cleaning, common area utilities and repairs, maintenance, and replacement of 

sidewalks, landscaping, roofs, and painting and hurricane protection. Said proportionate share 

shall be based on the square footage of building which is occupied when repairs are made.  At 

the start of the lease, in order to ensure that the parking area and common areas are properly 

maintained, Lessee shall pay Lessor $154.85 a month, in advance, along with the proportionate 

property tax and required rental payments.  In the event that the monthly CAM payment does not 

satisfy the cost of said maintenance, Lessee shall pay Lessor his proportionate share of excess 

within ten (10) days of receipt of the statement which evidences such excess payment.  If Lessee 

fails to make said payment within ten (10) days of receipt of said statement, Lessee shall pay 

Lessor a One Hundred Dollar ($100.00) late fee for every month said payment is not made.  In 

the event Lessee does not pay said common area maintenance expense for two consecutive 

Page 26 of 134



___________ 6 of 16 ___________ 
Lessor’s initial  Lessee’s Initial 

months, Lessor, at its option, may terminate said lease and take all remedies permitted by 

Paragraph 21 herein. 

 

10. Parking.  No part of any parking area adjoining the leased premises is leased 

hereunder.  Lessor agrees that it will designate parking areas which shall be available to and used 

by customers of Lessee along with customers of other tenants of other portions of the building of 

which the leased premises form a part, and subtenants and concessionaires thereof.  Said parking 

area shall not be used by Lessee, subtenant, or concessionaire, except with the written consent of 

Lessor, in which event said Lessee, subtenant, concessionaire or employee shall park their 

automobiles in such place or places as shall be designated by Lessor.  Lessor shall have the right 

to at any time, and from time to time, to establish rules and regulations for the operation of said 

parking area.  Lessee further agrees that upon written notice from Lessor, Lessee shall provide 

Lessor a list of the automobile license number assigned to Lessee’s car and all employees or 

agents. 

 

11. Use.   
 

(a) The leased premises shall be used and occupied by Lessee as a bakery/food 

service establishment in accordance with any food service license held by Lessee and for no 

other purpose without the prior written consent of Lessor. 

 

 Lessee agrees that it is entitled to a maximum of two (2) tables and four (4) chairs 

for public use inside of the leased premises.  Lessee and Lessor agree that Lessee may place 

tables and chairs on the sidewalk in front of the leased premises as long as they do not violate 

any ADA or ingress/egress requirements for the property.  Lessee shall provide Lessor a general 

location sketch in advance of any place of tables and chairs on the sidewalk in front of the leased 

premises.   

 

(b) Suitability.  Lessee acknowledges that neither Lessor nor any agent of Lessor has 

made any representation or warranty with respect to the leased premises or with respect to the 

suitability of the leased premises for the conduct of Lessee’s business, nor has Lessor agreed to 

undertake any modification, alteration or improvement to the leased premises except as provided 

in this Lease.  The taking of possession of the leased premises by Lessee shall conclusively 

establish that the leased premises were at such time in satisfactory condition. 

 

(c) Lessee’s Acceptance. Lessee accepts the leased premises in the condition they 

are in on the date this Lease commences or Lessor grants occupancy, which ever occurs first.  

Lessee hereby acknowledges that it has received the leased premises in a thoroughly good and 

tenantable order, safe condition and repair of which the execution of this Lease, and Lessee’s 

taking of possession hereunder shall be conclusive evidence. 

 

(d) Zoning and Occupational License.  Lessee shall be solely responsible to 

determine that the purpose for which he intends to use the leased premises is allowed under the 

current zoning and occupational license rules and regulations.  Lessor makes no representations 

as to the permissible uses under the applicable zoning and occupational license rules and 

regulations. 

Page 27 of 134



___________ 7 of 16 ___________ 
Lessor’s initial  Lessee’s Initial 

 

(e) Uses Prohibited.  Lessee hereby agrees that: 

 

  (i) Lessee shall not do or permit anything to be done in or about the leased 

premises nor bring to keep anything therein which will in any way increase the existing rate or 

affect any fire or other insurance upon the leased premises or the real property of which the 

premises are a part or of any of its contents (unless Lessee shall pay any increased premium as a 

result of such use or acts), or cause a cancellation of any insurance policy covering said premises 

or real property or any part thereof or any of its contents, nor shall Lessee sell or permit to be 

sold in or about said premises any articles which may be prohibited by a standard form policy of 

fire insurance. 

 

  (ii) Lessee shall not do or permit anything to be done in or about the leased 

premises which will in any way obstruct or interfere with the rights of other tenants or occupants 

of adjacent property or injure or annoy them or use or allow the leased premises to be used for 

any unlawful or objectionable purpose, nor shall Lessee cause, maintain or permit any nuisance 

in, on or about the leased premises.   

 

  (iii) Lessee shall not use the leased premises to permit anything to be done in or 

about the leased premises which will in any way conflict with any law, statute, ordinance or 

governmental rule or regulation or requirement of duly constituted public authorities now in 

force or which may hereafter be enacted or promulgated. 

 

  (iv) Lessee shall not leave the leased premises unoccupied or vacant.  Throughout 

the term of this lease, the Lessee shall conduct and carry on in the leased premises the type of 

business for which the leased premises are leased. 

 

  (v) Lessee is prohibited from conducting business from 10:00 p.m to 5:00 a.m., 

unless the Lessor consents in writing.  Twenty-four hour operations are strictly prohibited. 

 

12. Insurance. 
 

(a) Public Liability. Lessee shall, at Lessee’s sole cost and expense, but for the 

mutual benefit of Lessor and Lessee, maintain throughout the term of this Lease general public 

liability insurance against claims for personal injury, death or property damage occurring in, or 

about the leased premises, and in, on, or about the sidewalks directly adjacent to the leased 

premises and  such other areas as Lessee, Lessee’s officers, agents, employees, contractors and 

invitees shall have the right to use pursuant to this Lease.  Such insurance shall have a minimum 

coverage of $500,000.00 for single occurrence and $1,000,000.00 for more than one occurrence. 

 

(b) Fire and Extended Coverage.  Lessor shall take out and keep in force during the 

term of this Lease, at Lessor’s expense, fire and extended coverage insurance on the building 

within which the leased premises are located, exclusive of Lessee’s fixtures, personal property 

and equipment, in an amount determined by Lessor. 

 

Page 28 of 134



___________ 8 of 16 ___________ 
Lessor’s initial  Lessee’s Initial 

 (c) Miscellaneous. The insurance policy or policies required hereunder of Lessee 

shall be written in companies licensed to do business in Florida, selected by Lessee, subject to 

the approval of such companies by Lessor.  Lessee shall, prior to opening for business in the 

leased premises, furnish from the insurance companies: certificates of coverage evidencing the 

existence and amounts of such insurance.  All such policies of insurance shall be issued in the 

name of Lessor and Lessee and for the mutual and joint benefit and protection of the parties 

hereto, but in no event shall such policies limit Lessee’s liability.  All such policies shall be 

primary, not contributory with and not in excess of the coverage which Lessor may carry.  All 

such policies shall contain a clause or endorsement to the effect that they may not be terminated 

or materially amended except after fifteen (15) days written notice thereof to Lessor.  Lessee 

shall have the right to provide such coverage pursuant to blanket policies obtained by Lessee 

provided such blanket policies expressly afford the coverage required by this Lease.  The failure 

of Lessee to obtain the insurance policy or policies required hereunder shall constitute a default 

under the terms of this Lease.  If Lessee does not take out such insurance or keep the same in full 

force and effect, Lessor may, but shall be under no duty to, acquire the necessary insurance and 

pay the premium therefore and Lessee shall repay to Lessor the amounts so paid promptly after 

demand.  Lessor’s purchasing of said insurance shall not affect Lessor’s remedies for Lessee’s 

default. 

 

 (d) Non-Waiver of Sovereign Immunity.  Regardless of the level or type of 

coverage obtained for the benefit of Lessor as described herein, Lessor does not intend that any 

provision of this Agreement shall in any way constitute a waiver of any defense or limit of 

sovereign immunity to which Lessor may be entitled pursuant to Section 768.28, F.S., or as 

otherwise provided by law.    

 

 13. Assignment.  Lessee covenants and agrees not to assign, transfer, mortgage, 

pledge or hypothecate the leasehold or to sublet the leased premises or any part thereof without 

the prior written consent of Lessor, which consent may be withheld in Lessor’s sole discretion.  

Any transfer of this Lease from Lessee by merger, consolidation or liquidation shall constitute an 

assignment for the purposes of this Lease.  No consent by Lessor to any assignment or subletting 

by Lessee shall relieve Lessee of any obligation to be performed by Lessee under this Lease, 

whether occurring before or after such consent, assignment or subletting. 

 

 14. Indemnification.  Lessee shall indemnify, defend and save harmless said Lessor 

from and against any and all claims, suits, actions, damages or causes of action arising during the 

term of this Lease for any personal injury, loss of life, or damage to property sustained in or 

about the leased premises by reason or as a result of Lessee’s occupancy thereof and from and 

against any orders, judgments or decrees which may be entered thereon and from and against all 

costs, attorney’s fees, expenses and liabilities incurred in and about the defense of any such 

claim or in the investigation thereof. 

 

 15. Subordination.  It is agreed by Lessee that this Lease shall be subject and 

subordinate to any mortgage, deed of trust, or other liens now on the premises or which may 

hereafter be made on account of any proposed loan to be placed on said premises by Lessor to 

the full extent of all debts and charges secured thereby; and to any renewals, extensions and 

modifications of all or any part thereof which Lessor may hereafter, at any time, elect to place on 

Page 29 of 134



___________ 9 of 16 ___________ 
Lessor’s initial  Lessee’s Initial 

said premises, and Lessee agrees upon request to hereafter executed any paper or papers which 

counsel for Lessor may deem necessary to accomplish that end.  That in default of Lessee’s 

doing so, Lessor is hereby empowered to execute such paper or papers, in the name of Lessee, 

and as the act and deed of said Lessee, and this authority is declared to be coupled with an 

interest and not revocable. 

 

 16. Liens.  Lessee shall keep the leased premises, and the property in which the 

leased premises are located, free from any liens arising out of any work performed, materials 

furnished or any obligations incurred by Lessee, it being expressly acknowledged that the 

leasehold interest hereby leased shall not be subject to any such liens. 

 

 17. Entry By Lessor.  Lessor reserves and shall at any and all times have the right to 

enter the leased premises to inspect the same, to submit said premises to prospective purchasers 

or Lessees, to post notices of non-responsibility and “For Lease” signs and to alter, improve or 

repair the leased premises and any portion of the building without abatement of rent and may for 

that purpose erect scaffolding and other necessary structures where reasonably required by the 

character of work to be performed, always providing that the business of Lessee shall not be 

interfered with unreasonably.  Notwithstanding the Lessor’s right of entry stated herein, if entry 

occurs during normal business hours or for a non-emergency situation, Lessor shall identify the 

purpose of the inspection/entry to the Lessee’s designated on-site representative prior to entry.  

Lessee hereby waives any claim for damages for any injury or inconvenience to or interference 

with Lessee’s business, any loss of occupancy or quiet enjoyment of the leased premises, and 

any other loss occasioned thereby.  For each of the aforesaid purposes, Lessor shall at all times 

have and retain a key with which to unlock all of the doors in, upon and about the leased 

premises, excluding Lessee’s vaults and safes, and Lessor shall have the right to use any and all 

means which Lessor May deem proper to open doors in an emergency, in order to obtain entry to 

the leased premises, and any entry to the leased premises obtained by Lessor by any of said 

means or otherwise, shall not under any circumstances be construed or deemed to be a forcible or 

unlawful entry into, or a detainer of, the leased premises or an eviction of Lessee from the leased 

premises or any portion thereof. 

        

 18. Casualty Damage.  In the event the leased premises are destroyed or so damaged 

by fire or other casualty during the term of this Lease so that they become untenantable, then 

Lessor shall have the right to render said premises tenantable by making the necessary repairs 

within ninety (90) days after the date of written notification by Lessee to Lessor of the 

destruction or damage and if said premises are not rendered tenable within said time, it shall be 

optional with either party to cancel this Lease and, in the event of such cancellation, the rent 

shall be paid only to the date of such written notification of the fire or casualty.  If the leased 

premises should only be partially damaged by fire or other casualty and Lessor chooses to repair 

said premises and the damage or destruction was not caused or contributed to by act or 

negligence of the Lessee, its agents, employees, invitees or those for whom the Lessee is 

responsible, the rent payable under this lease during the period for which part of the premises is 

uninhabitable shall be adjusted downward, proportionate with the share of the total space which 

is uninhabitable. 

 

 19. Condemnation: 

Page 30 of 134



___________ 10 of 16 ___________ 
Lessor’s initial  Lessee’s Initial 

 

 (a) If the whole of the leased premises or such portion thereof as will made the leased 

premises unsuitable for the purpose herein leased is condemned for any public use or purpose by 

any legally constituted authority, then in either of such events, the Lease shall terminate as of the 

date when possession is taken by such public authority and rental shall be payable by Lessee 

only to such date. 

 

 (b) If any part of the leased premises shall be condemned and taken without causing a 

termination pursuant to the above paragraph, then Lessor at its option shall have the right to 

either terminate the Lease upon written notice within sixty (60) days after said taking, or to 

continue the term of the said Lease, in which event the rental shall be equitably reduced in 

proportion to the space so taken (but not for parking space so taken), and Lessor shall, at its own 

cost and expense, restore the remaining portion of the leased premises to the extent necessary to 

render it reasonably suitable for the purposes for which it was leased, and make all repairs to the 

building in which the premises are relocated to the extent necessary to constitute the building a 

complete architectural unit. 

 

 (c) All compensation awarded or paid upon such a total or partial taking of the leased 

premises shall belong to and be the property of Lessor without any participation by Lessee, and 

Lessee hereby assigns to Lessor any award made to Lessee, provided, however, that nothing 

contained herein shall be construed to preclude Lessee from prosecuting any claim directly 

against the condemning authority in such condemnation proceedings for loss of business, or 

depreciation to, damage to, or costs of removal of, or for the value of, stock, trade, fixtures, 

furniture, and other personal property belonging to Lessee, provided that no such claim shall 

diminish or otherwise adversely affect Lessor’s aware. 

 

 20. Default.  Each of the following events shall be a default hereunder by Lessee and 

a breach of this Lease: 

 

 (a) If Lessee shall fail to pay to Lessor any rent or sales or use tax thereon, or any 

other payment required to be made by Lessee, as and when the same shall become due and 

payable and such failure to pay shall continue for ten (10) days after the same became due and 

payable; 

 

 (b) If Lessee or any successor or assignee of Lessee, while in possession, shall file a 

petition in bankruptcy or insolvency or for reorganization or arrangement under the Bankruptcy 

Act of any State, or shall voluntarily take advantage of any such law or act by answer or 

otherwise, or shall take an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or, if Lessee be a corporation, 

shall be dissolved, voluntarily or involuntarily; 

 

 (c) If involuntary proceedings under any such bankruptcy law or insolvency act, or 

for the dissolution of a corporation shall be instituted against Lessee or such successors or 

assignee, or if a receiver or trustee shall be appointed of all or substantially all of the property of 

Lessee or such successor or assignee; 

 

Page 31 of 134



___________ 11 of 16 ___________ 
Lessor’s initial  Lessee’s Initial 

 (d) If Lessee shall fail to perform or breach any of the conditions on Lessee’s part to 

be performed and if such nonperformance or breach shall continue for a period of ten (10) days 

after notice thereof by Lessor to Lessee, or if such performance cannot be reasonably had within 

such ten (10) day period and Lessee shall not in good faith have commenced such performance 

within such ten (10) day period and shall not diligently proceed therewith to completion; 

 

 (e) If Lessee shall vacate or abandon the leased premises for a period of ten (10) days 

or more; 

 

 (f) If this Lease or the interest of Lessee hereunder shall be transferred or assigned in 

a manner other than herein permitted; 

 

 (g) If Lessee fails to take possession of the leased premises on the term 

commencement date or within seven (7) days after notice that the leased premises are available 

for occupancy, if the term commencement date is not fixed herein, and if such occupancy date 

shall not be deferred in writing by Lessor; or 

 

 (h) If Lessee fails to pay the monthly common area maintenance fee for two 

consecutive months. 

 

 21. Lessor’s Default Options.  In the event of the occurrence of any default specified 

hereunder, Lessor may, at any time thereafter, without limiting Lessor in the exercise of any right 

or remedy at law or in equity which Lessor may have by reason of such default or breach: 

 

 (a) Terminate this Lease, resume possession of the leased premises for its own 

account, and recover immediately from Lessee the entire rent for the balance of the lease term. 

 

 (b) Resume possession and re-lease or rent the leased premises for the remainder of 

the term for the account of Lessee, and recover from Lessee, at the end of the term or at the time 

each payment of rent comes due under this Lease or Lessor may choose, the difference between 

the rent specified in the Lease and the rent received on the re-leasing or renting. 

 

 (c) In any event, the parties agree that the Lessor shall be entitled to recover all 

expenses incurred by reason of any breach, including, but not limited to, the entitlement to 

recover reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs in any action for eviction and/or for damages 

of any kind associated with the breach, including, butF not limited to, costs of re-renting and 

making required alterations to the leased premises. 

 

 22. Condition of Leased Premises upon Termination or Expiration: Lessee shall, 

upon the expiration or termination of this lease, quit and surrender the leased premises, broom 

clean, in good condition and repair, reasonable wear and tear excepted, together with all keys and 

combinations to locks, safes and vaults and improvements, alterations, additions, fixtures, and 

equipment at any time made or installed in, upon or to the interior or exterior of the leased 

premises (except personal property and other unattached movable trade fixtures put in at 

Lessee’s expense), all of which shall be the property of the Lessor without any claim by Lessee 

therefore, but the surrender of such property to Lessor shall not be deemed to be a payment of 

Page 32 of 134



___________ 12 of 16 ___________ 
Lessor’s initial  Lessee’s Initial 

rent or in lieu of any rent reserved hereunder.  Before surrendering the demised premises, Lessee 

shall remove all Lessee’s said personal property and unattached movable trade fixtures and, at 

Lessor’s option, Lessee shall also remove any improvements, alterations, additions, fixtures, 

equipment and decorations at any time made or installed by Lessee in, upon or to the interior or 

exterior of the leased premises, and Lessee further agrees to repair any damage caused thereby.  

If Lessee fails to remove any of Lessee’s personal property and trade fixtures, said property 

shall, at the option of the Lessor, either be deemed abandoned and become the exclusive property 

of Lessor, or Lessor shall have the right to remove and store said property, at the expense of the 

Lessee, without further notice to or demand upon Lessee and hold Lessee responsible for any and 

all charges and expenses incurred by Lessor therefore.  If leased premises are not surrendered as 

and when aforesaid, Lessee shall indemnify Lessor against all loss or liability resulting from the 

delay by Lessee in so surrendering the same, including without limitation, any claims made by 

any succeeding occupant founded on such delay.  Lessee’s obligation under this provision shall 

survive the expiration or sooner termination of this lease. 

 

 23. Signs.  Lessee shall have the right to erect one sign of the front of the leased 

premises.  Lessee shall obtain Lessor’s written consent prior to the erection or painting of any 

sign at the leased premises, which consent may be withheld in Lessor’s sole discretion.  Lessors 

discretion shall be based on the size, nature, exact location, design, style, wording thereof and 

illumination of the proposed sign.  Lessor reserves the right to use the exterior wall and roof of 

the leased premises, except as otherwise provided herein.  Lessee shall not inscribe, paint or affix 

any signs, lights, advertisements, notices, placards, marquees or awnings on the exterior of the 

leased premises, including but not limited to the windows, doors, stairs, hallways or vestibules, 

without first receiving the written consent of the Lessor.  No overhanging roof or projecting sign, 

placard, marquee or other advertisement and no paper or cardboard signs on doors or exterior of 

the leased premises, and no sidewalk racks or other display or vending machines shall be 

permitted.  Lessee may place signage in the front window of the leased premises, so long as such 

signage does not exceed 50% of the total window space.  Lessee shall, upon receiving a written 

request from the Lessor, remove any notice, sign, light, advertisement, placard, marquee, 

awning, sidewalk rack or other display or vending machine which Lessee has placed or permitted 

to be placed in, on or about the leased premises which, in the opinion of the Lessor, is 

objectionable, offensive or not in good taste, and if the tenant shall fail to do so, Lessor may re-

enter the leased premises and remove same at expense of Lessee. 

 

 24. Inability to Perform.  If parties hereto are delayed or prevented from performing 

any of its obligations under this Lease by reason of strikes, lock-outs, labor troubles, inability to 

produce materials, failure of power, restrictive governmental laws or regulations, riots, 

insurrection, war or other reason of like nature which is not the fault of the party delayed in 

performing the work or doing the acts required under the terms of this lease, then performance of 

such act shall be executed for the period of such delay or such prevention and the period for 

performance of such act shall be excused  for the period of such delay or such prevention and the 

period for performance of said act shall be deemed added to the time herein provided for the 

performance of any such obligation. 

 

 25. Estoppel Certificate:   
 

Page 33 of 134



___________ 13 of 16 ___________ 
Lessor’s initial  Lessee’s Initial 

 (a) Lessee shall at any time upon not less than ten (10) days prior written notice from 

Lessor execute, acknowledge and deliver to Lessor a statement in writing (i) certifying that this 

Lease is modified and in full force and effect (or, if modified, stating the nature of such 

modification and certifying that this Lease, as so modified, is in full force and effect) and the 

date to which the rent and other charges are paid in advance, if any, and (ii) acknowledging that 

there are not, to Lessee’s knowledge, any uncured defaults on the part of Lessor hereunder, or 

specifying such defaults if any are claimed.  Any such statement may be conclusively relied upon 

by any prospective purchaser or encumbrance of the leased premises. 

 

 (b) Lessee’s failure to deliver to deliver such statement within such time shall be 

conclusive upon Lessee (i) that this Lease is in full force and effect, without modification except 

as may be represented by Lessor, (ii) that there are no uncured defaults in Lessor’s performance, 

and (iii) that not more than one month’s rent has been paid in advance. 

 

 26. Transfer of Lessor’s Interest: In the event of a sale or conveyance by Lessor of 

Lessor’s interest in the leased premises or in any building of which the leased premises may be a 

part other than a transfer for security purposes only, Lessor shall be relieved from, after the date 

specified in any such notice of transfer, all obligations and liabilities accruing thereafter on the 

part of Lessor, provided that any funds in the hands of Lessor at the time of transfer in which 

Lessee has an interest shall be delivered to the successor of Lessor.  This Lease shall not be 

affected by any such sale and Lessee agrees to attorn to the purchaser or assignee. 

 

 27. Captions; Attachments; Defined Terms: 
 

 (a) The captions of the sections of this Lease are for convenience only and shall not 

be deeded to be relevant in resolving any question of interpretation or construction of any section 

of this Lease. 

 

 (b) Exhibits attached hereto, and addendums and schedules initialed by the parties, 

are deemed by attachment to constitute part of this Lease and are incorporated herein. 

 

 (c) The words “Lessor” and “Lessee,” as used herein, shall include the plural as well 

as the singular.  Words used in neuter gender include the masculine and feminine and words in 

the masculine or feminine gender include the neuter.  If there be more than one Lessor or Lessee, 

the obligations hereunder imposed upon Lessor or Lessee shall be joint and several; as to a 

Lessee which consists of husband and wife, the obligations shall extend individually to their sole 

and separate property as well as community and joint property.  The term “Lessor” shall man 

only the owner or owners at the time in question of the fee title or a Lessee’s interest in a ground 

lease of the leased premises.  The obligations contained in this Lease to be performed by Lessor 

shall be binding on Lessor’s successors and assigns only during their respective periods of 

ownership. 

 

 28. Entire Agreement: This instrument, along with any exhibits and attachments 

hereto, constitutes the entire agreement between Lessor and Lessee relative to the leased 

premises and this Agreement and the exhibits and attachments may be altered, amended or 

revoked only by an instrument in writing signed by both Lessor and Lessee.  Lessor and Lessee 

Page 34 of 134



___________ 14 of 16 ___________ 
Lessor’s initial  Lessee’s Initial 

hereby agree that all prior or contemporaneous oral agreements between and among themselves 

and their agents or representatives relative to the leasing of the leased premises are merged in or 

revoked by this Agreement. 

 

 29. Severability: If any term or provision of this Lease shall, to any extent, be 

determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of 

this Lease shall not be affected thereby, and each term and provision of this Lease shall be valid 

and be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 

 30. Cost of Suit: 
 

 (a) If Lessee or Lessor shall bring any action for any relief against the other, 

declaratory or otherwise, arising out of this Lease, including any suit by Lessor for the recovery 

of rent or possession of the leased premises, the losing party shall pay the successful party a 

reasonable sum for attorney’s fees and costs which shall be deemed to have accrued on the 

commencement of such action and shall be paid whether or not such action is prosecuted to 

judgment. 

 

 (b) Should Lessor, without fault on Lessor’s part, be made a party to any litigation 

instituted by Lessee or by any third party against Lessee, or by or against any person holding 

under or using the leased premises by license of Lessee, or for the foreclosure of any lien for 

labor or material furnished to or for Lessee or any such other person or otherwise arising out of 

or resulting from any act or transaction of Lessee or of any such person, Lessee covenants to 

save and hold Lessor harmless from any judgment rendered against Lessor or the leased premises 

or any part thereof, and all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees, incurred by 

Lessor in or in connection with such litigation. 

 

 31. Time; Joint and Several Liability: Time is of the essence of this Lease and each 

and every provision hereof, except as to the conditions relating to the delivery of possession of 

the leased premises to Lessee.  All the terms, covenants and conditions contained in this Lease to 

be performed by either party, if such party shall consist of more than one person or organization, 

shall be deemed to be joint and several, and all rights and remedies of the parties shall be 

cumulative and nonexclusive of any other remedy at law or in equity. 

 

 32. Binding Effect; Choice of Law: Subject to any provisions hereof restricting 

assignment or subletting by Lessee and subject to Section 13, all of the provisions hereof shall 

bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, legal representatives, 

successors and assigns.  This Lease shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida and 

venue shall be in Brevard County, Florida. 

 

 33. Waiver: No covenant, term or condition or the breach thereof shall be deemed 

waived, except by written consent of the party against whom the waiver is claimed, and any 

waiver of the breach of any covenant, term or condition shall not be deemed to be a waiver of 

any proceeding or succeeding breach of the same or any other covenant, term or condition.  

Acceptance by Lessor of any performance by Lessee after the time the same shall have become 

Page 35 of 134



___________ 15 of 16 ___________ 
Lessor’s initial  Lessee’s Initial 

due shall not constitute a waiver by Lessor of the breach or default of any covenant, term or 

condition unless otherwise expressly agreed to by Lessor in writing. 

 

 34. Surrender of Premises: The voluntary or other surrender of this Lease by 

Lessee, or a mutual cancellation thereof, shall not work as merger, and shall, at the option of 

Lessor, terminate all or any existing subleases or subtenancies, or may, at the option of Lessor, 

operate as an assignment to Lessor of any or all such subleases or subtenancies. 

 

 35. Holding Over: If Lessee remains in possession of the leased premises after the 

Lease expires or terminates for any reason and without the execution of a new Lease, Lessee will 

be deemed to be occupying the leased premises as a Lessee from month to month at the 

sufferance of Lessor.  Lessee will be subject to all of the provisions of this Lease, except that the 

fixed rent will be at a monthly rate equal to twice the amount of a single monthly installment of 

fixed rent at the rate in effect for the last month of the term of this Lease.  Additionally, Lessee 

shall also be responsible for any and all other consequential and actual damages incurred by 

Lessor for Lessee’s failure to surrender the premises as required.  The provision does not give 

Lessee any right to hold over at the expiration of the term of this Lease, and shall not be deemed 

to be a renewal of the Lease term, either by operation of law or otherwise. 

 

 36.  Abandoned Property: BY SIGNING THIS LEASE, LESSEE AGREES THAT 

UPON SURRENDER OR ABANDONMENT, AS DEFINED BY THE FLORIDA STATUTES, 

LESSOR SHALL NOT BE LIABLE OR RESPONSIBLE FOR STORAGE OR DISPOSITION 

OF LESSEE’S PERSONAL PROPERTY. 

 

 37. Notice:  All correspondence, submittals and notices relating to or required under 

this Agreement shall be sent, in writing, to the Lessor and Lessee at the addresses stated in the 

introductory paragraph of this Lease Agreement; unless either party is notified, in writing, of a 

change in address. 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36 of 134



___________ 16 of 16 ___________ 
Lessor’s initial  Lessee’s Initial 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 

date first above written. 

 

Signed, sealed and delivered 

in the presence of: 

 

Witness: 

 

  

Printed Name:   

 

  

Printed Name:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION 

DISTRICT 

AS LESSOR 

 

By:  

Printed Name:  Joseph Klosky 

As its: Chairman  

 

Date:  

   
 

Signed, sealed and delivered 

in the presence of: 

 

Witness: 

 

  

Printed Name:   

 

  

Printed 

Name:___________________________ 

  
JOHN MCCARTHY 
 
AS  LESSEE 
 
 
By:_________________________________ 
Printed Name: John McCarthy 

 

 

Date:  

 
 

Page 37 of 134



GUARANTY OF LEASE 

 

 

 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, and in consideration for, and as an inducement to 

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT, (hereinafter referred to as “Landlord” or 

“Lessor”) to enter into a Lease Agreement for commercial space in Barefoot Bay Recreation 

District with a Commencement Date of May 1, 2020 (hereinafter referred to as “Lease”, which is 

incorporated herein by reference) as “Landlord” with HOLY CANOLLI, L.L.C. (hereinafter 

referred to as “Tenant” or “Lessee”), JOHN W. MCCARTHY (hereinafter referred to as  

“Guarantor”) absolutely, unconditionally, and irrevocably guarantees to Landlord the full and 

prompt payment of all rent and all other charges to be paid by Tenant under the Lease and the 

full and timely performance and observance of all covenants, conditions, and agreements therein 

provided to be performed and observed by Tenant. 

 

The validity of this Guaranty of Lease (“Guaranty”) and the obligations of the Guarantor 

shall not be terminated, affected, or impaired by reason of (i) any forbearance, releases, 

settlements or compromises between Landlord and Tenant or any other guarantor, by reason of 

any waiver of or failure to enforce any of the rights and remedies reserved to Landlord in the 

Lease or otherwise; (ii) the invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of the Lease for any reason 

whatsoever; (iii) the relief or release of Tenant or any other guarantor from any of their 

obligations under the Lease by operation of law or otherwise, including, without limitation, the 

insolvency, bankruptcy, liquidation or dissolution of Tenant or any other guarantor or the 

rejection of or assignment of the Lease in connection with proceedings under the bankruptcy 

laws now in effect or hereafter enacted; (iv) the release, surrender, exchange, subordination, 

deterioration, waste, loss or impairment (including, without limitation, negligent, willful, 

unreasonable or unjustifiable impairment) of any collateral securing the Lease; or (v) any other 

act or omission of Landlord or Tenant which would otherwise constitute or create a legal or 

equitable defense in favor of Guarantor. 

 

Guarantor represents and warrants that it is the sole shareholder of Tenant, and, as such, 

has a material economic interest in Tenant and that the execution of the Lease will be of direct 

benefit to it, whether or not it shall ever occupy any portion of the Premises (as defined in the 

Lease).  This Guaranty will remain in full force and effect as to any renewal, modification, 

amendment, or extension of the Lease, any assignment or transfer by Landlord, any assignment, 

transfer or subletting by Tenant, any change in the status, composition, structure or name of 

Tenant or Guarantor, or any holdover by Tenant under the Lease, and as to any assignee of 

Tenant’s interest under the Lease.  

 

Notwithstanding the survival of this Guaranty with regard to any assignment of the Lease 

as described above, upon approval by Lessor of any assignment to any third party or entity to 

which Guarantor is not a shareholder, principal, officer, or director, Guarantor may request 

release from this Guaranty if a replacement Guaranty is executed by a shareholder, principal, 

officer, or director of any assignee to the lease agreement, or unless the requirement for such is 

otherwise waived by Lessor specifically in writing. Where a replacement Guaranty is deemed 

acceptable to Lessor, release of the Guaranty as described herein is in the complete and sole 

Page 38 of 134



 2 

discretion of Lessor, but shall not be unreasonably withheld by Lessor. This Guaranty shall also 

survive any expiration or termination of the Lease.      

 

If Guarantor, directly or indirectly, advances any sums to Tenant, such sums and 

indebtedness will be subordinate in all respects to the amounts then and thereafter due and owing 

by Tenant under the Lease.  Payment by Guarantor of any amount pursuant to this Guaranty shall 

not in any way entitle Guarantor to any right, title or interest (whether by way of subrogation or 

otherwise) in and to any of the rights or remedies Landlord may have against Tenant, unless and 

until all of the obligations of Tenant under the Lease have been performed, including 

particularly, but without limitation, payment of the full amount owing to Landlord under the 

Lease and this Guaranty. 

 

Wherever reference is made to the liability of Tenant in the Lease, such reference is 

deemed likewise to refer to Guarantor, jointly and severally, with Tenant.  The liability of 

Guarantor for the obligations of the Lease shall be primary; in any rights of action which accrues 

to Landlord under the Lease, Landlord may proceed against Guarantor and/or Tenant, jointly or 

severally, and may proceed against Guarantor without having demanded performance of, 

commenced any action against, exhausted any remedy against, or obtained any judgment against 

Tenant.  This is a guaranty of payment and not of collection, and Guarantor waives any 

obligation on the part of Landlord to enforce the terms of the Lease against Tenant as a condition 

to Landlord’s right to proceed against Guarantor. 

 

Guarantor expressly waives: (i) notice of acceptance of this Guaranty and of presentment, 

demand and protest; (ii) notice of any default hereunder or under the Lease and of all 

indulgences; (iii) demand for observance, performances, or enforcement of any terms for 

provisions of this Guaranty or the Lease; and (iv) all other notices and demands otherwise 

required by law which Guarantor may lawfully waive.  Guarantor agrees that if this Guaranty is 

enforced by suit or otherwise, Guarantor shall reimburse Landlord, upon demand, for all 

expenses incurred in connection therewith, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ 

fees. 

 

Guarantor agrees that in the event that Tenant shall become insolvent or shall be 

adjudicated a bankrupt, or shall file a petition for reorganization, arrangement or other relief 

under any present or further provision of the Bankruptcy Reform Act of 1978, or if such a 

petition be filed by creditors of said Tenant, or if Tenant shall seek a judicial readjustment of the 

rights of its creditors under any present or future Federal or State law or if a receiver of all or part 

of its property and assets is appointed by any State or Federal court, no such proceeding or action 

taken therein shall modify, diminish or in any way affect the liability of Guarantor under this 

Guaranty and the liability of Guarantor with respect to the Lease shall be of the same scope as if 

Guarantor itself executed the Lease as the named Lessee thereunder and no “rejection” and/or 

“termination” of the Lease in any of the proceedings referred to in this paragraph shall be 

effective to release and/or terminate the continuing liability of Guarantor to Lessor under this 

Guaranty with respect to the Lease for the remainder of the Lease term stated therein unaffected 

by any such “rejection” and/or “termination” in said proceedings; and if, in connection with any 

of the circumstances referred to in this paragraph, Lessor should request that Guarantor execute a 

new lease for the balance of the term of the Lease (unaffected by any such “rejection” and/or 

Page 39 of 134



 3 

\ 

 

“termination” in any of said proceedings), but in all other respects identical with the Lease, 

Guarantor shall do so as the named “Tenant” under such new lease (irrespective of the fact that 

the existing Lease may have been “rejected” or “terminated” in connection with any proceedings 

referred to in this paragraph).  In the event of failure or refusal of Guarantor to execute such new 

lease as therein provided, without limiting any of the legal or equitable remedies of Lessor on 

account of such failure or refusal, Guarantor agrees that Lessor shall have the right to obtain a 

decree of specific performance against Guarantor. 

 

Guarantor hereby waives, to the maximum extent permitted by law, all defenses available 

to a surety, whether or not the waiver is specifically enumerated in this Guaranty. 

 

All of the terms and provisions of this Guaranty inure to the benefit of the successors and 

assigns of Landlord, and are binding upon the respective successors and assigns of Guarantor. 

 

A determination that any provision of this Guaranty is unenforceable or invalid will not 

affect the enforceability or validity of any other provision, and any determination that the 

application of any provision of this Guaranty to any person or circumstances is illegal or 

unenforceable will not affect the enforceability or validity of such provision as it may apply to 

any other persons or circumstances. 

 

No modification or amendment of this Guaranty will be effective unless executed by 

Guarantor and consented to by Landlord in writing, and no cancellation of this Guaranty will be 

valid unless executed by Landlord in writing. 

 

If Tenant’s obligations are void or voidable due to illegal or unauthorized acts by Tenant 

in the execution of the Lease, Guarantor shall nevertheless be liable hereunder to the same extent 

as it would have been if the obligations of the Tenant had been enforceable against the Tenant. 

 

This Guaranty of Lease is governed exclusively by its provisions, and by the laws of the 

State of Florida, as the same may from time to time exist.  Venue to enforce this Guaranty shall 

be in any court of competent jurisdiction in and for Brevard County, Florida. 

 

EXECUTED as of the ______ day of ________________________, 2020. 

 

Witnesses:      Guarantor: 

  

  
          JOHN W. MCCARTHY 

Print Name:        635 Amaryllis Drive 

  Barefoot Bay, FL 32976 

  

       

Print Name: 

 

Page 40 of 134



Board of 
Trustees 

Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020
Title: Name the Facilities Contest
Section & Item: 8.C
Department: Adminstration, District Clerk
Fiscal Impact: TBD
Contact: Roger Compton, Secretary, Matt Goetz, Property Services 

Manager, John W. Coffey ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: email from Mr Baldwin, Name a building proposal, Feb 25 2020 

minutes_signed
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Review information provided by Mr. Baldwin and direction to staff.
 

Background and Summary Information
On February 25th, the BOT endorsed the name the facilities contest plan as presented by Mr. Baldwin and Trustee 
Compton. On April 8th, Trustee Compton forwarded an email from Mr. Baldwin with the following “winning” names for 
the buildings:
 
A - Atlantis
C - Columbia 
D - Discovery
E - Endeavor
  
Text from February 25th BOT meeting
At the January 10, 2020 BOT meeting, Mr. Baldwin presented his proposal and the BOT decided to have Mr. Baldwin 
and Trustee Compton refine the proposal and bring it back to this agenda. The text from the original agenda memo is 
provided below in italic. 
 
Historically, with the exception of the walking trail (TuTu Trail) and the Administration Building, facilities in BBRD have 
generic names with buildings using letters of the alphabet and pools using integers for names. Mr. Baldwin proposes 
having a contest to solicit names for facilities and voting by residents to select the new names. 
 
Staff cautions the reader to remember that placing new lettering on buildings and signs has a cost (amount depends 
upon desired quality of signage/letters).  Additionally, staff recommends the Administration Building not be included in 
the contest if the BOT wishes to pursue Mr. Baldwin’s proposal.
 
Staff requests direction from the BOT regarding this matter.

Page 41 of 134



1

John Coffey

From: Roger Compton <rcompton@bbrd.org> on behalf of Roger Compton
Sent: Wednesday, April 08, 2020 1:26 PM
To: John Coffey
Subject: Fwd: Name the facilities contest report for the BOT

 
John here is the message i received form George 
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ Forwarded message ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: George Baldwin <gbaldwin1947@live.com> 
Date: Sun, Apr 5, 2020 at 10:47 AM 
Subject: Re: Name the facilities contest report for the BOT 
To: Roger Compton <rcompton@bbrd.org> 
 

Hi Roger, 
 
Thanks for the reply. Because folks will be headed back north this month, we are going to announce the winners this 
coming week. We are pleased with the response the contest got under these trying circumstances. I hope the board 
agrees that the names are appropriate. We ran the contest on a shoe string and are very pleased for the prize donations 
from the golf course and food service. If approved I would hope a minimal expense would be involved to re‐sign the 
facilities. Thanks for all you have done. Stay healthy! 
 
George 
 
 

On Apr 5, 2020, at 10:15 AM, Roger Compton <rcompton@bbrd.org> wrote: 

  
That was actually a really good idea, I thought, to use the space shuttle theme.  I'm sure had 
circumstances been different you would have gotten a lot more chatter about the contest and more 
participation.  Coronavirus has understandably pretty well taken over our lives right now.  
 
This is scheduled to be on the agenda at our BOT meeting the last week of April.  When I get more 
information about the meeting I will let you know.  I assume there will be two objectives, one to 
announce the winners and the other for the BOT to vote on whether to formally adopt the changes. 
 
Thanks to you and your committee. 
Roger 
 
On Sat, Apr 4, 2020 at 10:50 PM George Baldwin <gbaldwin1947@live.com> wrote: 
 
The name the facilities contest committee met on Thursday, April2,2020, to review the contest entries. 
A total of 56 entries were made. Of those, 8 did not follow the contest rules and 1 voted to keep the 
existing names. This left 47 valid entries to consider. 
 
We felt that on entry captured the spirit of our area and provided names that would be easy to 
remember. The winning entry submitted by Peter Staples of Bouganvillea Circle is as follows: A‐Atlantis, 
C‐Columbia, D‐Discovery, and E‐Endeavor in honor of the space shuttles. 

Page 42 of 134



2

 
Since one person captured the top spot, the committee has decided to award runner up prizes to other 
names considered for an individual facility. 
 
Aloha, submitted by Debby Marriot of Macadamia Drive was chosen for the “A” building as being warm 
and welcoming. 
 
Coastal, submitted by Dot Murphy of Barefoot Circle was chosen for the “C” building as being 
appropriate for our location by the coast. 
 
Double Eagle, submitted by Kathleen Fortier of Gladiolus and also by Richard Shaw of Waterway was 
chosen for “D” and “E”.  These meeting rooms are at the golf course and this is a golf term. Double 
Eagle applies to both rooms. If only one side is to be used, it could be referred to as the D or E side of 
the Double Eagle meeting room. 
 
The committee would like to thank all who participated in the contest and congratulate the winners. 
We also sincerely thank the Barefoot Bay Golf Course and Food & Beverage for graciously donating 
prizes to the winners. 
 
Submitted by the name the facilities contest committee  
Sue Reddy 
Louise Crouse 
Carol Balbuze 
George Baldwin 

Page 43 of 134



Page 44 of 134



Page 45 of 134



Page 46 of 134



Page 47 of 134



Page 48 of 134



Page 49 of 134



Page 50 of 134



Page 51 of 134



Page 52 of 134



Page 53 of 134



Board of 
Trustees 

Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020
Title: Resolution Adopting Rules and Procedures for Meetings Via 

Communications Media Technology
Section & 
Item:

9.A

Department: Adminstration, District Clerk
Fiscal Impact: N/A
Contact: Cliff Repperger, General Counsel, General Counsel, John W. Coffey 

ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: Resolution Establishing Rules and Procedures for Meetings Via 

Communications Media Technology, Emergency Meeting Rules and 
Procedures Communications Media Technology

Reviewed by 
General 
Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Adopt Resolution 2020-04 Adopting Emergency Rules and Procedures allowing for Board of Trustees meetings via 
communications media technology.
 

Background and Summary Information
Given the COVID-19 situation, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order 20-69 suspending any Florida Statute requiring 
a local government body physical quorum to be present and allowing local government bodies to utilize 
communications media technology for meeting virtually under certain conditions. 
 
The attached Resolution, if adopted, will allow the Board of Trustees to meet via communications media technology.
 
The Community Manager and General Counsel Repperger recommend the BOT approve Resolution 2020-04. 

Page 54 of 134



1 

 

RESOLUTION 2020 - 04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT; ADOPTING 
EMERGENCY RULES AND PROCEDURES ALLOWING 
FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETINGS VIA 
COMMUNICATIONS MEDIA TECHNOLOGY; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING A 
REPEALING CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE AND SUNSET PROVISION. 

 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 is a severe acute respiratory illness that can spread among 

humans through respiratory transmission and presents with symptoms similar to those of 

influenza; and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 1, 2020, Executive Order 20-51 was rendered by Governor Ron 

DeSantis, directing the Florida Department of Health to issue a Public Health Emergency; and; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 1, 2020, the State Surgeon General and State Health Officer 

declared a Public Health Emergency exists in the State of Florida as a result of COVID-19; and; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 9, 2020 Governor DeSantis declared a State of Emergency in the 

State of Florida due to the effects of COVID-19 via Executive Order 20-52 which expires May 8, 

2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 4.D.1. of Executive Order 20-52 authorizes each political 

subdivision within the State of Florida to waive any procedures and formalities required of the 

political subdivision by law pertaining to the performance of public work and taking whatever 

prudent action is necessary to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of the community;  

 

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2020, President Donald J. Trump and the Centers for Disease 

Control and Prevention ("CDC") issued the "15 Days to Slow the Spread" guidance advising 

individuals to adopt far-reaching social distancing measures, such as avoiding gatherings of more 

than 10 people, and in states with evidence of community spread, recommending restrictions to 

certain establishments conducive to mass gatherings and congregations; and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 29, 2020, the President extended such guidance to be in effect 

until April 30, 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 31, 2020, the President updated the guidance, renaming it "30 

Days to Slow the Spread", and along with the White House Coronavirus Task Force urged 

Americans to continue to adhere to the guidelines and expand community mitigation efforts; and 

 

Page 55 of 134



2 

 

WHEREAS, on April 1, 2020, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order 20-91 

providing that all persons in Florida shall limit their movements and personal interactions outside 

of their home to only those necessary to obtain or provide essential services or conduct essential 

activities until April 30, 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 20, 2020, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order 20-69 

suspending any Florida Statute requiring a local government body physical quorum to be present 

and allowing local government bodies to utilize communications media technology for meeting 

virtually; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Article V, Section 1 of Brevard County Ordinance 84-05 and Article 

IV, Section 3 of the Rules for the Board of Trustees for Barefoot Bay Recreation District provide 

that a majority of the entire membership of the Board constitutes a quorum for the transaction of 

business; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Attorney General Opinion 2000-52 holds that the Barefoot Bay Recreation 

District is an independent special district political subdivision of the State of Florida; and 

 

WHEREAS, Barefoot Bay Recreation District is registered as an independent special 

district political subdivision of the State of Florida with the State of Florida Department of 

Economic Opportunity; and  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Executive Order 20-52 and 20-69 Barefoot Bay Recreation 

District may adopt emergency rules pursuant to Fla. Stat. Sec. 120.54 (4) and Fla. Stat. Sec. 

252.46; and 

 

WHEREAS, due to the situation associated with COVID-19 the Board of Trustees of 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District intends to conduct meetings via the use of communications 

media technology and desires to adopt rules consistent with Fla. Stat. Sec. 120.54 (4) and Fla. 

Stat. Sec. 120.54 (5)(b)2 in accordance with Executive Orders 20-52 and 20-69 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 

SECTION 1.  MEETINGS VIA COMMUNICATIONS MEDIA TECHNOLOGY. 
 
The Board of Trustees of Barefoot Bay Recreation District may conduct all meetings, 

including regular, special, emergency, and workshops either physically or via communications 

media technology.  When conducting meetings via communications media technology, the 

emergency rules attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “A” shall apply.  

 

SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY: Should any section or provision of this Resolution be 

declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, that decision shall not affect the 

validity of the Resolution as a whole or any part thereof, other than the part so declared to be 

invalid. 

 

Page 56 of 134



3 

 

SECTION 3. REPEALING CLAUSE: All other Resolutions or part of Resolutions in 

conflict herewith, are to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE AND SUNSET PROVISION: This Resolution 

shall be in full force and effective immediately upon adoption and publication as provided by 

law.  This Resolution shall expire and be of no further effect upon the expiration of Executive 

Orders 20-52 and 20-69 or as such Executive Orders may be renewed or extended.  

 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Trustee ___________________. 

The motion was seconded by Trustee ________________and, upon being put to a vote, that vote 

was as follows: 

 

Chairman Joseph Klosky   ______ 

Trustee Michael R. Maino   ______ 

Trustee Roger Compton   ______ 

Trustee Randy Loveland    ______  

Trustee Luann Henderson    ______ 

 

The Chairman thereupon declared this Resolution Passed and Adopted this 21st day of 

April 2020. 

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

By:  __________________________________ 

 JOSEPH KLOSKY, 

 CHAIRMAN  

 

 

Attest: __________________________________ 

       ROGER COMPTON, 

 SECRETARY 

Page 57 of 134



EXHIBIT “A” 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District  
Board of Trustees  

Communication Media Technology Rules and Procedures  
  
  
The COVID-19 pandemic has created the need to modify procedures for all Barefoot Bay 
Recreation District Board of Trustees meetings, including all regular, special, emergency, and 
workshop meetings. During the effective dates of Executive Orders 20-52 and 20-69, as such 
Executive Orders may be modified or extended, the following rules and procedures shall apply:   
  
1. Any and all physical quorum requirements for the Board of Trustees to conduct business 
are hereby suspended.    
 
2. The Board of Trustees may continue to meet in-person in Building D & E.  Social distancing 
guidelines shall be applicable to any in-person Board of Trustees meetings.  No members of the 
public may attend any in-person meeting of the Board of Trustees.  The only individuals permitted 
to attend in-person meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be the individual Trustees, the 
Community Manager, the District Clerk, the District General Counsel, and any BBRD Staff 
member(s) authorized by the Community Manager.    

  
3. If technologically possible, any Trustee may participate at an in-person meeting of the 
Board of Trustees via telephone or virtual capability and may count toward the Board’s quorum 
requirement. 
   
4. If the Board of Trustees conducts a meeting in-person, the meeting shall be simulcast live 
via a communications media technology platform that will be accessible remotely by the general 
public.  The communications media technology used for simulcast will allow members of the 
general public to submit written comments during appropriate audience participation 
segment(s) of the Board meeting.  The Clerk, or other designated BBRD Staff member, will read 
comments submitted by members of the general public submitted via communications media 
technology during the appropriate audience participation segment(s) of the Board meeting. 

 
5. Members of the public may submit written comments via email or delivery to the District 
Clerk in advance of the meeting.  Such comments shall be submitted no later than twenty-four 
(24) hours prior to the meeting.  The District Clerk, or other designated BBRD Staff member, shall 
read such comments into the record during the appropriate audience participation segment(s) 
of the Board meeting.  

  
6. A telephonic conference call line shall be opened during appropriate audience 
participation segment(s) of the Board meeting.  When the conference call line is open, members 
of the public participating must identify themselves and may provide verbal comment (subject 
to a three (3)-minute time limit).  Prior to any making verbal comment, members of the public 
participating via telephone must keep their phones on mute and must turn the volume down on 

Page 58 of 134



the communications media technology they are using to view the Board meeting.  Failure to 
adhere to this rule may result in the termination of public participation via the telephone 
conference call line at the discretion of the Chair.  Other than providing public comment as 
provided herein, members of the public may not attend the meeting via telephone.  The 
telephone conference call line will be disabled after any audience participation segment(s) of the 
Board meeting.    

  
7. There will be a physical public access point in Building A, which will allow members of the 
public to view the meeting simulcast in-person if desired.   Social distancing guidelines shall apply 
in Building A, and the number of attendees will be capped if safe capacity is exceeded in the sole 
discretion of BBRD Staff.  A telephone line will be offered at Building A for telephone participation 
during appropriate audience participation segment(s) of the Board meeting.   Written comments 
may be submitted to a designated BBRD Staff member at Building A in advance of any audience 
participation segment(s) of the Board meeting.  If such written comments are submitted in 
advance of any audience participation segment(s) of the Board meeting, the designated BBRD 
Staff member shall relay them to the Clerk, or designated in-person BBRD Staff member, for 
reading into the record at the appropriate time.  Notice of all Board of Trustees meetings shall 
include information regarding location and access for in-person viewing of the simulcast of the 
meeting at Building A.  

 
8. Notice of all Board of Trustees meetings shall include publication of the electronic 
simulcast link address and telephone conference call dial-in and passcode participation 
information for verbal public comment.  Both the electronic simulcast link address and telephone 
conference call dial-in and passcode will be provided on the District’s website in advance of the 
Board meeting.  Agendas will continue to be posted on the District’s website in accordance with 
Fla. Stat. Sec. 189.069(2)(a)16.    
   
 

Page 59 of 134



Board of 
Trustees 

Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020
Title: Temporary Suspension of ARCC Meeting and Permit Approval 

Procedures
Section & Item: 9.B
Department: Resident Relations, DOR
Fiscal Impact: N/A
Contact: Cliff Repperger, General Counsel, General Counsel, John W. Coffey 

ICMA-CM, Community Manager, Richard Armington, Resident 
Relations Manager

Attachments: Resolution Temporarily Suspending ARCC Quorum Requirements 
During COVID-19 State of Emergency, ARCC Minutes March 17 
2020, EO_20-52

Reviewed by 
General 
Counsel: Yes
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Adopt Resolution 2020-05 waiving ARCC physical quorum requirements and authorizing the Chairperson to execute 
permit applications (subject to ratification) where a quorum cannot be established.
 

Background and Summary Information
Article II, Section 1 (F) of the Amended and Restated Deed of Restrictions for Barefoot Bay governs the quorum and 
conduct of business of the Architectural Review and Control Committee for Barefoot Bay and requires a physical 
quorum to conduct business. 
 
Given the COVID-19 situation, the ARCC has requested that the Chairperson be authorized to execute permits where a 
quorum cannot be established.
 
On March 20, 2020, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order 20-69 suspending any Florida Statute requiring a local 
government body physical quorum to be present and allowing local government bodies to utilize communications 
media technology for meeting virtually under certain conditions. 
 
The attached Resolution (2020-05), if adopted, will allow the ARCC to meet via communications media technology or to 
allow the Chairperson to execute ARCC permits (at the recommendation of BBRD Staff) if a quorum cannot be 
established, subject to subsequent ratification by the full ARCC.  
 
The Community Manager and General Counsel Repperger recommend the BOT approve  Resolution 2020-05.

Page 60 of 134



1 

 

RESOLUTION 2020 - 05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT; 
TEMPORARILY SUSPENDING PHYSICAL QUORUM 
REQUIREMENTS FOR ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW AND 
CONTROL COMMITTEE MEETINGS; TEMPORARILY 
AUTHORIZING ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW AND 
CONTROL COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSON TO EXECUTE 
PERMITS IF A QUORUM CANNOT BE OBTAINED 
DURING STATE OF EMERGENCY RELATED TO COVID-
19, SUBJECT TO RATIFICATION;  PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND 
SUNSET PROVISION. 

 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 is a severe acute respiratory illness that can spread among 

humans through respiratory transmission and presents with symptoms similar to those of 

influenza; and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 1, 2020, Executive Order 20-51 was rendered by Governor Ron 

DeSantis, directing the Florida Department of Health to issue a Public Health Emergency; and; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 1, 2020, the State Surgeon General and State Health Officer 

declared a Public Health Emergency exists in the State of Florida as a result of COVID-19; and; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 9, 2020 Governor DeSantis declared a State of Emergency in the 

State of Florida due to the effects of COVID-19 via Executive Order 20-52 which expires May 8, 

2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 4.D.1. of Executive Order 20-52 authorizes each political 

subdivision within the State of Florida to waive any procedures and formalities required of the 

political subdivision by law pertaining to the performance of public work and taking whatever 

prudent action is necessary to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of the community;  

 

WHEREAS, on March 16, 2020, President Donald J. Trump and the Centers for Disease 

Control and Prevention ("CDC") issued the "15 Days to Slow the Spread" guidance advising 

individuals to adopt far-reaching social distancing measures, such as avoiding gatherings of more 

than 10 people, and in states with evidence of community spread, recommending restrictions to 

certain establishments conducive to mass gatherings and congregations; and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 29, 2020, the President extended such guidance to be in effect 

until April 30, 2020; and 

 

Page 61 of 134



2 

 

WHEREAS, on March 31, 2020, the President updated the guidance, renaming it "30 

Days to Slow the Spread", and along with the White House Coronavirus Task Force urged 

Americans to continue to adhere to the guidelines and expand community mitigation efforts; and 

 

WHEREAS, on April 1, 2020, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order 20-91 

providing that all persons in Florida shall limit their movements and personal interactions outside 

of their home to only those necessary to obtain or provide essential services or conduct essential 

activities until April 30, 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, on March 20, 2020, Governor DeSantis issued Executive Order 20-69 

suspending any Florida Statute requiring a local government body physical quorum to be present 

and allowing local government bodies to utilize communications media technology for meeting 

virtually; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Article II, Section 1 (F) of the Amended and Restated Deed of 

Restrictions for Barefoot Bay governs the Quorum and Conduct of Business of the Architectural 

Review and Control Committee for Barefoot Bay; and  

 

WHEREAS, due to the situation associated with COVID-19, the Architectural Review 

and Control Committee has requested that the Board of Trustees for Barefoot Bay Recreation 

District authorize the Chairperson of the Architectural Review and Control Committee to execute 

permit applications with a Quorum is not able to be obtained; and  

 

WHEREAS, Fla. Stat. Sec. 418.304 (12) and Article IV, Section 12 of Brevard County 

Ordinance 84-05 authorizes the Board of Trustees of Barefoot Bay Recreation District to adopt 

rules and regulations not inconsistent with existing deed restrictions and to use district funds in 

the administration and enforcement of such rules, regulations, and deed restrictions; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 

SECTION 1.  TEMPORARY SUSPENSION OF PHYSICAL QUORUM 
REQUIREMENT AND AUTHORIZATION OF ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW AND 
CONTROL COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSON TO ISSUE PERMITS SUBJECT TO 
RATIFICATION: 

 
The physical quorum requirement for the Architectural Review and Control Committee 

provided for in Article II, Section 1(F) of the Amended and Restated Deed of Restrictions for 

Barefoot Bay is hereby suspended during the duration of Executive Order 20-52 or as such may 

be renewed or extended.  

 

The Architectural Review and Control Committee may establish a quorum and may meet 

via communications media technology to the extent possible.  Any such meeting of the 

Architectural Review and Control Committee held via communications media technology must 

provide public notice of the same and a meaningful opportunity to participate to the general 

public, including both applicants and non-applicants.  

Page 62 of 134



3 

 

To the extent that the Architectural Review and Control Committee is unable to establish 

a quorum either physically or via communications media technology, the Chairperson of the 

Architectural Review and Control Committee is authorized to execute permits upon the 

recommendation of approval from Barefoot Bay Recreation District Staff to expedite processing 

of any permit.  Any permit executed by the Chairperson of the Architectural Review and Control 

Committee shall be ratified as approved by the full Architectural Review and Control Committee 

at the next meeting thereafter where a quorum can be established either physically or via 

communications media technology. 

 

SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY: Should any section or provision of this Resolution be 

declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, that decision shall not affect the 

validity of the Resolution as a whole or any part thereof, other than the part so declared to be 

invalid. 

 

SECTION 3. REPEALING CLAUSE: All other Resolutions or part of Resolutions in 

conflict herewith, are to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE AND SUNSET PROVISION: This Resolution 

shall be in full force and effective immediately upon adoption and publication as provided by 

law.  This Resolution shall expire and be of no further effect upon the expiration of Executive 

Order 20-52 or as such may be renewed or extended.  

 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Trustee ___________________. 

The motion was seconded by Trustee ________________and, upon being put to a vote, that vote 

was as follows: 

 

Chairman Joseph Klosky   ______ 

Trustee Michael R. Maino   ______ 

Trustee Roger Compton   ______ 

Trustee Randy Loveland    ______  

Trustee Luann Henderson    ______ 

 

The Chairman thereupon declared this Resolution Passed and Adopted this 21st day of 

April 2020. 

BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 

 

 

 

By:  __________________________________ 

 JOSEPH KLOSKY, 

 CHAIRMAN  

 

 

Attest: __________________________________ 

       ROGER COMPTON, 

 SECRETARY 

Page 63 of 134



BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 
BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
ARCC COMMITTEE MEETING 

625 Barefoot Blvd., NAB Building 
03/17/2020 

                      Minutes 
                          

• Pledge of Allegiance: Led by Chair Tom Nelson  

• Call to Order:  Chair Tom Nelson called the meeting to order at 9:00 am.  

• Roll Call:  Present:  Committee:  Chair – Tom Nelson, members Paul Voit, Hurrol Brinker with Alternates Al 
Grunow and Gary Gresko both were voting members.  Chair Vice Chair – Melba Lochmandy and member Ken 
Reed were excused. 

• Chairperson's Report:  Tom Nelson explained that the rescheduling of the ARCC Guidelines Workshop has been 
suspended until further notice. 

• Member's and other Reports: None  

• Approval of Minutes: 03/03/2020 – Approved as presented   

• In Attendance: BOT Liaison Joe Klosky, Resident Relations Manager Rich Armington, Ms. Bonnie Heck of 
Paradise Home Finders for 398 Egret Circle, Community Manager John Coffey and Sally-Ann Biondolillo 
DOR/ARCC Administrative Assistant. 

 
(2) Old Business:  
Permit   Address    Renovation/Repair    Contractor/Builder  
ARC19-000546 398 EGRET CIRCLE   NEW HOME PACKAGE    NATHAN HAYFORD 
Ms. Heck was present to discuss with the Stop Work Order with the Committee.  There is a discrepancy regarding the 
carport in which the carport roof needs to meet the roof line of the home.  The Committee explained what the approved 
in the hand-drawn plans, that they were under the impression that the roof line was where it needed to be.  Ms. Heck 
explained that the drawing was showing the 4th wall not actually the roof line.  Ms. Heck agreed to submit a new permit 
application and drawing package for the next ARCC Meeting. 
Motion to rescind the permit until another can be filed with accurate drawings regarding the carport and shed by Hurrol 
Brinker, Second by Al Grunow, Motion carried unanimously. 
 
New Business: 
(24) Consent Items:  Motion to approve by Paul Voit with the amendment of three additional permits that were 
originally missing from the agenda due to a clerical error, Second by Hurrol Brinker, Motion carried unanimously. 
Permit   Address    Renovation/Repair    Contractor/Builder  
ARC20-000108  515 PUFFIN DRIVE   Re-Roof     Hough Roofing 
ARC20-000109  970 WATERWAY DRIVE   Replace stucco skirting    Scott Thomas Stucco 
ARC20-000110  925 SEQUOIA STREET   Re-Roof     Coburn Roofing 
ARC20-000111  735 LARK DRIVE   Re-Roof     DC Roofing 
ARC20-000114  912 YEW STREET   Re-Roof     LUCKFIELD, JAMES T 
ARC20-000115  706 LANTANIA DRIVE   Replace windows & install water 

filter on left side of home @ the 
main     DOUGLAS STAGG 

ARC20-000118  910 PECAN CIRCLE   Install accordion shutters on all 
Windows    Atlantic Storm Protection 

ARC20-000119  528 PERSIMMON DRIVE  Install new siding and replace 
windows on the north & south 
sides only    Barefoot Services, Inc. 

ARC20-000123  886 CASHEW CIRCLE   Re-Roof     Endeavor Construction 
ARC20-000124  840 LYCHEE DRIVE   Re-Roof     Endeavor Construction 
ARC20-000125  1020 WATERWAY DRIVE  Re-Roof     Coburn Roofing 
ARC20-000126 722 GLADIOLUS DRIVE   Replace (8) window & screen work &  
      Repairing siding    Don’s Aluminum 

Page 64 of 134



BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 
BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
ARCC COMMITTEE MEETING 

625 Barefoot Blvd., NAB Building 
03/17/2020 

                      Minutes 
                          
Permit   Address    Renovation/Repair    Contractor/Builder 
ARC20-000127  1216 BAREFOOT CIRCLE  Re-Roof     All Pro Florida Roofing 
ARC20-000128 1073 MAINILA DRIVE   Re-Roof     AAA Rated Construction   
ARC20-000129 958 WATERWAY DRIVE   Re-Roof     Melbourne Roofing  
ARC20-000130  645 PERIWINKLE CIRCLE  Replace (4) windows    Jim Smith 
ARC20-000132  1152 BAREFOOT CIRCLE  Remove & replace decking on 

existing 10' x 20' deck   Tom Maguire 
ARC20-000134  827 HYACINTH CIRCLE   Re-Roof     Richard's Roofing 
ARC20-000135  403 LOQUAT DRIVE   Re-Roof     AAA Rated Construction 
ARC20-000137  620 PUFFIN DRIVE   Re-Roof     Florida Top Shield Roofing 
ARC20-000138  1105 ORIOLE CIRCLE   Install flagpole in center of front 

yard - set in concrete   Vincent Barnett 
ARC20-000142  900 WATERWAY DRIVE   Re-Roof     HUFNAGEL, GEORGE 
ARC20-000143  825 OLEANDER CIRCLE   Replace screens on raised patio & 

screen doors    Endeavor Construction 
ARC20-000145  1410 GARDENIA DRIVE   Replace (8) windows in sunroom  Barefoot Services, Inc. 
 
(13) Other applications for review:  
Permit   Address    Renovation/Repair    Contractor/Builder  
ARC20-000107  738 LARK DRIVE   Install 65' of 4' chain link fence 

with (1) gate    Palm Bay Fence 
Motion to approve by Paul Voit, Second by Gary Gresko, Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ARC20-000112  904 HAWTHORN CIRCLE  NEW HOME PACKAGE – Install new  

manufactured home/utility building/ 
concrete driveway/carport/screen 
room/concrete skirting   Laurie Crews 

Motion to approve by Paul Voit, Second by Hurrol Brinker, Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ARC20-000113  400 MACADAMIA DRIVE  Install privacy lattice panels on 

carport - approx. 20'    LOCKWOOD, JAMES L 
Motion to approve by Paul Voit, Second by Hurrol Brinker, Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ARC20-000116  913 JACARANDA DRIVE   Install 68' of 4' chain link fence with  

(2) gates    Palm Bay Fence 
Motion to approve by Hurrol Brinker, Second by Gary Gresko, Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ARC20-000117  904 PECAN CIRCLE   Install 65' of 4' chain link with (1) 

Gate     Palm Bay Fence 
Motion to approve by Hurrol Brinker, Second by Paul Voit, Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ARC20-000120  812 PERIWINKLE CIRCLE  Construct a screen enclosure under  

existing roof    Barefoot Services, Inc. 
Motion to approve by Hurrol Brinker, Second by Paul Voit, Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

Page 65 of 134



BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 
BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
ARCC COMMITTEE MEETING 

625 Barefoot Blvd., NAB Building 
03/17/2020 

                      Minutes 
                          
Permit   Address    Renovation/Repair    Contractor/Builder  
ARC20-000121  443 SEA-GULL DRIVE   Erect storage shed to existing utility  

room wall and existing slab.  LABARCA, HOWARD T 
Motion to approve by Hurrol Brinker, Second by Paul Voit, Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ARC20-000122  939 PECAN CIRCLE   NEW HOME PACKAGE – Install new  

home with new additions per plans Endeavor Construction 
Motion to approve by Al Grunow, Second by Gary Gresko, Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ARC20-000131  443 EGRET CIRCLE   NEW HOME PACKAGE – install new  

home/carport/utility room/all concrete 
& stucco skirting   Endeavor Construction 

Motion to approve by Al Grunow, Second by Paul Voit, Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ARC20-000133  1221 BAREFOOT CIRCLE  Install 45' of 4' chain link fence with  

(1) gate     Palm Bay Fence 
Motion to approve by Al Grunow, Second by Hurrol Brinker, Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ARC20-000136  907 HYACINTH CIRCLE   Replacing a wooden walkway   BEVINGTON, DONNA 
Motion to approve by Gary Gresko, Second by Hurrol Brinker, Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ARC20-000139  905 RED BUD ROAD   Install a 4' 4" x 4' 7" Rubbermaid 

storage shed to existing concrete 
pad in rear of the home   LA FOUNTAIN, PAUL S 

Motion to approve by Gary Gresko, Second by Hurrol Brinker, Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ARC20-000140  337 PAPAYA CIRCLE   Install 7' x 15' concrete slab   A Rated Concrete 
Motion to approve by Gary Gresko, Second by Paul Voit, Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ARC20-000141  337 AVOCADO DRIVE   Install concrete patio    A Rated Concrete 
Motion to approve by Gary Gresko, Second by Paul Voit, Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ARC20-000144  818 ORIOLE CIRCLE   Construct 10' x 12' screen room 

under carport w/1 door   Gregory Scott Bleeker 
Motion to approve by Gary Gresko, Second by Hurrol Brinker, Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Closing Remarks:  Mr. Coffey discussed the way upcoming meetings can be held due to the Governor’s Executive order.  
Tom Nelson made the motion for Mr. Coffey to ask the Board of Trustees and their next scheduled meeting to allow the 
Committee to hold the meetings as normal if there is a quorum.  If not, the permits will be handled by Staff, then given 
to the Chair and one member, if possible, for approvals.  
 
Discussion:  Motion to adjourn at 10:18 a.m. by Hurrol Brinker   
 
Adjournment: The next scheduled meeting will be Tuesday, March 31, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. in the NAB conference room at 
625 Barefoot Blvd.  
 

Page 66 of 134



BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT 
BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
ARCC COMMITTEE MEETING 

625 Barefoot Blvd., NAB Building 
03/17/2020 

                      Minutes 
                          

Sally-Ann Biondolillo 

____________________________ 
Sally-Ann Biondolillo 
ARCC/DOR Administrative Assistant  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Any person desiring to appeal any decision made by the Violations Committee, with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, will need a record of 
the proceedings for such purposes, must insure that a verbatim record and transcript of the proceedings, which record includes the testimony and evidence which 
the appeal is based. It shall be the responsibility of the person desiring to appeal any decision to prepare a verbatim record and transcript at his/her expense, as the 
District does not provide one. ATTN: PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES. In accordance with the Americans with disabilities Act and Sect.286.26, Florida Statutes, persons 
needing special accommodations to participate in this proceeding shall, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting, contact the DOR Enforcement Staff at (772) 664-4722.  

Page 67 of 134



Page 68 of 134



Page 69 of 134



Page 70 of 134



Page 71 of 134



Page 72 of 134



Page 73 of 134



Page 74 of 134



Board of 
Trustees 

Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020
Title: DOR Violation 20-000885 922 Fir Street 
Section & Item: 9.C.i
Department: Resident Relations, DOR
Fiscal Impact: N/A
Contact: Richard Armington, Resident Relations Manager, John W. 

Coffey ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: Statement of Violation 20-000885
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: No
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Review violation and referral to Property Services.
 

Background and Summary Information
Article III, Section 2 (A) (D) - Lawn and Landscape Recurring Maintenance Condition of Prop. (A) (D) Lawn & Landscape 
(Recurring Maintenance)
First Violation occurred on 3/23/2020, three follow ups and pictures have been done since first Violation. Staff has 
signed Affidavit of Notices and attached four pictures. Respondent has been notified by First Class Mail and Certified 
Mail.Property posted.
 
Staff recommends that the BOT refer this Violation to Property Services to bring the property into compliance per 
Resolution 2015-17.  If the BOT brings any such action to enforce the DOR, the charge for such action shall be charged 
to the Respondents account and shall constitute as a lien.

Page 75 of 134



BAREFOOT BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

    BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT
                                   Petitioner
    Vs                                                                                                        Case no. 20-000885
 
  #615/ 20-000885
    GARCIA, ROSARIO H
    922 FIR STREET 
    BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976
                                   Respondent(s),
 

 STATEMENT OF VIOLATION 
PURSUANT to the Article(s) listed below, of the Barefoot Bay Deed of Restrictions, the undersigned DOR Enforcement Officer hereby gives notice
of a violation or violations of the Deed of Restrictions of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District, described herein.

SECTION(S) OF DEED OF RESTRICTION VIOLATION(S)

ARTICLE III, SECT. 2 (A) (D) Lawn and Landscape Recurring Maintenance Condition of Prop. (A)(D) Lawn & Landscape
(Recurring Mtnc.)
(A) The lawn and landscaped areas (including all trees, shrubs, and other vegetation) of each lot shall not be neglected and shall be regularly
pruned and maintained at the expense of the Owner or Resident of such lot. The lawn and landscaped areas shall be maintained free from all
underbrush, excessive overgrowth, all rubbish, and weeds and grass in excess of six inches in height. "Excessive overgrowth" shall mean any
vegetation that is not regularly pruned in accordance with common care for such vegetation, or presents an inherent danger in either
height,placement or as restricted in ARCC Guidelines.Dead vegetation on any lot is required to be promptly removed. 
(D) In the event that any lawn, landscaped areas, driveway, carport or home is not maintained in compliance with the requirements of Section
2, Section 10, or Section 11 of Article III, the Recreation District shall have the right to enter upon the lot and take any action reasonably
necessary to cause the home and lot to come into compliance with the requirement of subsections (A), (B), (C) of Section 2, Section 10, or
Section 11 of Article III. The expense of such action shall be billed by the Recreation District to the owner, shall be a personal obligation of the
owner, and shall be shall be paid by the owner within thirty days after the owner is provided with written notice of such expenses. If payment is
not made within the said thirty day period, the expense in question shall become a lien upon the said lot until paid, which lien shall have
priority as of the date of recording of a notice thereof in the public records of Brevard county; provided, however, such lien shall not be
superior to the lien for county taxes of the lien for the Recreation District's assessments and maintenance fees. The sum so due to the
Recreation District may be collected by either an action of law, or the Recreation District shall have the right at its discretion to proceed to
foreclose the above -described lien. In the event of such litigation, the Recreation District shall have the right to recover the costs thereof
including a reasonable attorney's fee.

LOCATION/ADDRESS WHERE VIOLATION EXISTS
Block # 110  Lot # 24
922 FIR STREET 
BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976 

DESCRIPTION OF VIOLATION(s): Lawn and landscape: Weeds need to be removed.

DATE OF VIOLATION FIRST OBSERVED: Mar 23, 2020

DATE OF OWNER/PERSON IN CHARGE GIVEN NOTICE OF VIOLATION:
March 23, 2020 via First Class
via Certified return receipt requested.

DATE ON/BY WHICH VIOLATION TO BE CORRECTED: April 20, 2020

Deed of Restrictions Staff
April 13, 2020 

Page 76 of 134



922 Fir. Lawn and landscape: Weeds need to be removed.
Mary Barry
Mar 23, 2020

922 Fir. Lawn and landscape: Weeds need to be removed.
Mary Barry
Mar 23, 2020

922 Fir. Lawn and landscape: Weeds need to be removed.
Mary Barry
Mar 23, 2020

Page 77 of 134



 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES

NOTICE OF HEARING

The Respondent must correct the alleged violation(s) contained in the enclosed Statement of Violation by the date set forth
therein and contact the Deed of Restrictions Enforcement Officer who signed the Statement of Violation to verify such
correction. If the Respondent disputes the existence of the violation(s) and wishes a hearing, notice is hereby given that a
Hearing will be conducted before the Board of Trustees at 07:00 PM on April 21, 2020 at 1225 Barefoot Boulevard,
Building D&E, Barefoot Bav, Florida. The purpose of this Hearing will be to determine whether or not the alleged
violation(s) exist.

If the violation(s) described in the Statement of Violation are corrected an then recur, or if the violations are not
corrected by the time specified for correction, the case shall be presented to the Board of Trustees. Notice is hereby
given that a Hearing will be conducted before the Barefoot Bay Board of Trustees at 07:00 PM on April 21, 2020 at 1225
Barefoot Boulevard, Building D&E, Barefoot Bay, Florida.
DUE TO THE FACT THAT ALL BOT MEETINGS ARE BEING STREAMED TO BLD A. THE HOMEOWNER WILL
NEED TO BE PRESENT AT BLD A TO PRESENT TESTIMONY ON THE VIOLATION. NOTIFY MODERATOR AT
BLD A THAT YOU ARE THERE FOR A VIOLATION CASE.

The Board of Trustees will receive testimony and evidence at the Hearing and make Findings of Fact as are supported by the
testimony and evidence pertaining to matters alleged in the enclosed Statement of Violations. The respondent is entitled to
testify and present evidence and witnesses at the Hearing, or may be represented by an attorney. If the property is found to be
in violation, all social, family, and golf memberships affiliated with the property will be automatically suspended.The Board
of Trustees shall have the authority to bring an action for injunctive or other appropriate legal or equitable relief in a court of
competent jurisdiction in Brevard County, Florida to remedy the violation. If the Board of Trustees brings any such legal
action, the Board of Trustees shall be entitled to an award of Attorney's fees and court costs incident to bringing such action.

IF ANY INDIVIDUAL WISHES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES WITH
RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE
PROCEEDING WILL BE REQUIRED, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE
UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED SUCH PERSON MUST PROVIDE A COURT REPORTER, COURT
STENOGRAPHER OR OTHER METHOD ACCEPTABLE TO A COURT OF LAW TO PROVIDE FOR SUCH
VERBATIM RECORD; THE DISTRICT DOES NOT PROVIDE SUCH RECORD (FS 286.0105).

THIS IS A PUBLIC MEETING. ALL INTERESTED PARTIES MAY ATTEND. THE FACILITY WHEREIN THIS
PUBLIC MEETING WILL BE HELD IS ACCESSIBLE TO THE PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED. IN
ACCORDANCE WITH AMERICAN DISABILITIES ACT, PERSONS NEEDING ASSISTANCE TO
PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT THE DEED OF RESTRICTIONS
ENFORCEMENT OFFICE AT 772-664-3141.

April 13, 2020 
Board of Trustees/Deed of Restrictions STAFF

Page 78 of 134



 
BAREFOOT BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
 

    BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT
                                   Petitioner
    Vs                                                                                                                     Case no. 20-000885
 
    #615 / 20-000885
    GARCIA, ROSARIO H,
    922 FIR STREET 
    BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976
                                   Respondent(s),

 RE: 922 FIR STREET 
Barefoot Bay, FL 32976

AFFIDAVIT OF NOTICES
STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF BREVARD

     BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared, Deed of Restrictions Enforcement Officer Mary Barry for the Barefoot Bay
Recreation District, who after being duly sworn deposes and says:

1. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was mailed to the respondent at
the above address by First Class mail.

2. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was mailed to the above
respondent by Certified mail, return receipt requested, a copy of which is attached hereto.

3. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was Posted at the above
referenced address a copy of which is attached hereto.

4. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was emailed to the Mortgage
Servicer for above referenced address, a copy of which is attached hereto.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT.
          Dated this              day of                          20      .

_________________________________________
Mary Barry, DOR Inspector

 
The Foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on              day of                          20      by Mary Barry, who is personally known to me and
did take an oath.
 

 

_________________________________________
Notary Public

State of Florida at Large

Page 79 of 134



Board of 
Trustees 

Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020
Title: DOR Violation 20-000931 1012 Royal Palm Drive 
Section & Item: 9.C.ii
Department: Resident Relations, DOR
Fiscal Impact: N/A
Contact: Richard Armington, Resident Relations Manager, John W. 

Coffey ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: Statement of Violation 20-000931
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: No
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Review violation and referral to Property Services.
 

Background and Summary Information
Article III, Section 2 (A) (D) - Lawn and Landscape Recurring Maintenance Condition of Prop. (A) (D) Lawn & Landscape 
(Recurring Maintenance)
First Violation occurred on 4/1/2020, three follow ups and pictures have been done since first Violation. Staff has signed 
Affidavit of Notices and attached four pictures. Respondent has been notified by First Class Mail and Certified 
Mail.Property posted.
 
Staff recommends that the BOT refer this Violation to Property Services to bring the property into compliance per 
Resolution 2015-17.  If the BOT brings any such action to enforce the DOR, the charge for such action shall be charged 
to the Respondents account and shall constitute as a lien.

Page 80 of 134



BAREFOOT BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

    BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT
                                   Petitioner
    Vs                                                                                                        Case no. 20-000931
 
  #1220/ 20-000931
    INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE LOSS
    1012 ROYAL PALM DR 
    SEBASTIAN, FL 32976
                                   Respondent(s),
 

 STATEMENT OF VIOLATION 
PURSUANT to the Article(s) listed below, of the Barefoot Bay Deed of Restrictions, the undersigned DOR Enforcement Officer hereby gives notice
of a violation or violations of the Deed of Restrictions of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District, described herein.

SECTION(S) OF DEED OF RESTRICTION VIOLATION(S)

ARTICLE III, SECT. 2 (A) (D) Lawn and Landscape Recurring Maintenance Condition of Prop. (A)(D) Lawn & Landscape
(Recurring Mtnc.)
(A) The lawn and landscaped areas (including all trees, shrubs, and other vegetation) of each lot shall not be neglected and shall be regularly
pruned and maintained at the expense of the Owner or Resident of such lot. The lawn and landscaped areas shall be maintained free from all
underbrush, excessive overgrowth, all rubbish, and weeds and grass in excess of six inches in height. "Excessive overgrowth" shall mean any
vegetation that is not regularly pruned in accordance with common care for such vegetation, or presents an inherent danger in either
height,placement or as restricted in ARCC Guidelines.Dead vegetation on any lot is required to be promptly removed. 
(D) In the event that any lawn, landscaped areas, driveway, carport or home is not maintained in compliance with the requirements of Section
2, Section 10, or Section 11 of Article III, the Recreation District shall have the right to enter upon the lot and take any action reasonably
necessary to cause the home and lot to come into compliance with the requirement of subsections (A), (B), (C) of Section 2, Section 10, or
Section 11 of Article III. The expense of such action shall be billed by the Recreation District to the owner, shall be a personal obligation of the
owner, and shall be shall be paid by the owner within thirty days after the owner is provided with written notice of such expenses. If payment is
not made within the said thirty day period, the expense in question shall become a lien upon the said lot until paid, which lien shall have
priority as of the date of recording of a notice thereof in the public records of Brevard county; provided, however, such lien shall not be
superior to the lien for county taxes of the lien for the Recreation District's assessments and maintenance fees. The sum so due to the
Recreation District may be collected by either an action of law, or the Recreation District shall have the right at its discretion to proceed to
foreclose the above -described lien. In the event of such litigation, the Recreation District shall have the right to recover the costs thereof
including a reasonable attorney's fee.

LOCATION/ADDRESS WHERE VIOLATION EXISTS
Block # 43  Lot # 31
1012 ROYAL PALM DRIVE 
BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976 

DESCRIPTION OF VIOLATION(s): Lawn and landscape: high grass/weeds/overgrown bushes

DATE OF VIOLATION FIRST OBSERVED: Apr 01, 2020

DATE OF OWNER/PERSON IN CHARGE GIVEN NOTICE OF VIOLATION:
April 01, 2020 via First Class
via Certified return receipt requested.

DATE ON/BY WHICH VIOLATION TO BE CORRECTED: April 20, 2020

Deed of Restrictions Staff

Page 81 of 134



1012 Royal Palm. Lawn and landscape: high grass/weeds/overgrown bushes
Mary Barry
Apr 13, 2020

1012 Royal Palm. Lawn and landscape: high grass/weeds/overgrown bushes
Mary Barry

Page 82 of 134



 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES

NOTICE OF HEARING

The Respondent must correct the alleged violation(s) contained in the enclosed Statement of Violation by the date set forth
therein and contact the Deed of Restrictions Enforcement Officer who signed the Statement of Violation to verify such
correction. If the Respondent disputes the existence of the violation(s) and wishes a hearing, notice is hereby given that a
Hearing will be conducted before the Board of Trustees at 07:00 PM on April 21, 2020 at 1225 Barefoot Boulevard,
Building D&E, Barefoot Bav, Florida. The purpose of this Hearing will be to determine whether or not the alleged
violation(s) exist.

If the violation(s) described in the Statement of Violation are corrected an then recur, or if the violations are not
corrected by the time specified for correction, the case shall be presented to the Board of Trustees. Notice is hereby
given that a Hearing will be conducted before the Barefoot Bay Board of Trustees at 07:00 PM on April 21, 2020 at 1225
Barefoot Boulevard, Building D&E, Barefoot Bay, Florida.
DUE TO THE FACT THAT ALL BOT MEETINGS ARE BEING STREAMED TO BLD A. THE HOMEOWNER WILL
NEED TO BE PRESENT AT BLD A TO PRESENT TESTIMONY ON THE VIOLATION. NOTIFY MODERATOR AT
BLD A THAT YOU ARE THERE FOR A VIOLATION CASE.

The Board of Trustees will receive testimony and evidence at the Hearing and make Findings of Fact as are supported by the
testimony and evidence pertaining to matters alleged in the enclosed Statement of Violations. The respondent is entitled to
testify and present evidence and witnesses at the Hearing, or may be represented by an attorney. If the property is found to be
in violation, all social, family, and golf memberships affiliated with the property will be automatically suspended.The Board
of Trustees shall have the authority to bring an action for injunctive or other appropriate legal or equitable relief in a court of
competent jurisdiction in Brevard County, Florida to remedy the violation. If the Board of Trustees brings any such legal
action, the Board of Trustees shall be entitled to an award of Attorney's fees and court costs incident to bringing such action.

IF ANY INDIVIDUAL WISHES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES WITH
RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE
PROCEEDING WILL BE REQUIRED, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE
UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED SUCH PERSON MUST PROVIDE A COURT REPORTER, COURT
STENOGRAPHER OR OTHER METHOD ACCEPTABLE TO A COURT OF LAW TO PROVIDE FOR SUCH
VERBATIM RECORD; THE DISTRICT DOES NOT PROVIDE SUCH RECORD (FS 286.0105).

THIS IS A PUBLIC MEETING. ALL INTERESTED PARTIES MAY ATTEND. THE FACILITY WHEREIN THIS
PUBLIC MEETING WILL BE HELD IS ACCESSIBLE TO THE PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED. IN
ACCORDANCE WITH AMERICAN DISABILITIES ACT, PERSONS NEEDING ASSISTANCE TO
PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT THE DEED OF RESTRICTIONS
ENFORCEMENT OFFICE AT 772-664-3141.

April 13, 2020 
Board of Trustees/Deed of Restrictions STAFF

Page 83 of 134



 
BAREFOOT BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
 

    BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT
                                   Petitioner
    Vs                                                                                                                     Case no. 20-000931
 
    #1220 / 20-000931
    INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE LOSS,
    1012 ROYAL PALM DR 
    SEBASTIAN, FL 32976
                                   Respondent(s),

 RE: 1012 ROYAL PALM DRIVE 
Barefoot Bay, FL 32976

AFFIDAVIT OF NOTICES
STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF BREVARD

     BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared, Deed of Restrictions Enforcement Officer Mary Barry for the Barefoot Bay
Recreation District, who after being duly sworn deposes and says:

1. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was mailed to the respondent at
the above address by First Class mail.

2. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was mailed to the above
respondent by Certified mail, return receipt requested, a copy of which is attached hereto.

3. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was Posted at the above
referenced address a copy of which is attached hereto.

4. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was emailed to the Mortgage
Servicer for above referenced address, a copy of which is attached hereto.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT.
          Dated this              day of                          20      .

_________________________________________
Mary Barry, DOR Inspector

 
The Foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on              day of                          20      by Mary Barry, who is personally known to me and
did take an oath.
 

 

_________________________________________
Notary Public

State of Florida at Large

Page 84 of 134



Board of 
Trustees 

Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020
Title: DOR Violation 20-000963 1374 Barefoot Circle 
Section & Item: 9.C.iii
Department: Resident Relations, DOR
Fiscal Impact: N/A
Contact: Richard Armington, Resident Relations Manager, John W. 

Coffey ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: Statement of Violation 20-000963
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: No
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Review violation and referral to Property Services
 

Background and Summary Information
Article III, Section 2 (A) (D) - Lawn and Landscape Recurring Maintenance Condition of Prop. (A) (D) Lawn & Landscape 
(Recurring Maintenance)
First Violation occurred on 4/13/2020, one follow ups and one picture have been done since first Violation. Staff has 
signed Affidavit of Notices and attached four pictures. Respondent has been notified by First Class Mail and Certified 
Mail.Property posted.
 
Staff recommends that the BOT refer this Violation to Property Services to bring the property into compliance per 
Resolution 2015-17.  If the BOT brings any such action to enforce the DOR, the charge for such action shall be charged 
to the Respondents account and shall constitute as a lien.

Page 85 of 134



BAREFOOT BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

    BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT
                                   Petitioner
    Vs                                                                                                        Case no. 20-000963
 
  #2419/ 20-000963
    THE ESTATE OF BRODIE, ROBERT J
    359 PEGGY CIRCLE NE 
    PALM BAY, FL 32907
                                   Respondent(s),
 

 STATEMENT OF VIOLATION 
PURSUANT to the Article(s) listed below, of the Barefoot Bay Deed of Restrictions, the undersigned DOR Enforcement Officer hereby gives notice
of a violation or violations of the Deed of Restrictions of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District, described herein.

SECTION(S) OF DEED OF RESTRICTION VIOLATION(S)

ARTICLE III, SECT. 2 (A) (D) Lawn and Landscape Recurring Maintenance Condition of Prop. (A)(D) Lawn & Landscape
(Recurring Mtnc.)
(A) The lawn and landscaped areas (including all trees, shrubs, and other vegetation) of each lot shall not be neglected and shall be regularly
pruned and maintained at the expense of the Owner or Resident of such lot. The lawn and landscaped areas shall be maintained free from all
underbrush, excessive overgrowth, all rubbish, and weeds and grass in excess of six inches in height. "Excessive overgrowth" shall mean any
vegetation that is not regularly pruned in accordance with common care for such vegetation, or presents an inherent danger in either
height,placement or as restricted in ARCC Guidelines.Dead vegetation on any lot is required to be promptly removed. 
(D) In the event that any lawn, landscaped areas, driveway, carport or home is not maintained in compliance with the requirements of Section
2, Section 10, or Section 11 of Article III, the Recreation District shall have the right to enter upon the lot and take any action reasonably
necessary to cause the home and lot to come into compliance with the requirement of subsections (A), (B), (C) of Section 2, Section 10, or
Section 11 of Article III. The expense of such action shall be billed by the Recreation District to the owner, shall be a personal obligation of the
owner, and shall be shall be paid by the owner within thirty days after the owner is provided with written notice of such expenses. If payment is
not made within the said thirty day period, the expense in question shall become a lien upon the said lot until paid, which lien shall have
priority as of the date of recording of a notice thereof in the public records of Brevard county; provided, however, such lien shall not be
superior to the lien for county taxes of the lien for the Recreation District's assessments and maintenance fees. The sum so due to the
Recreation District may be collected by either an action of law, or the Recreation District shall have the right at its discretion to proceed to
foreclose the above -described lien. In the event of such litigation, the Recreation District shall have the right to recover the costs thereof
including a reasonable attorney's fee.

LOCATION/ADDRESS WHERE VIOLATION EXISTS
Block # 42  Lot # 3
1374 BAREFOOT CIRCLE 
BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976 

DESCRIPTION OF VIOLATION(s): Lawn and landscape: high grass/weeds/overgrown bushes

DATE OF VIOLATION FIRST OBSERVED: Apr 13, 2020

DATE OF OWNER/PERSON IN CHARGE GIVEN NOTICE OF VIOLATION:
April 13, 2020 via First Class
via Certified return receipt requested.

DATE ON/BY WHICH VIOLATION TO BE CORRECTED: April 20, 2020

Deed of Restrictions Staff
April 13, 2020 

Page 86 of 134



1374 Barefoot Cir. Lawn and landscape: high grass/weeds/overgrown bushes
Mary Barry
Apr 13, 2020

Page 87 of 134



 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES

NOTICE OF HEARING

The Respondent must correct the alleged violation(s) contained in the enclosed Statement of Violation by the date set forth
therein and contact the Deed of Restrictions Enforcement Officer who signed the Statement of Violation to verify such
correction. If the Respondent disputes the existence of the violation(s) and wishes a hearing, notice is hereby given that a
Hearing will be conducted before the Board of Trustees at 07:00 PM on April 21, 2020 at 1225 Barefoot Boulevard,
Building D&E, Barefoot Bav, Florida. The purpose of this Hearing will be to determine whether or not the alleged
violation(s) exist.

If the violation(s) described in the Statement of Violation are corrected an then recur, or if the violations are not
corrected by the time specified for correction, the case shall be presented to the Board of Trustees. Notice is hereby
given that a Hearing will be conducted before the Barefoot Bay Board of Trustees at 07:00 PM on April 21, 2020 at 1225
Barefoot Boulevard, Building D&E, Barefoot Bay, Florida.
DUE TO THE FACT THAT ALL BOT MEETINGS ARE BEING STREAMED TO BLD A. THE HOMEOWNER WILL
NEED TO BE PRESENT AT BLD A TO PRESENT TESTIMONY ON THE VIOLATION. NOTIFY MODERATOR AT
BLD A THAT YOU ARE THERE FOR A VIOLATION CASE.

The Board of Trustees will receive testimony and evidence at the Hearing and make Findings of Fact as are supported by the
testimony and evidence pertaining to matters alleged in the enclosed Statement of Violations. The respondent is entitled to
testify and present evidence and witnesses at the Hearing, or may be represented by an attorney. If the property is found to be
in violation, all social, family, and golf memberships affiliated with the property will be automatically suspended.The Board
of Trustees shall have the authority to bring an action for injunctive or other appropriate legal or equitable relief in a court of
competent jurisdiction in Brevard County, Florida to remedy the violation. If the Board of Trustees brings any such legal
action, the Board of Trustees shall be entitled to an award of Attorney's fees and court costs incident to bringing such action.

IF ANY INDIVIDUAL WISHES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES WITH
RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE
PROCEEDING WILL BE REQUIRED, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE
UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED SUCH PERSON MUST PROVIDE A COURT REPORTER, COURT
STENOGRAPHER OR OTHER METHOD ACCEPTABLE TO A COURT OF LAW TO PROVIDE FOR SUCH
VERBATIM RECORD; THE DISTRICT DOES NOT PROVIDE SUCH RECORD (FS 286.0105).

THIS IS A PUBLIC MEETING. ALL INTERESTED PARTIES MAY ATTEND. THE FACILITY WHEREIN THIS
PUBLIC MEETING WILL BE HELD IS ACCESSIBLE TO THE PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED. IN
ACCORDANCE WITH AMERICAN DISABILITIES ACT, PERSONS NEEDING ASSISTANCE TO
PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT THE DEED OF RESTRICTIONS
ENFORCEMENT OFFICE AT 772-664-3141.

April 13, 2020 
Board of Trustees/Deed of Restrictions STAFF

Page 88 of 134



 
BAREFOOT BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
 

    BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT
                                   Petitioner
    Vs                                                                                                                     Case no. 20-000963
 
    #2419 / 20-000963
    THE ESTATE OF BRODIE, ROBERT J,
    359 PEGGY CIRCLE NE 
    PALM BAY, FL 32907
                                   Respondent(s),

 RE: 1374 BAREFOOT CIRCLE 
Barefoot Bay, FL 32976

AFFIDAVIT OF NOTICES
STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF BREVARD

     BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared, Deed of Restrictions Enforcement Officer Mary Barry for the Barefoot Bay
Recreation District, who after being duly sworn deposes and says:

1. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was mailed to the respondent at
the above address by First Class mail.

2. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was mailed to the above
respondent by Certified mail, return receipt requested, a copy of which is attached hereto.

3. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was Posted at the above
referenced address a copy of which is attached hereto.

4. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was emailed to the Mortgage
Servicer for above referenced address, a copy of which is attached hereto.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT.
          Dated this              day of                          20      .

_________________________________________
Mary Barry, DOR Inspector

 
The Foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on              day of                          20      by Mary Barry, who is personally known to me and
did take an oath.
 

 

_________________________________________
Notary Public

State of Florida at Large

Page 89 of 134



Board of 
Trustees 

Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020
Title: DOR Violation 20-000959 1376 Barefoot Circle
Section & Item: 9.C.iv
Department: Resident Relations, DOR
Fiscal Impact: N/A
Contact: Richard Armington, Resident Relations Manager, John W. 

Coffey ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: Statement of Violation 20-000959
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: No
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Review violation and referral to Property Services
 

Background and Summary Information
Article III, Section 2 (A) (D) - Lawn and Landscape Recurring Maintenance Condition of Prop. (A) (D) Lawn & Landscape 
(Recurring Maintenance)
First Violation occurred on 4/8/2020, three follow ups and two pictures have been done since first Violation. Staff has 
signed Affidavit of Notices and attached four pictures. Respondent has been notified by First Class Mail and Certified 
Mail.Property posted.
 
Staff recommends that the BOT refer this Violation to Property Services to bring the property into compliance per 
Resolution 2015-17.  If the BOT brings any such action to enforce the DOR, the charge for such action shall be charged 
to the Respondents account and shall constitute as a lien.

Page 90 of 134



BAREFOOT BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

    BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT
                                   Petitioner
    Vs                                                                                                        Case no. 20-000959
 
  #4286/ 20-000959
    THE ESTATE OF BRODIE, ROBERT J
    359 PEGGY CIRCLE NE 
    PALM BAY, FL 32907
                                   Respondent(s),
 

 STATEMENT OF VIOLATION 
PURSUANT to the Article(s) listed below, of the Barefoot Bay Deed of Restrictions, the undersigned DOR Enforcement Officer hereby gives notice
of a violation or violations of the Deed of Restrictions of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District, described herein.

SECTION(S) OF DEED OF RESTRICTION VIOLATION(S)

ARTICLE III, SECT. 2 (A) (D) Lawn and Landscape Recurring Maintenance Condition of Prop. (A)(D) Lawn & Landscape
(Recurring Mtnc.)
(A) The lawn and landscaped areas (including all trees, shrubs, and other vegetation) of each lot shall not be neglected and shall be regularly
pruned and maintained at the expense of the Owner or Resident of such lot. The lawn and landscaped areas shall be maintained free from all
underbrush, excessive overgrowth, all rubbish, and weeds and grass in excess of six inches in height. "Excessive overgrowth" shall mean any
vegetation that is not regularly pruned in accordance with common care for such vegetation, or presents an inherent danger in either
height,placement or as restricted in ARCC Guidelines.Dead vegetation on any lot is required to be promptly removed. 
(D) In the event that any lawn, landscaped areas, driveway, carport or home is not maintained in compliance with the requirements of Section
2, Section 10, or Section 11 of Article III, the Recreation District shall have the right to enter upon the lot and take any action reasonably
necessary to cause the home and lot to come into compliance with the requirement of subsections (A), (B), (C) of Section 2, Section 10, or
Section 11 of Article III. The expense of such action shall be billed by the Recreation District to the owner, shall be a personal obligation of the
owner, and shall be shall be paid by the owner within thirty days after the owner is provided with written notice of such expenses. If payment is
not made within the said thirty day period, the expense in question shall become a lien upon the said lot until paid, which lien shall have
priority as of the date of recording of a notice thereof in the public records of Brevard county; provided, however, such lien shall not be
superior to the lien for county taxes of the lien for the Recreation District's assessments and maintenance fees. The sum so due to the
Recreation District may be collected by either an action of law, or the Recreation District shall have the right at its discretion to proceed to
foreclose the above -described lien. In the event of such litigation, the Recreation District shall have the right to recover the costs thereof
including a reasonable attorney's fee.

LOCATION/ADDRESS WHERE VIOLATION EXISTS
Block # 42  Lot # 4
1376 BAREFOOT CIRCLE 
BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976 

DESCRIPTION OF VIOLATION(s): Lawn and landscape: high grass/weeds/overgrown bushes

DATE OF VIOLATION FIRST OBSERVED: Apr 08, 2020

DATE OF OWNER/PERSON IN CHARGE GIVEN NOTICE OF VIOLATION:
 via First Class
via Certified return receipt requested.

DATE ON/BY WHICH VIOLATION TO BE CORRECTED: April 20, 2020

Deed of Restrictions Staff
April 13, 2020 

Page 91 of 134



1376 Barefoot Cir. Lawn and landscape: high grass/weeds/overgrown bushes
Mary Barry
Apr 13, 2020

Page 92 of 134



 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES

NOTICE OF HEARING

The Respondent must correct the alleged violation(s) contained in the enclosed Statement of Violation by the date set forth
therein and contact the Deed of Restrictions Enforcement Officer who signed the Statement of Violation to verify such
correction. If the Respondent disputes the existence of the violation(s) and wishes a hearing, notice is hereby given that a
Hearing will be conducted before the Board of Trustees at 07:00 PM on April 21, 2020 at 1225 Barefoot Boulevard,
Building D&E, Barefoot Bav, Florida. The purpose of this Hearing will be to determine whether or not the alleged
violation(s) exist.

If the violation(s) described in the Statement of Violation are corrected an then recur, or if the violations are not
corrected by the time specified for correction, the case shall be presented to the Board of Trustees. Notice is hereby
given that a Hearing will be conducted before the Barefoot Bay Board of Trustees at 07:00 PM on April 21, 2020 at 1225
Barefoot Boulevard, Building D&E, Barefoot Bay, Florida.
DUE TO THE FACT THAT ALL BOT MEETINGS ARE BEING STREAMED TO BLD A. THE HOMEOWNER WILL
NEED TO BE PRESENT AT BLD A TO PRESENT TESTIMONY ON THE VIOLATION. NOTIFY MODERATOR AT
BLD A THAT YOU ARE THERE FOR A VIOLATION CASE.

The Board of Trustees will receive testimony and evidence at the Hearing and make Findings of Fact as are supported by the
testimony and evidence pertaining to matters alleged in the enclosed Statement of Violations. The respondent is entitled to
testify and present evidence and witnesses at the Hearing, or may be represented by an attorney. If the property is found to be
in violation, all social, family, and golf memberships affiliated with the property will be automatically suspended.The Board
of Trustees shall have the authority to bring an action for injunctive or other appropriate legal or equitable relief in a court of
competent jurisdiction in Brevard County, Florida to remedy the violation. If the Board of Trustees brings any such legal
action, the Board of Trustees shall be entitled to an award of Attorney's fees and court costs incident to bringing such action.

IF ANY INDIVIDUAL WISHES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES WITH
RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE
PROCEEDING WILL BE REQUIRED, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE
UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED SUCH PERSON MUST PROVIDE A COURT REPORTER, COURT
STENOGRAPHER OR OTHER METHOD ACCEPTABLE TO A COURT OF LAW TO PROVIDE FOR SUCH
VERBATIM RECORD; THE DISTRICT DOES NOT PROVIDE SUCH RECORD (FS 286.0105).

THIS IS A PUBLIC MEETING. ALL INTERESTED PARTIES MAY ATTEND. THE FACILITY WHEREIN THIS
PUBLIC MEETING WILL BE HELD IS ACCESSIBLE TO THE PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED. IN
ACCORDANCE WITH AMERICAN DISABILITIES ACT, PERSONS NEEDING ASSISTANCE TO
PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT THE DEED OF RESTRICTIONS
ENFORCEMENT OFFICE AT 772-664-3141.

April 13, 2020 
Board of Trustees/Deed of Restrictions STAFF

Page 93 of 134



 
BAREFOOT BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
 

    BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT
                                   Petitioner
    Vs                                                                                                                     Case no. 20-000959
 
    #4286 / 20-000959
    THE ESTATE OF BRODIE, ROBERT J,
    359 PEGGY CIRCLE NE 
    PALM BAY, FL 32907
                                   Respondent(s),

 RE: 1376 BAREFOOT CIRCLE 
Barefoot Bay, FL 32976

AFFIDAVIT OF NOTICES
STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF BREVARD

     BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared, Deed of Restrictions Enforcement Officer Mary Barry for the Barefoot Bay
Recreation District, who after being duly sworn deposes and says:

1. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was mailed to the respondent at
the above address by First Class mail.

2. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was mailed to the above
respondent by Certified mail, return receipt requested, a copy of which is attached hereto.

3. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was Posted at the above
referenced address a copy of which is attached hereto.

4. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was emailed to the Mortgage
Servicer for above referenced address, a copy of which is attached hereto.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT.
          Dated this              day of                          20      .

_________________________________________
Mary Barry, DOR Inspector

 
The Foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on              day of                          20      by Mary Barry, who is personally known to me and
did take an oath.
 

 

_________________________________________
Notary Public

State of Florida at Large

Page 94 of 134



Board of 
Trustees 

Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020
Title: DOR Violation 19-004867 833 Vireo Drive 
Section & Item: 9.C.v
Department: Resident Relations, DOR
Fiscal Impact: N/A 
Contact: Richard Armington, Resident Relations Manager, John W. 

Coffey ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: Statement of Violation 19-004867
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: No
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Review violation and referral to Property Services
 

Background and Summary Information
Article III, Section 2 (A) (D) - Lawn and Landscape Recurring Maintenance Condition of Prop. (A) (D) Lawn & Landscape 
(Recurring Maintenance)
First Violation occurred on 11/21/2019, ten follow ups and twelve pictures have been done since first Violation. Staff 
has signed Affidavit of Notices and attached four pictures. Respondent has been notified by First Class Mail and 
Certified Mail.Property posted.
 
Staff recommends that the BOT refer this Violation to Property Services to bring the property into compliance per 
Resolution 2015-17.  If the BOT brings any such action to enforce the DOR, the charge for such action shall be charged 
to the Respondents account and shall constitute as a lien.

Page 95 of 134



BAREFOOT BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

    BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT
                                   Petitioner
    Vs                                                                                                        Case no. 19-004867
 
  #4040/ 19-004867
    BRINKER, HURROL B
    554 TARPON DRIVE 
    BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976
                                   Respondent(s),
 

 STATEMENT OF VIOLATION 
PURSUANT to the Article(s) listed below, of the Barefoot Bay Deed of Restrictions, the undersigned DOR Enforcement Officer hereby gives notice
of a violation or violations of the Deed of Restrictions of the Barefoot Bay Recreation District, described herein.

SECTION(S) OF DEED OF RESTRICTION VIOLATION(S)

ARTICLE III, SECT. 2 (A) (D) Lawn and Landscape Recurring Maintenance Condition of Prop. (A)(D) Lawn & Landscape
(Recurring Mtnc.)
(A) The lawn and landscaped areas (including all trees, shrubs, and other vegetation) of each lot shall not be neglected and shall be regularly
pruned and maintained at the expense of the Owner or Resident of such lot. The lawn and landscaped areas shall be maintained free from all
underbrush, excessive overgrowth, all rubbish, and weeds and grass in excess of six inches in height. "Excessive overgrowth" shall mean any
vegetation that is not regularly pruned in accordance with common care for such vegetation, or presents an inherent danger in either
height,placement or as restricted in ARCC Guidelines.Dead vegetation on any lot is required to be promptly removed. 
(D) In the event that any lawn, landscaped areas, driveway, carport or home is not maintained in compliance with the requirements of Section
2, Section 10, or Section 11 of Article III, the Recreation District shall have the right to enter upon the lot and take any action reasonably
necessary to cause the home and lot to come into compliance with the requirement of subsections (A), (B), (C) of Section 2, Section 10, or
Section 11 of Article III. The expense of such action shall be billed by the Recreation District to the owner, shall be a personal obligation of the
owner, and shall be shall be paid by the owner within thirty days after the owner is provided with written notice of such expenses. If payment is
not made within the said thirty day period, the expense in question shall become a lien upon the said lot until paid, which lien shall have
priority as of the date of recording of a notice thereof in the public records of Brevard county; provided, however, such lien shall not be
superior to the lien for county taxes of the lien for the Recreation District's assessments and maintenance fees. The sum so due to the
Recreation District may be collected by either an action of law, or the Recreation District shall have the right at its discretion to proceed to
foreclose the above -described lien. In the event of such litigation, the Recreation District shall have the right to recover the costs thereof
including a reasonable attorney's fee.

LOCATION/ADDRESS WHERE VIOLATION EXISTS
Block # 101  Lot # 17
833 VIREO DRIVE 
BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976 

DESCRIPTION OF VIOLATION(s): Lawn and landscape: High grass, overgrowth, weeds. Grass must be mowed, overgrowth must be
pruned/trimmed in accordance with common care practices, weeds must be removed.

DATE OF VIOLATION FIRST OBSERVED: Nov 20, 2019

DATE OF OWNER/PERSON IN CHARGE GIVEN NOTICE OF VIOLATION:
November 21, 2019 via First Class
via Certified return receipt requested.

DATE ON/BY WHICH VIOLATION TO BE CORRECTED: April 20, 2020

Deed of Restrictions Staff
April 13, 2020 

Page 96 of 134



833 Vireo. Lawn and landscape: high grass/weeds/overgrown bushes
Mary Barry
Apr 13, 2020

833 Vireo. Lawn and landscape: high grass/weeds/overgrown bushes
Mary Barry
Apr 08, 2020

833 Vireo. Lawn and landscape: high grass/weeds/overgrown bushes
Mary Barry
Apr 08, 2020

Page 97 of 134



 
BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES

NOTICE OF HEARING

The Respondent must correct the alleged violation(s) contained in the enclosed Statement of Violation by the date set forth
therein and contact the Deed of Restrictions Enforcement Officer who signed the Statement of Violation to verify such
correction. If the Respondent disputes the existence of the violation(s) and wishes a hearing, notice is hereby given that a
Hearing will be conducted before the Board of Trustees at 07:00 PM on April 21, 2020 at 1225 Barefoot Boulevard,
Building D&E, Barefoot Bav, Florida. The purpose of this Hearing will be to determine whether or not the alleged
violation(s) exist.

If the violation(s) described in the Statement of Violation are corrected an then recur, or if the violations are not
corrected by the time specified for correction, the case shall be presented to the Board of Trustees. Notice is hereby
given that a Hearing will be conducted before the Barefoot Bay Board of Trustees at 07:00 PM on April 21, 2020 at 1225
Barefoot Boulevard, Building D&E, Barefoot Bay, Florida.
DUE TO THE FACT THAT ALL BOT MEETINGS ARE BEING STREAMED TO BLD A. THE HOMEOWNER WILL
NEED TO BE PRESENT AT BLD A TO PRESENT TESTIMONY ON THE VIOLATION. NOTIFY MODERATOR AT
BLD A THAT YOU ARE THERE FOR A VIOLATION CASE.

The Board of Trustees will receive testimony and evidence at the Hearing and make Findings of Fact as are supported by the
testimony and evidence pertaining to matters alleged in the enclosed Statement of Violations. The respondent is entitled to
testify and present evidence and witnesses at the Hearing, or may be represented by an attorney. If the property is found to be
in violation, all social, family, and golf memberships affiliated with the property will be automatically suspended.The Board
of Trustees shall have the authority to bring an action for injunctive or other appropriate legal or equitable relief in a court of
competent jurisdiction in Brevard County, Florida to remedy the violation. If the Board of Trustees brings any such legal
action, the Board of Trustees shall be entitled to an award of Attorney's fees and court costs incident to bringing such action.

IF ANY INDIVIDUAL WISHES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES WITH
RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE
PROCEEDING WILL BE REQUIRED, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE
UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS BASED SUCH PERSON MUST PROVIDE A COURT REPORTER, COURT
STENOGRAPHER OR OTHER METHOD ACCEPTABLE TO A COURT OF LAW TO PROVIDE FOR SUCH
VERBATIM RECORD; THE DISTRICT DOES NOT PROVIDE SUCH RECORD (FS 286.0105).

THIS IS A PUBLIC MEETING. ALL INTERESTED PARTIES MAY ATTEND. THE FACILITY WHEREIN THIS
PUBLIC MEETING WILL BE HELD IS ACCESSIBLE TO THE PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED. IN
ACCORDANCE WITH AMERICAN DISABILITIES ACT, PERSONS NEEDING ASSISTANCE TO
PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THESE PROCEEDINGS SHOULD CONTACT THE DEED OF RESTRICTIONS
ENFORCEMENT OFFICE AT 772-664-3141.

April 13, 2020 
Board of Trustees/Deed of Restrictions STAFF

Page 98 of 134



 
BAREFOOT BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
 

    BAREFOOT BAY RECREATION DISTRICT
                                   Petitioner
    Vs                                                                                                                     Case no. 19-004867
 
    #4040 / 19-004867
    BRINKER, HURROL B,
    554 TARPON DRIVE 
    BAREFOOT BAY, FL 32976
                                   Respondent(s),

 RE: 833 VIREO DRIVE 
Barefoot Bay, FL 32976

AFFIDAVIT OF NOTICES
STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF BREVARD

     BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared, Deed of Restrictions Enforcement Officer Mary Barry for the Barefoot Bay
Recreation District, who after being duly sworn deposes and says:

1. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was mailed to the respondent at
the above address by First Class mail.

2. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was mailed to the above
respondent by Certified mail, return receipt requested, a copy of which is attached hereto.

3. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was Posted at the above
referenced address a copy of which is attached hereto.

4. That on or about the              day of                          20    , a Statement of Violations and a Notice of Hearing was emailed to the Mortgage
Servicer for above referenced address, a copy of which is attached hereto.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH NOT.
          Dated this              day of                          20      .

_________________________________________
Mary Barry, DOR Inspector

 
The Foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on              day of                          20      by Mary Barry, who is personally known to me and
did take an oath.
 

 

_________________________________________
Notary Public

State of Florida at Large

Page 99 of 134



Board of 
Trustees 

Meeting Agenda Memo

Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020
Title: Building A Renovations RFP Evaluation Committee 

Recommendation
Section & Item: 9.D
Department: R&M/Capital Projects
Fiscal Impact: $564,435.00 (FY20 Revised Budget of $571,000.00)
Contact: Roger Compton, Secretary, Kathy Mendes, Food & Beverage 

Manager, Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager, John W. Coffey 
ICMA-CM, Community Manager

Attachments: Parkit 2020 proposal, March 27 2020 eval committee meeting, April 
02 2020 eval committee meeting

Reviewed by 
General 
Counsel: No
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Consideration of RFP evaluation committee recommendation.
 

Background and Summary Information
The FY20 Revised Budget contains $571,000 in the REM/Capital Department the Building A Renovations Project that 
contains the following elements:
 - Final phase of electrical infrastructure upgrades (multi-year phased projected started in FY16 and delayed for various 
reasons)
 - HVAC Renovations as based on a 2017 assessment to improve efficiency and incorporate needs of an expanded 
kitchen
 - Renovation and expansion of the kitchen
 
On February 25, 2020, the BOT authorized the release of a Request for Proposal for the project. On March 27th, the 
evaluation committee met and opened the following bid:
 
$564,435.00 Parkit Construction, Inc.
 
On April 2nd, the evaluation committee met and made the following recommendation.

 -  Accept the proposal from Parkit Construction, Inc. as presented.
 
The reader should note the following facts:
 - Parkit Construction, Inc. was the vendor who successfully completed the Building C Exterior Renovations project in 
2019.
 - The FY21-25 5yrFM&CIP contains $600,000.00 for this project in FY20 Year-end Estimate calculations.An estimated 
$30,000.00 of needed equipment for the project is excluded from the proposal and is planned to be procured 
independently by staff after the construction project is completed.
 - The FY20 Year-end Estimate workplan assumes acquiring a $350,000, 4-year repayment schedule.General Counsel 
Repperger has not yet obtained legal advice regarding if this planned loan would require validation (90 day court 
process assuming no appeal). 

Page 100 of 134



 - While the BOT will likely need to cut some existing projects from the FY20 workplan and FY21 Working Draft Proposed 
Budget (or increase revenues) due to the impacts of the Coronavirus pandemic, staff believes this project should be a 
top priority. 
 
Hence, staff recommends the BOT award contract for Building A Renovations to Parkit Construction, Inc. in the amount 
of $564,435.00.
 
 

Page 101 of 134



Page 102 of 134



Page 103 of 134



Page 104 of 134



Page 105 of 134



 

 

March 27, 2020 
Building A Renovations RFP Evaluation Committee Meeting Minutes 
 
 
Committee member Chairman Klosky welcomed everyone and started the meeting. 
 
Committee member Trustee Roger Compton lead Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call:  
Chairman Joseph Klosky, Committee member Trustee Roger Compton, Committee member Kathy 
Mendes (Food & Beverage Manager), Committee member John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM (Community 
Manager), Trustee Randy Loveland, Trustee Henderson, and Hurrol Brinker. 
 
Selection of Chairman: 
Kathy Mendes nominated Trustee Roger Compton.  Approved by acclamation. 
 
Opening of RFP: 
Committee Chairman Compton opened the proposal from Parkit Construction, Inc.  Proposal cost was 
$564,435.00. 
 
Discussion of proposal: 
Kathy Mendes stated she believes the additional equipment to be provided by BBRD will cost about 
$30,000.00. 
 
Next meeting is Thursday, April 2, 2020 in Administration Building Conference Room at 10am. 
 
Committee Chairman Compton made a motion to adjourn. Approved by acclamation at 10:20am. 

Page 106 of 134



April 2, 2020 
Building A Renovations RFP Evaluation Committee Meeting Minutes 
 
Committee Chairman Trustee Compton welcomed everyone and started the meeting at 10am. 
 
Committee member Chairman Klosky lead Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll call 
Present: Committee Chairman Trustee Compton, Committee member Mendes, Committee member 
Chairman Klosky, Committee member Coffey and Trustee Henderson 
Excused: Committee member Ann Manzo 
 
Approval of minutes 
Committee member Mendes made a motion to approve, Committee Chairman Trustee Compton 
seconded, approved 2-0. 
 
RFP review 
Committee member Mendes made a motion to recommend approval of the Parkit proposal to the BOT, 
seconded by Committee Chairman Trustee Compton, approved 2-0. 
 
 
Motion by Committee Chairman Trustee Compton to adjourn, seconded by Committee member 
Mendes, approved 2-0. 
 
Meeting ended at 10:06am. 
 
 
 

Page 107 of 134



Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo
Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020
Title: Lounge Roof Replacement Award of Contract
Section & Item: 9.E
Department: R&M/Capital Projects
Fiscal Impact: $49.950.00
Contact: Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager, John W. Coffey 

ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: Lounge Proposal, email from Matt Goetz, Policy manual 

excerpt
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Award of contract.
 

Background and Summary Information
The Lounge roof has needed replacement for the last several years.  Originally included in the FY18 Approved Budget, 
the project has repeatedly been pushed out due to changing concepts of a project to expand the Lounge (i.e. staff did 
not want to replace the roof and then have that new roof torn up a year or two later if the roof line was going to be 
dramatically altered). With the BOT’s decision to shift from a 4,000 s.f. expansion of the building to a combination of a 
minor building expansion and lakeside renovations, staff included the cost of replacing the roof in the FY20 Year-end 
estimate column of the FY21-25 5yrFM&CIP which the BOT did not change.  
 
As attested to by Property Services Matt Goetz (see attachment) staff has repeatedly sought multiple bids for this 
project but only have received the following:

 $49.950.00MB Enterprises Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc. 
(sub-contractor who replaced the roof on Building C last year)
 
Per BBRD’s Policy Manual, Page 12, “Use of Purchase Orders - Competitive Pricing”paragraph two, staff can waive the 
2nd bid requirement If staff is unable to obtain more than one quote or bid after a reasonable time, the Community 
Manager may authorize the procurement based on the Department Manager’s recommendation and use of Exception to 
Competition, #9 “Under other documented and justified circumstances approved by the Community Manager.”.
 
While the BOT will likely need to cut some existing projects from the FY20 workplan and FY21 Working Draft Proposed 
Budget (or increase revenues) due to the impacts of the Coronavirus pandemic, staff believes the replacement of 
obsolete roofs should be a top priority. 
 
Hence, staff recommends the BOT award contract for the Lounge Roof Replacement to MB Enterprises Roofing & Sheet 
Metal, Inc. in the amount $49,950.00 while waiving the second bid requirement.

Page 108 of 134



 

Proposal 
MB Enterprises 

Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc. 
State Certified / CCC032498 

540 2nd Street SW 
Vero Beach, Florida 32962 

(772)562-7549 

PROPOSAL SUBMITTED TO PHONE DATE 

Barefoot Bay  Attn: Matt  772-494-9985 12/9/19 

STREET JOB NAME EMAIL 

 Lounge  mattgoetz@bbrd.org  

CITY, STATE AND ZIP CODE JOB LOCATION   

Vero Beach, FL  

We hereby submit specifications and estimates for: Re-Roof  

Remove existing roof system down to plywood deck and dispose of 

Inspect plywood and nail according to code using 8d ring shank nails 

Dry in with Titanium PSU-30 Peel & Stick 

Install all new flashings and vents to match roof systen  

Furnish and install new 26 ga. Kynar coated Galvalume standing seam snap lock 1” rib   Color: Colonal Red 

Pitch flat roof according to code  

Flat roof (x3) -  Install 2 ply system: 1 ply SAV & 1 ply Polyfresco cap sheet (20 yr. product warranty)  

Price includes: Permit fee; Dump fees; 5 year Labor Warranty; and 2 sheet plywood allowance ($85/sheet after 2 
sheet allowance) Price does not include any detached structures  

All rotten woodwork and stucco work to be done at time and material: time at $68/man hour plus materials.  *No 
gutter, paint or insulation figured in the proposal at this time.  

We Propose  hereby to furnish material and labor, complete in accordance with above specifications for the sum of: 

Forty-Nine Thousand Eight Hundred Fifty Dollars and 00/100 Cents ($ 49,950.00 ) 

Payment to be made as follows: 50% Down to Order Materials; Rest Upon Completion. 

 

All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a 
work-manlike manner according to standard practices. Any alteration or 
deviation from above manner specifications involving extra costs will be 
executed only upon written orders, and will become an extra charge over 
and above the estimate. All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents 
or delays beyond our control. Owner to carry fire, tornado, and other 
necessary insurance. 

Authorized 
Signature 

 

Note: This proposal may be  
withdrawn by us if not accepted within 

          
        30 days. 

   

Acceptance of Proposal – The above prices, 

specifications, and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are 
authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as outlined above. 

Signature 
 

Signature  

Date of Acceptance:     
   

 

Page 109 of 134

mailto:mattgoetz@bbrd.org


1

John Coffey

From: Matt Goetz <mattgoetz@bbrd.org> on behalf of Matt Goetz
Sent: Tuesday, March 24, 2020 9:29 AM
To: John Coffey
Subject: Roof bids

John, 
 
Over the last few months I have been trying to secure bids for the roof projects this fiscal year. I contacted many 
contractors with no response to my inquiries I managed to get site visits from M B Enterprises and G&G roofing however 
M B Enterprises was the only contractor to send me a bid. Multiple attempts to reach out to G&G were made with no 
response. M B Enterprises was wonderful to work with during the building C rehab therefore i would like to take these 
proposals to the board for their approval.  
 
Please see next email ‐Roof proposals‐ for the bids  
 
Thank you 
Matt   
 
 
 
 
‐‐  
Matthew J. Goetz 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District  
Property Service Manager  

Page 110 of 134



 Exhibit A 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Policy Manual 

 
 

12 
 

The Community Manager is authorized to approve budgeted expenditures of up to $7,500.00 
without Board authorization.  All expenditures of $7,500.0015 or more shall be authorized by the 
Board of Trustees and have two authorized signatures on ANY check.  

Use of Purchase Orders-Competitive Pricing  
The primary method of purchasing a product is through a purchase order. A purchase order ensures 
that proper procedures and approvals have been obtained prior to placing the order for the product. 
Certain items do not require a purchase order and are listed under exceptions to the use of 
Purchase Orders. 
 
1. For purchases of up to $999.9916, a purchase order and competitive pricing is not required; 

however, obtaining quotations is recommended whenever practical.  
 
2. For purchases of $1,000.00 to $19,999.9917 informal quotes are required from at least two 

sources. A "No Bid" does not constitute a quote. These quotations should be submitted in 
writing, and kept on file in the accounts payable office and the requesting department. 

 
3. For purchases in the amount of $20,000.00 to $49,999.9918 written, signed bids are required 

from at least three sources.  A “No Bid” does not constitute a bid.  These bids should be kept 
on file in the accounts payable office and the requesting department. 

 
4. For all purchases in the amount of $50,00019 or more, sealed bids are required and the Request 

for Proposal or Invitation to Bid Process must be followed (see Section 2.14).   
 
If staff is unable to obtain more than one quote or bid after a reasonable time, the Community 
Manager may authorize the procurement based on the Department Manager’s recommendation 
and use of Exception to Competition, #9 “Under other documented and justified circumstances 
approved by the Community Manager.”  When this exception to competition (a second quote cannot 
be found in a reasonable time)20 is used, the Community Manager shall notify the Board of Trustees 
at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting and notate the date, vendor and price on an 
“Exception to Competition log” as maintained by the District Clerk.21 

Blanket Purchase Orders 
Blanket purchase orders may be used for small repetitive specified goods or services from the same 
vendor that requires numerous orders / shipments over specified periods of time. The use of blanket 
purchase orders to by-pass the competitive pricing or bid policies is not allowed. 
 
Use of Credit Cards22 
Department Managers are authorized by the Community Manager to use a credit card with a 
maximum monthly limit of $1,000.00 for purchases when credit accounts or payment by check is 
not acceptable or efficient. An additional $1,000.00 per month may be pre-approved by the 
Community Manager as needed. The Finance Manager is authorized by the Community Manager 
to use a credit card with a maximum monthly limit of $5,000.00 for purchases when credit accounts 
or payment by check is not acceptable or efficient.  Department Managers will forward receipts for 
all purchases made by use of the credit card to the Finance Manager or designee.  The Finance 
Manager or designee shall monitor the usage of departmental credit cards. Credit cards shall be 
stored in a secured location by the Department Managers when not in use. 
 

Page 111 of 134



 Exhibit A 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Policy Manual 

 
 

13 
 

Exceptions to the use of Purchase Orders 
Some recurring obligations, which are exempt from the competitive bidding process and the 
purchasing approval process, are as follows: 
 
• Utilities 
• Travel and Training (reimbursements are handled through A/P) 
• Insurance Premiums 
• Debt Service Costs 
• Certain refunds and reimbursements 
• Inventory purchases for retail sale 23 
 
Approval and payments for these items will be processed using the Monthly invoices as back up. 
These items require the approval of the Community Manager or Designee and require separate 
verification that funds are budgeted and available before the expenditure can be made. If funds are 
not available, a budget transfer shall be made upon approval of the Board of Trustees.  

Exceptions to Competition 
The competitive procurement process may be waived: 
 
1. In defined emergencies, documented in accordance with the Emergency Purchases section of 

these policies. 
2. For sole source procurements documented and approved in accordance with the Sole Source 

Purchases section of these policies. 
3. For seminars registrations and professional membership dues and fees. 
4. For purchase of local utility services for BBRD owned or operated facilities. 
5. Postage expense, when billed by a vendor at the currently prevailing postage rates established 

by the U.S. Postal Service. 
6. Repair or services for proprietary equipment, software, hardware, etc.24 
7. Capital or R&M projects proposed by a vendor responsible for long-term maintenance when 

recommended by responsible department manager and approved by the Community Manager. 
8. Repairs that require action within 72 hours.25  
9. Under other documented and justified circumstances approved by the Community Manager. 

Emergency Purchases 
In cases of a declared emergency which require the immediate purchase of supplies or contractual 
services, the Community Manager may waive normal purchasing procedures. 
 
In the event of the need to repair existing infrastructure that impacts the health welfare and safety 
of residents, the Community Manager may waive normal purchasing procedures.  The Community 
Manager shall place the contract for repairs on the next regularly scheduled BOT meeting agenda 
for confirmation.26 

Purchases from Purchasing agreements of Special Districts, Municipalities, or Counties 
(Piggybacking)27 

District purchases based on purchasing agreements from other Special Districts, Municipalities, or 
Counties (Piggybacking) per Sec. 189.4221 F.S. will be allowed. 

Purchases from State Contract28 

District purchases based on the use of state contracts will be allowed. 

Page 112 of 134



Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo
Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020
Title: Pool #1 Walkway Roof Replacement, Phase 2 Award of 

Contract
Section & Item: 9.F
Department: R&M/Capital Projects
Fiscal Impact: $39,900.00
Contact: Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager, John W. Coffey 

ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: Pool Walkway Proposal, email from Matt Goetz, Policy 

manual excerpt
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: No
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Award of contract
 

Background and Summary Information
The Pool #1 walkway roof has slowly deteriorated over several years.  Phase one of the work was completed in FY18.  
Funding for completion of the project is included in the FY20 R&M/Capital Budget.   
 
As attested to by Property Services Matt Goetz (see attachment) staff has repeatedly sought multiple bids for this 
project but only have received the following:

 $39,900.00 MB Enterprises Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc. 
(sub-contractor who replaced the roof on Building C last year)
 
Per BBRD’s Policy Manual, Page 12, “Use of Purchase Orders - Competitive Pricing”paragraph two, staff can waive the 
2nd bid requirement If staff is unable to obtain more than one quote or bid after a reasonable time, the Community 
Manager may authorize the procurement based on the Department Manager’s recommendation and use of Exception to 
Competition, #9 “Under other documented and justified circumstances approved by the Community Manager.”.
 
While the BOT will likely need to cut some existing projects from the FY20 workplan and FY21 Working Draft Proposed 
Budget (or increase revenues) due to the impacts of the Coronavirus pandemic, staff believes the replacement of 
obsolete roofs should be a top priority. 
 
Hence, staff recommends the BOT award contract for the Pool 1 Walkway Roof Replacement, Phase 2 to MB 
Enterprises Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc. in the amount of $39,900.00, waiving the second bid requirement, and 
instructing staff to transfer the balance of the budget to Contingency

Page 113 of 134



 

Proposal 
MB Enterprises 

Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc. 
State Certified / CCC032498 

540 2nd Street SW 
Vero Beach, Florida 32962 

(772)562-7549 

PROPOSAL SUBMITTED TO PHONE DATE 

Barefoot Bay  Attn: Matt 772-494-9985 12/9/19 

STREET JOB NAME EMAIL 

 Pool Walkway mattgoetz@bbrd.org  

CITY, STATE AND ZIP CODE JOB LOCATION 

Vero Beach, FL 32963  

We hereby submit specifications and estimates for: Re-Roof  

Remove existing roof system down to deck and dispose of 

Install tapered ISO insulation mechanically fastened using screws and plates  

Install new IB 80 mil. Sure Weld reinforced PVC membrane (30 year product warranty) 

PVC will be mechanically fastened and hot-air welded laps 

 

 

  

Price includes: Permit fee; Dump fees; Engineering; 5-year Labor Warranty 

All rotten woodwork and stucco work to be done at time and material: time at $68/man hour plus materials.  *No 
gutter, paint or insulation figured in the proposal at this time. 

We Propose  hereby to furnish material and labor, complete in accordance with above specifications for the sum of: 

Thirty-Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Dollars and 00/100 Cents  ($ 39,900.00 ) 

Payment to be made as follows: 50% Down to Order Materials; Rest Upon Completion. 

 

All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a 
work-manlike manner according to standard practices. Any alteration or 
deviation from above manner specifications involving extra costs will be 
executed only upon written orders, and will become an extra charge over 
and above the estimate. All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents 
or delays beyond our control. Owner to carry fire, tornado, and other 
necessary insurance. 

Authorized 
Signature 

 

Note: This proposal may be  
withdrawn by us if not accepted within 

          
        30 days. 

   

Acceptance of Proposal – The above prices, 

specifications, and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are 
authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as outlined above. 

Signature 

 

Signature 
 

Date of Acceptance:     
   

 

Page 114 of 134

mailto:mattgoetz@bbrd.org


1

John Coffey

From: Matt Goetz <mattgoetz@bbrd.org> on behalf of Matt Goetz
Sent: Tuesday, March 24, 2020 9:29 AM
To: John Coffey
Subject: Roof bids

John, 
 
Over the last few months I have been trying to secure bids for the roof projects this fiscal year. I contacted many 
contractors with no response to my inquiries I managed to get site visits from M B Enterprises and G&G roofing however 
M B Enterprises was the only contractor to send me a bid. Multiple attempts to reach out to G&G were made with no 
response. M B Enterprises was wonderful to work with during the building C rehab therefore i would like to take these 
proposals to the board for their approval.  
 
Please see next email ‐Roof proposals‐ for the bids  
 
Thank you 
Matt   
 
 
 
 
‐‐  
Matthew J. Goetz 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District  
Property Service Manager  

Page 115 of 134



 Exhibit A 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Policy Manual 

 
 

12 
 

The Community Manager is authorized to approve budgeted expenditures of up to $7,500.00 
without Board authorization.  All expenditures of $7,500.0015 or more shall be authorized by the 
Board of Trustees and have two authorized signatures on ANY check.  

Use of Purchase Orders-Competitive Pricing  
The primary method of purchasing a product is through a purchase order. A purchase order ensures 
that proper procedures and approvals have been obtained prior to placing the order for the product. 
Certain items do not require a purchase order and are listed under exceptions to the use of 
Purchase Orders. 
 
1. For purchases of up to $999.9916, a purchase order and competitive pricing is not required; 

however, obtaining quotations is recommended whenever practical.  
 
2. For purchases of $1,000.00 to $19,999.9917 informal quotes are required from at least two 

sources. A "No Bid" does not constitute a quote. These quotations should be submitted in 
writing, and kept on file in the accounts payable office and the requesting department. 

 
3. For purchases in the amount of $20,000.00 to $49,999.9918 written, signed bids are required 

from at least three sources.  A “No Bid” does not constitute a bid.  These bids should be kept 
on file in the accounts payable office and the requesting department. 

 
4. For all purchases in the amount of $50,00019 or more, sealed bids are required and the Request 

for Proposal or Invitation to Bid Process must be followed (see Section 2.14).   
 
If staff is unable to obtain more than one quote or bid after a reasonable time, the Community 
Manager may authorize the procurement based on the Department Manager’s recommendation 
and use of Exception to Competition, #9 “Under other documented and justified circumstances 
approved by the Community Manager.”  When this exception to competition (a second quote cannot 
be found in a reasonable time)20 is used, the Community Manager shall notify the Board of Trustees 
at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting and notate the date, vendor and price on an 
“Exception to Competition log” as maintained by the District Clerk.21 

Blanket Purchase Orders 
Blanket purchase orders may be used for small repetitive specified goods or services from the same 
vendor that requires numerous orders / shipments over specified periods of time. The use of blanket 
purchase orders to by-pass the competitive pricing or bid policies is not allowed. 
 
Use of Credit Cards22 
Department Managers are authorized by the Community Manager to use a credit card with a 
maximum monthly limit of $1,000.00 for purchases when credit accounts or payment by check is 
not acceptable or efficient. An additional $1,000.00 per month may be pre-approved by the 
Community Manager as needed. The Finance Manager is authorized by the Community Manager 
to use a credit card with a maximum monthly limit of $5,000.00 for purchases when credit accounts 
or payment by check is not acceptable or efficient.  Department Managers will forward receipts for 
all purchases made by use of the credit card to the Finance Manager or designee.  The Finance 
Manager or designee shall monitor the usage of departmental credit cards. Credit cards shall be 
stored in a secured location by the Department Managers when not in use. 
 

Page 116 of 134



 Exhibit A 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Policy Manual 

 
 

13 
 

Exceptions to the use of Purchase Orders 
Some recurring obligations, which are exempt from the competitive bidding process and the 
purchasing approval process, are as follows: 
 
• Utilities 
• Travel and Training (reimbursements are handled through A/P) 
• Insurance Premiums 
• Debt Service Costs 
• Certain refunds and reimbursements 
• Inventory purchases for retail sale 23 
 
Approval and payments for these items will be processed using the Monthly invoices as back up. 
These items require the approval of the Community Manager or Designee and require separate 
verification that funds are budgeted and available before the expenditure can be made. If funds are 
not available, a budget transfer shall be made upon approval of the Board of Trustees.  

Exceptions to Competition 
The competitive procurement process may be waived: 
 
1. In defined emergencies, documented in accordance with the Emergency Purchases section of 

these policies. 
2. For sole source procurements documented and approved in accordance with the Sole Source 

Purchases section of these policies. 
3. For seminars registrations and professional membership dues and fees. 
4. For purchase of local utility services for BBRD owned or operated facilities. 
5. Postage expense, when billed by a vendor at the currently prevailing postage rates established 

by the U.S. Postal Service. 
6. Repair or services for proprietary equipment, software, hardware, etc.24 
7. Capital or R&M projects proposed by a vendor responsible for long-term maintenance when 

recommended by responsible department manager and approved by the Community Manager. 
8. Repairs that require action within 72 hours.25  
9. Under other documented and justified circumstances approved by the Community Manager. 

Emergency Purchases 
In cases of a declared emergency which require the immediate purchase of supplies or contractual 
services, the Community Manager may waive normal purchasing procedures. 
 
In the event of the need to repair existing infrastructure that impacts the health welfare and safety 
of residents, the Community Manager may waive normal purchasing procedures.  The Community 
Manager shall place the contract for repairs on the next regularly scheduled BOT meeting agenda 
for confirmation.26 

Purchases from Purchasing agreements of Special Districts, Municipalities, or Counties 
(Piggybacking)27 

District purchases based on purchasing agreements from other Special Districts, Municipalities, or 
Counties (Piggybacking) per Sec. 189.4221 F.S. will be allowed. 

Purchases from State Contract28 

District purchases based on the use of state contracts will be allowed. 

Page 117 of 134



Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo
Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020
Title: Pool #2 Restroom Roof Replacement Award of Contract
Section & Item: 9.G
Department: R&M/Capital Projects
Fiscal Impact: $14,250.00
Contact: Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager, John W. Coffey 

ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: Pool 2 Proposal, email from Matt Goetz, Policy manual 

excerpt
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Award of contract
 

Background and Summary Information
The Pool #2 Restroom roof has slowly deteriorated over several years.  Funding for the project is included in the FY20 
R&M/Capital Budget.   
 
As attested to by Property Services Matt Goetz (see attachment) staff has repeatedly sought multiple bids for this 
project but only have received the following:

 $14,250.00MB Enterprises Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc. 
(sub-contractor who replaced the roof on Building C last year)
 
Per BBRD’s Policy Manual, Page 12, “Use of Purchase Orders - Competitive Pricing”paragraph two, staff can waive the 
2nd bid requirement If staff is unable to obtain more than one quote or bid after a reasonable time, the Community 
Manager may authorize the procurement based on the Department Manager’s recommendation and use of Exception to 
Competition, #9 “Under other documented and justified circumstances approved by the Community Manager.”.
 
While the BOT will likely need to cut some existing projects from the FY20 workplan and FY21 Working Draft Proposed 
Budget (or increase revenues) due to the impacts of the Coronavirus pandemic, staff believes the replacement of 
obsolete roofs should be a top priority. 
 
Hence, staff recommends the BOT award contract for the Pool #2 Restroom Roof Replacement to MB Enterprises 
Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc. in the mount $14,250, waive the second bid requirement, and instruction staff to transfer 
the balance of the budget to Contingency.

Page 118 of 134



 

Proposal 
MB Enterprises 

Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc. 
State Certified / CCC032498 

540 2nd Street SW 
Vero Beach, Florida 32962 

(772)562-7549 

PROPOSAL SUBMITTED TO PHONE DATE 

Barefoot Bay  Attn: Matt  772-494-9985 12/9/19 

STREET JOB NAME EMAIL 

 Pool 2 mattgoetz@bbrd.org  

CITY, STATE AND ZIP CODE JOB LOCATION   

Vero Beach, FL  

We hereby submit specifications and estimates for: Re-Roof  

Remove existing roof system down to plywood deck and dispose of 

Inspect plywood and nail according to code using 8d ring shank nails 

Dry in with Titanium PSU-30 Peel & Stick 

Install all new flashings and vents to match roof systen  

Furnish and install new 26 ga. Kynar coated Galvalume standing seam snap lock 1” rib   Color: Colonal Red 

Price does not include aluminum flat roof  

 

Price includes: Permit fee; Dump fees; 5 year Labor Warranty; and 2 sheet plywood allowance ($85/sheet after 2 
sheet allowance) Price does not include any detached structures  

All rotten woodwork and stucco work to be done at time and material: time at $68/man hour plus materials.  *No 
gutter, paint or insulation figured in the proposal at this time.  

We Propose  hereby to furnish material and labor, complete in accordance with above specifications for the sum of: 

Fourteen Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollars and 00/100 Cents ($ 14,250.00 ) 

Payment to be made as follows: 50% Down to Order Materials; Rest Upon Completion. 

 

All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a 
work-manlike manner according to standard practices. Any alteration or 
deviation from above manner specifications involving extra costs will be 
executed only upon written orders, and will become an extra charge over 
and above the estimate. All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents 
or delays beyond our control. Owner to carry fire, tornado, and other 
necessary insurance. 

Authorized 
Signature 

 

Note: This proposal may be  
withdrawn by us if not accepted within 

          
        30 days. 

   

Acceptance of Proposal – The above prices, 

specifications, and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are 
authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as outlined above. 

Signature 
 

Signature  

Date of Acceptance:     
   

 

Page 119 of 134

mailto:mattgoetz@bbrd.org


1

John Coffey

From: Matt Goetz <mattgoetz@bbrd.org> on behalf of Matt Goetz
Sent: Tuesday, March 24, 2020 9:29 AM
To: John Coffey
Subject: Roof bids

John, 
 
Over the last few months I have been trying to secure bids for the roof projects this fiscal year. I contacted many 
contractors with no response to my inquiries I managed to get site visits from M B Enterprises and G&G roofing however 
M B Enterprises was the only contractor to send me a bid. Multiple attempts to reach out to G&G were made with no 
response. M B Enterprises was wonderful to work with during the building C rehab therefore i would like to take these 
proposals to the board for their approval.  
 
Please see next email ‐Roof proposals‐ for the bids  
 
Thank you 
Matt   
 
 
 
 
‐‐  
Matthew J. Goetz 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District  
Property Service Manager  

Page 120 of 134



 Exhibit A 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Policy Manual 

 
 

12 
 

The Community Manager is authorized to approve budgeted expenditures of up to $7,500.00 
without Board authorization.  All expenditures of $7,500.0015 or more shall be authorized by the 
Board of Trustees and have two authorized signatures on ANY check.  

Use of Purchase Orders-Competitive Pricing  
The primary method of purchasing a product is through a purchase order. A purchase order ensures 
that proper procedures and approvals have been obtained prior to placing the order for the product. 
Certain items do not require a purchase order and are listed under exceptions to the use of 
Purchase Orders. 
 
1. For purchases of up to $999.9916, a purchase order and competitive pricing is not required; 

however, obtaining quotations is recommended whenever practical.  
 
2. For purchases of $1,000.00 to $19,999.9917 informal quotes are required from at least two 

sources. A "No Bid" does not constitute a quote. These quotations should be submitted in 
writing, and kept on file in the accounts payable office and the requesting department. 

 
3. For purchases in the amount of $20,000.00 to $49,999.9918 written, signed bids are required 

from at least three sources.  A “No Bid” does not constitute a bid.  These bids should be kept 
on file in the accounts payable office and the requesting department. 

 
4. For all purchases in the amount of $50,00019 or more, sealed bids are required and the Request 

for Proposal or Invitation to Bid Process must be followed (see Section 2.14).   
 
If staff is unable to obtain more than one quote or bid after a reasonable time, the Community 
Manager may authorize the procurement based on the Department Manager’s recommendation 
and use of Exception to Competition, #9 “Under other documented and justified circumstances 
approved by the Community Manager.”  When this exception to competition (a second quote cannot 
be found in a reasonable time)20 is used, the Community Manager shall notify the Board of Trustees 
at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting and notate the date, vendor and price on an 
“Exception to Competition log” as maintained by the District Clerk.21 

Blanket Purchase Orders 
Blanket purchase orders may be used for small repetitive specified goods or services from the same 
vendor that requires numerous orders / shipments over specified periods of time. The use of blanket 
purchase orders to by-pass the competitive pricing or bid policies is not allowed. 
 
Use of Credit Cards22 
Department Managers are authorized by the Community Manager to use a credit card with a 
maximum monthly limit of $1,000.00 for purchases when credit accounts or payment by check is 
not acceptable or efficient. An additional $1,000.00 per month may be pre-approved by the 
Community Manager as needed. The Finance Manager is authorized by the Community Manager 
to use a credit card with a maximum monthly limit of $5,000.00 for purchases when credit accounts 
or payment by check is not acceptable or efficient.  Department Managers will forward receipts for 
all purchases made by use of the credit card to the Finance Manager or designee.  The Finance 
Manager or designee shall monitor the usage of departmental credit cards. Credit cards shall be 
stored in a secured location by the Department Managers when not in use. 
 

Page 121 of 134



 Exhibit A 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Policy Manual 

 
 

13 
 

Exceptions to the use of Purchase Orders 
Some recurring obligations, which are exempt from the competitive bidding process and the 
purchasing approval process, are as follows: 
 
• Utilities 
• Travel and Training (reimbursements are handled through A/P) 
• Insurance Premiums 
• Debt Service Costs 
• Certain refunds and reimbursements 
• Inventory purchases for retail sale 23 
 
Approval and payments for these items will be processed using the Monthly invoices as back up. 
These items require the approval of the Community Manager or Designee and require separate 
verification that funds are budgeted and available before the expenditure can be made. If funds are 
not available, a budget transfer shall be made upon approval of the Board of Trustees.  

Exceptions to Competition 
The competitive procurement process may be waived: 
 
1. In defined emergencies, documented in accordance with the Emergency Purchases section of 

these policies. 
2. For sole source procurements documented and approved in accordance with the Sole Source 

Purchases section of these policies. 
3. For seminars registrations and professional membership dues and fees. 
4. For purchase of local utility services for BBRD owned or operated facilities. 
5. Postage expense, when billed by a vendor at the currently prevailing postage rates established 

by the U.S. Postal Service. 
6. Repair or services for proprietary equipment, software, hardware, etc.24 
7. Capital or R&M projects proposed by a vendor responsible for long-term maintenance when 

recommended by responsible department manager and approved by the Community Manager. 
8. Repairs that require action within 72 hours.25  
9. Under other documented and justified circumstances approved by the Community Manager. 

Emergency Purchases 
In cases of a declared emergency which require the immediate purchase of supplies or contractual 
services, the Community Manager may waive normal purchasing procedures. 
 
In the event of the need to repair existing infrastructure that impacts the health welfare and safety 
of residents, the Community Manager may waive normal purchasing procedures.  The Community 
Manager shall place the contract for repairs on the next regularly scheduled BOT meeting agenda 
for confirmation.26 

Purchases from Purchasing agreements of Special Districts, Municipalities, or Counties 
(Piggybacking)27 

District purchases based on purchasing agreements from other Special Districts, Municipalities, or 
Counties (Piggybacking) per Sec. 189.4221 F.S. will be allowed. 

Purchases from State Contract28 

District purchases based on the use of state contracts will be allowed. 

Page 122 of 134



Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo
Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020
Title: Pool #3 Restroom Roof Replacement Award of Contract
Section & Item: 9.H
Department: R&M/Capital Projects
Fiscal Impact: $14,250.00
Contact: Matt Goetz, Property Services Manager, John W. Coffey 

ICMA-CM, Community Manager
Attachments: Pool 3 Proposal, email from Matt Goetz, Policy manual 

excerpt
Reviewed by 
General Counsel: N/A
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT
Award of contract
 

Background and Summary Information
The Pool #3 Restroom roof has slowly deteriorated over several years.  Funding for the project is included in the FY20 
R&M/Capital Budget.   
 
As attested to by Property Services Matt Goetz (see attachment) staff has repeatedly sought multiple bids for this 
project but only have received the following:

 $14,250.00MB Enterprises Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc. 
(sub-contractor who replaced the roof on Building C last year)
 
Per BBRD’s Policy Manual, Page 12, “Use of Purchase Orders - Competitive Pricing”paragraph two, staff can waive the 
2nd bid requirement If staff is unable to obtain more than one quote or bid after a reasonable time, the Community 
Manager may authorize the procurement based on the Department Manager’s recommendation and use of Exception to 
Competition, #9 “Under other documented and justified circumstances approved by the Community Manager.”.
 
While the BOT will likely need to cut some existing projects from the FY20 workplan and FY21 Working Draft Proposed 
Budget (or increase revenues) due to the impacts of the Coronavirus pandemic, staff believes the replacement of 
obsolete roofs should be a top priority. 
 
Hence, staff recommends the BOT award contract for the Pool #3 Restroom Roof Replacement to MB Enterprises 
Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc. in the amount $14,250, waive the second bid requirement, and instruction staff to transfer 
the balance of the budget to Contingency.

Page 123 of 134



 

Proposal 
MB Enterprises 

Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc. 
State Certified / CCC032498 

540 2nd Street SW 
Vero Beach, Florida 32962 

(772)562-7549 

PROPOSAL SUBMITTED TO PHONE DATE 

Barefoot Bay  Attn: Matt  772-494-9985 12/9/19 

STREET JOB NAME EMAIL 

 Pool 3 mattgoetz@bbrd.org  

CITY, STATE AND ZIP CODE JOB LOCATION   

Vero Beach, FL  

We hereby submit specifications and estimates for: Re-Roof  

Remove existing roof system down to plywood deck and dispose of 

Inspect plywood and nail according to code using 8d ring shank nails 

Dry in with Titanium PSU-30 Peel & Stick 

Install all new flashings and vents to match roof systen  

Furnish and install new 26 ga. Kynar coated Galvalume standing seam snap lock 1” rib   Color: Colonal Red 

 

 

Price includes: Permit fee; Dump fees; 5 year Labor Warranty; and 2 sheet plywood allowance ($85/sheet after 2 
sheet allowance) Price does not include any detached structures  

All rotten woodwork and stucco work to be done at time and material: time at $68/man hour plus materials.  *No 
gutter, paint or insulation figured in the proposal at this time.  

We Propose  hereby to furnish material and labor, complete in accordance with above specifications for the sum of: 

Fourteen Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollars and 00/100 Cents ($ 14,250.00 ) 

Payment to be made as follows: 50% Down to Order Materials; Rest Upon Completion. 

 

All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed in a 
work-manlike manner according to standard practices. Any alteration or 
deviation from above manner specifications involving extra costs will be 
executed only upon written orders, and will become an extra charge over 
and above the estimate. All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents 
or delays beyond our control. Owner to carry fire, tornado, and other 
necessary insurance. 

Authorized 
Signature 

 

Note: This proposal may be  
withdrawn by us if not accepted within 

          
        30 days. 

   

Acceptance of Proposal – The above prices, 

specifications, and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are 
authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as outlined above. 

Signature 
 

Signature  

Date of Acceptance:     
   

 

Page 124 of 134

mailto:mattgoetz@bbrd.org


1

John Coffey

From: Matt Goetz <mattgoetz@bbrd.org> on behalf of Matt Goetz
Sent: Tuesday, March 24, 2020 9:29 AM
To: John Coffey
Subject: Roof bids

John, 
 
Over the last few months I have been trying to secure bids for the roof projects this fiscal year. I contacted many 
contractors with no response to my inquiries I managed to get site visits from M B Enterprises and G&G roofing however 
M B Enterprises was the only contractor to send me a bid. Multiple attempts to reach out to G&G were made with no 
response. M B Enterprises was wonderful to work with during the building C rehab therefore i would like to take these 
proposals to the board for their approval.  
 
Please see next email ‐Roof proposals‐ for the bids  
 
Thank you 
Matt   
 
 
 
 
‐‐  
Matthew J. Goetz 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District  
Property Service Manager  

Page 125 of 134



 Exhibit A 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Policy Manual 

 
 

12 
 

The Community Manager is authorized to approve budgeted expenditures of up to $7,500.00 
without Board authorization.  All expenditures of $7,500.0015 or more shall be authorized by the 
Board of Trustees and have two authorized signatures on ANY check.  

Use of Purchase Orders-Competitive Pricing  
The primary method of purchasing a product is through a purchase order. A purchase order ensures 
that proper procedures and approvals have been obtained prior to placing the order for the product. 
Certain items do not require a purchase order and are listed under exceptions to the use of 
Purchase Orders. 
 
1. For purchases of up to $999.9916, a purchase order and competitive pricing is not required; 

however, obtaining quotations is recommended whenever practical.  
 
2. For purchases of $1,000.00 to $19,999.9917 informal quotes are required from at least two 

sources. A "No Bid" does not constitute a quote. These quotations should be submitted in 
writing, and kept on file in the accounts payable office and the requesting department. 

 
3. For purchases in the amount of $20,000.00 to $49,999.9918 written, signed bids are required 

from at least three sources.  A “No Bid” does not constitute a bid.  These bids should be kept 
on file in the accounts payable office and the requesting department. 

 
4. For all purchases in the amount of $50,00019 or more, sealed bids are required and the Request 

for Proposal or Invitation to Bid Process must be followed (see Section 2.14).   
 
If staff is unable to obtain more than one quote or bid after a reasonable time, the Community 
Manager may authorize the procurement based on the Department Manager’s recommendation 
and use of Exception to Competition, #9 “Under other documented and justified circumstances 
approved by the Community Manager.”  When this exception to competition (a second quote cannot 
be found in a reasonable time)20 is used, the Community Manager shall notify the Board of Trustees 
at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting and notate the date, vendor and price on an 
“Exception to Competition log” as maintained by the District Clerk.21 

Blanket Purchase Orders 
Blanket purchase orders may be used for small repetitive specified goods or services from the same 
vendor that requires numerous orders / shipments over specified periods of time. The use of blanket 
purchase orders to by-pass the competitive pricing or bid policies is not allowed. 
 
Use of Credit Cards22 
Department Managers are authorized by the Community Manager to use a credit card with a 
maximum monthly limit of $1,000.00 for purchases when credit accounts or payment by check is 
not acceptable or efficient. An additional $1,000.00 per month may be pre-approved by the 
Community Manager as needed. The Finance Manager is authorized by the Community Manager 
to use a credit card with a maximum monthly limit of $5,000.00 for purchases when credit accounts 
or payment by check is not acceptable or efficient.  Department Managers will forward receipts for 
all purchases made by use of the credit card to the Finance Manager or designee.  The Finance 
Manager or designee shall monitor the usage of departmental credit cards. Credit cards shall be 
stored in a secured location by the Department Managers when not in use. 
 

Page 126 of 134



 Exhibit A 
Barefoot Bay Recreation District Policy Manual 

 
 

13 
 

Exceptions to the use of Purchase Orders 
Some recurring obligations, which are exempt from the competitive bidding process and the 
purchasing approval process, are as follows: 
 
• Utilities 
• Travel and Training (reimbursements are handled through A/P) 
• Insurance Premiums 
• Debt Service Costs 
• Certain refunds and reimbursements 
• Inventory purchases for retail sale 23 
 
Approval and payments for these items will be processed using the Monthly invoices as back up. 
These items require the approval of the Community Manager or Designee and require separate 
verification that funds are budgeted and available before the expenditure can be made. If funds are 
not available, a budget transfer shall be made upon approval of the Board of Trustees.  

Exceptions to Competition 
The competitive procurement process may be waived: 
 
1. In defined emergencies, documented in accordance with the Emergency Purchases section of 

these policies. 
2. For sole source procurements documented and approved in accordance with the Sole Source 

Purchases section of these policies. 
3. For seminars registrations and professional membership dues and fees. 
4. For purchase of local utility services for BBRD owned or operated facilities. 
5. Postage expense, when billed by a vendor at the currently prevailing postage rates established 

by the U.S. Postal Service. 
6. Repair or services for proprietary equipment, software, hardware, etc.24 
7. Capital or R&M projects proposed by a vendor responsible for long-term maintenance when 

recommended by responsible department manager and approved by the Community Manager. 
8. Repairs that require action within 72 hours.25  
9. Under other documented and justified circumstances approved by the Community Manager. 

Emergency Purchases 
In cases of a declared emergency which require the immediate purchase of supplies or contractual 
services, the Community Manager may waive normal purchasing procedures. 
 
In the event of the need to repair existing infrastructure that impacts the health welfare and safety 
of residents, the Community Manager may waive normal purchasing procedures.  The Community 
Manager shall place the contract for repairs on the next regularly scheduled BOT meeting agenda 
for confirmation.26 

Purchases from Purchasing agreements of Special Districts, Municipalities, or Counties 
(Piggybacking)27 

District purchases based on purchasing agreements from other Special Districts, Municipalities, or 
Counties (Piggybacking) per Sec. 189.4221 F.S. will be allowed. 

Purchases from State Contract28 

District purchases based on the use of state contracts will be allowed. 

Page 127 of 134



Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memo
Date: Tuesday, April 21, 2020
Title: Transition Announcement Letter
Section & Item: 9.I
Department: Adminstration, District Clerk
Fiscal Impact:
Contact:
Attachments: Transitional Letter BBRD (April 14 2020)
Reviewed by 
General Counsel:
Approved by: John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager
 

Requested Action by BOT

 

Background and Summary Information

Page 128 of 134



 
 

 
 

 

April 14, 2020 

 
 
 
 
VIA EMAIL AND 
US MAIL: 
 

  Mr. Joseph Klosky, Chairman 

  Barefoot Bay Recreation District 

  625 Barefoot Blvd.  

  Barefoot Bay, FL 32967 

 

  Re:  42002 Barefoot Bay Recreation District – All active and closed matters 

 

  Dear Chairman Klosky: 

 

  As you know, Clifford R. Repperger, Jr., Esq., has resigned from his 

position with Rossway Swan, effective May 1, 2020 to join the law firm of White 

Bird. 

  

  During the course of Mr. Repperger’s association with Rossway Swan, he 

has represented the District regarding the above referenced matters. To assure that 

the District’s interests continue to be properly represented, the rules regulating 

Florida attorneys encourage us to determine whether the District desires for Mr. 

Repperger to continue in his new capacity to represent the District in the referenced 

matters, or the District may have Rossway Swan continue to represent the District.  

Please indicate your choice by signing the enclosed copy of the this letter and 

returning it to us at your earliest convenience. 

 

  Irrespective of your choice, you remain responsible for any fees and costs 

already incurred by Rossway Swan.  Any fees and costs may be deducted from any 

trust fund balance held by the Firm.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 129 of 134



Barefoot Bay Recreation District (42002) 

Repperger Transitional Letter 

Page 2 

 

 

Sincerely yours,  

 

/s/Bradley W. Rossway, Esq.   /s/Clifford R. Repperger, Jr., Esq.  

 

     

 

/s/ 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Client Signature:_ ___________________________ 

Mr. Joseph Klosky, Chairman 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District 

 

cc:   

Honorable Trustees 

John Coffey, Community Manager 

Stephanie Brown, District Clerk  

Bradley W. Rossway, Esq. 

Managing Member  

 

 

 

______  I desire that Rossway Swan 

continue to represent me and keep my 

files including all electronic data. 

Clifford R. Repperger, Jr., Esq  

Partner 

 

 

______ I desire that Clifford R. 

Repperger, Jr. Esq. represent me and 

take my files, and all electronic data be 

forwarded to: 

 

White Bird  

730 E. Strawbridge Ave.  

Suite 209 

Melbourne, FL 32901 

Page 130 of 134



1 

Barefoot Bay Recreation District 
625 Barefoot Boulevard, “Administration Building” 

Barefoot Bay, FL 32976-9233 
 

Phone 772-664-3141 
Fax 772-664-1928 

 
 
 
 
 

Memo To:  Board of Trustees 
 
From:  John W. Coffey, ICMA-CM, Community Manager 
 
Date:  April 21, 2020  
 
Subject: Manager’s Report  
 
Finance 

• $3,574,203.76 (gross) or 92.5% of the annual assessment receipts were received as 
of April 14, 2020. Details are attached. 

 
Resident Relations 
ARCC Meeting 03/17/20  
• 1 Old Business – Permit approval rescinded for further information & drawings  
• 24 Consent Items - all approved 
• 13 Other Items -all approved 
 
ARCC Meeting 03/31/20 

• 16 Consent items – all approved 

• 8 Other items – 7 approved and 1 denied 
 
ARCC Meeting 04/14/20 

• 10 Consent items – all approved 

• 11 Other items – 9 approved, 1 tabled pending application of a county building 
permit, and 1 denied for unapproved materials 

• 1 Old Business - approved 
 
ARCC Meeting 04/28/20 

• Next meeting 
 
VC Meetings 

• All future meetings have been canceled until the Coronavirus pandemic abates  
 
Interesting Fact from March 

• 42 New Homeowners 

Page 131 of 134



2 

• 67 new badges issued 
 
Food & Beverage 
No report due to the closure of the department in response to the Coronavirus 
pandemic. 
 
 
Golf-Pro Shop 

• Staff appreciates all the golfers following our guidelines for dealing with this 
pandemic 

• Please remember to bring your own water or beverages 

• Please remember to show up 5 minutes before your tee time and be ready to g o so 
we don’t have congregating groups 

 
Property Services 

• Continued replacement of broken posts around the common grounds  

• Shut down buildings and disinfected user areas  

• Replaced solenoids and broken irrigation heads at the softball field  

• Replaced all burned out flame tip bulbs in the chandeliers in Building A 

• Stripped the dance floor in the Lounge and recoated  

• Installed new sink in the Lounge  

• Continued work on the miniature golf course  

• Pressure cleaned and painted floor at pool 1 picnic/pavilion area 

• Rehabilitated Liquor closet at the Lounge (paint and flooring) 

• 19th hole passthrough window upgrade and installed heat lamps   

• Replaced emergency lights at Building A with LED fixtures 

• Re coated the floors at the Pool 1 showers  

• Refinished all doors inside the Lounge (men, Ladies and hallway) 

• Cleaned all pool furniture Pools 1,2,3 

• Repaired and repainted men’s room in Building D&E  

• Repainted interior of the 19 th Hole  

• Repaired irrigation pipe leak at the beach  

• Replaced the bench at Pool 3  

• Repaired ADA door at the Lounge  

• Replaced the water pump at the fishing pier  

• Repainted the bar at the 19 th Hole  

• Replaced broken car stops at the Shopping Center  

• Acid washed Pool 2 and touched up/repainted surfaces  

• Replaced basketball nets  

• Replaced the main pump at Pool 1  

Page 132 of 134



3 

• Repaired loose and broken bricks around all 3 Pools  

• Clean up trash in the canals  

• Made repairs to rotted and warped boards to the bridge next to tennis  

• Replaced broken lights at the tennis courts  

• Replaced broken flag rope at US1  

• Repainted yellow markings at the Lounge  

• Cold patched pot holes at Micco RV  

• Replaced all AC vents in the 19 th Hole  

• Changed all stained or damaged ceiling tiles in the 19 th Hole and the Lounge 

• Installed all new stainless shelving in the 19 th Hole kitchen  

• Fabricated microwave and printer shelf for the 19 th Hole  

• Installed a 3-bay sink at the bar in Building A  

• Continued stripping the floor in Building A 

• Shampooed the carpets in the Lounge  

• Repainted the interior of Building C 

• Continued 3-hour rotation of cleaning the golf course restrooms  

• Continued soliciting bids for various projects  
 
 
General Information 

• The first BOT Budget Workshop  is Tuesday, April 28st in Building D/E at 7pm 
 

• Notification of waiver of second bid requirement as found in the Policy Manual 
“Use of Purchase Orders-Competitive Pricing” paragraph 2 (page 12). - I hereby 
notify the BOT that due to the long-term inability to obtain bids for roof repairs to 
Building D/E sustained in Hurricane Matthew, I waived the 2 nd bid requirement 
using “Exception to Competition #9 (Under other documented and justified 
circumstances approved by the Community Manager) and approved a bid from MB 
Enterprises Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc. in the amount of $5,800.00 on March 24, 
2020. 

 

Page 133 of 134



FY 2020 Assessments Received.xlsx

Date

Received

Gross

Distribution

Penalty

Income

Interest

Income

Prior

Assessments

FY 2019

District

Assessment

Collection

Discount

Collection

Fee

Postage

Fees Net Deposit

11/08/19 171,437.73$      194.48$         171,243.25$      (8,718.58)$       (3,254.38)$     159,464.77$      

11/26/19 1,477,707.99     (738.00)             1,478,445.99     (58,973.75)       (28,389.44)     1,390,344.80     

12/13/19 851,092.39         851,092.39         (33,980.33)       (16,342.25)     800,769.81         

12/20/19 257,068.82         257,068.82         (8,971.01)         (4,961.96)       243,135.85         

01/10/20 228,040.27         7,077.55        8,496.00           219,544.27         (6,543.53)         (4,260.01)       224,314.28         

02/06/20 328,040.04         52,893.03     74,406.12        204,939.50         (4,198.61)         (4,014.82)       (252.12)     323,773.10         

03/06/20 132,963.09         138.52           760.44              132,064.13         (1,330.56)         (2,614.67)       129,017.86         

04/14/20 259,805.41         259,805.41         (95.04)               (5,194.21)       (38.81)       254,477.35         

3,706,155.74$   -$     60,303.58$   82,924.56$      3,574,203.76$   (122,811.41)$   (69,031.74)$   (290.93)$   3,525,297.82$   

3,863,365.00$   3.44% 1.93%

92.5%

289,161.24$      

Budget:

% of Budget Collected:

Balance to Collect:

Page 134 of 134


	1. Thought of the Day
	2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
	3. Roll Call
	4. Presentations and Proclamations
	5. Approval of Minutes
	A. March 13, 2020 BOT Meeting and March 24, 2020 Spec
	March 13 2020 Minutes
	March 24 2020 Special Meeting-Covid 19
	April 2nd 2020 Building A RFP Minutes


	6. Treasurer’s Report
	A. Treasurer's Report
	BOT Meeting Treasurers Report - 200421


	7. Audience Participation
	8. Unfinished Business
	A. Optional One-Time Retroactive Severance Payment to
	Agenda Memo
	Resolution Authorizing Retroactive Severance Pay Amount to BBRD Employees Laid Off Due to COVID19
	Exhibit A 2020 06  Laid off Employees Severance Pay Totals

	B. Shopping Center Lease for Building 2 Suite 3. Holy
	Agenda Memo
	Draft Lease Agreement McCarthy (Holy Canolli) (Revised 041420)
	Draft Guaranty John McCarthy

	C. Name the Facilities Contest
	Agenda Memo
	email from Mr Baldwin
	Name a building proposal
	Feb 25 2020 minutes_signed


	9. New Business
	A. Resolution Adopting Rules and Procedures for Meeti
	Agenda Memo
	Resolution Establishing Rules and Procedures for Meetings Via Communications Media Technology
	Emergency  Meeting Rules and Procedures Communications Media Technology

	B. Temporary Suspension of ARCC Meeting and Permit Ap
	Agenda Memo
	Resolution Temporarily Suspending ARCC Quorum Requirements During COVID-19 State of Emergency
	ARCC Minutes March 17 2020
	EO_20-52

	C. DOR Violations
	i. DOR Violation 20-000885 922 Fir Street 
	Agenda Memo
	Statement of Violation 20-000885

	ii. DOR Violation 20-000931 1012 Royal Palm Drive&nbsp
	Agenda Memo
	Statement of Violation 20-000931

	iii. DOR Violation 20-000963 1374 Barefoot Circle
	Agenda Memo
	Statement of Violation 20-000963

	iv. DOR Violation 20-000959 1376 Barefoot Circle
	Agenda Memo
	Statement of Violation 20-000959

	v. DOR Violation 19-004867 833 Vireo Drive
	Agenda Memo
	Statement of Violation 19-004867


	D. Building A Renovations RFP Evaluation Committee Re
	Agenda Memo
	Parkit 2020 proposal
	March 27 2020 eval committee meeting
	April 02 2020 eval committee meeting

	E. Lounge Roof Replacement Award of Contract
	Agenda Memo
	Lounge Proposal
	email from Matt Goetz
	Policy manual  excerpt

	F. Pool #1 Walkway Roof Replacement, Phase 2 Award of
	Agenda Memo
	Pool Walkway Proposal
	email from Matt Goetz
	Policy manual  excerpt

	G. Pool #2 Restroom Roof Replacement Award of Contrac
	Agenda Memo
	Pool 2 Proposal
	email from Matt Goetz
	Policy manual  excerpt

	H. Pool #3 Restroom Roof Replacement Award of Contrac
	Agenda Memo
	Pool 3 Proposal
	email from Matt Goetz
	Policy manual  excerpt

	I. Transition Announcement Letter
	Agenda Memo
	Transitional Letter BBRD (April 14 2020)


	10.  Manager’s Report
	A. Community Manager's Report
	CM report 21Apr20


	11. Attorney’s Report
	12. Incidental Trustee Remarks
	13. Adjournment

